Public Document Pack

3 July 2020

To:

Councillors Benson, Brookes, Campbell, Farrell, Hobson, Kirkland, Smith, I Taylor and
L Williams

The above members are requested to attend the:

EXECUTIVE
Monday, 13 July 2020 at 6.00 pm
Zoom meeting

AGENDA
ADMISSION OF THE PUBLIC TO COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Head of Democratic Governance has marked with an asterisk (*) those items where the
Committee may need to consider whether the public should be excluded from the meeting as
the items are likely to disclose exempt information.
The nature of the exempt information is shown in brackets after the item.

1

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in
doing so state:
(1) the type of interest concerned either a
(a)
(b)
(c)

personal interest
prejudicial interest
disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)

and
(2) the nature of the interest concerned
If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.
2

PROPOSED APPROPRIATION AND DISPOSAL OF OPEN SPACE LAND AT STANLEY PARK
GOLF COURSE, BLACKPOOL
(Pages 1 - 236)

To consider a number of representations following the advertisement of the proposed
appropriation of open space land to planning purposes and the proposed disposal of
open space land at Stanley Park Golf Course, Blackpool and to decide whether or not to
proceed with the proposals to appropriate and dispose of the land.
3

DELEGATION OF EXECUTIVE POWERS DUE TO CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC
242)

(Pages 237 -

To undertake a final review of the emergency delegation of powers to the Chief
Executive due to the Coronavirus pandemic and consider a delegation for future major
incidents.
4

UPDATED CHILDREN'S SERVICES MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY
266)

(Pages 243 -

To seek approval for the updated Children’s Services Medium Term Financial Strategy for
children. The report seeks agreement for further investment to more swiftly address
particular cost drivers – spend on residential placements and spend on foster homes
provided by independent fostering agencies.
5

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE MONITORING AS AT MONTH 2 2020/21

(Pages 267 - 274)

To report the level of spending and exposure against the Council’s Revenue budgets and
reserves and balances for the first 2 months to 31 May 2020.
6

BLACKPOOL CENTRAL - PREPARATORY SITE ASSEMBLY WORKS

(Pages 275 - 286)

To consider the next stage of Blackpool Central project in accordance with the Land Sale
Agreement 13 January 2020, with particular reference to site assembly

While the report and Appendix 6a are public documents, Appendix 6b is not for
publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972. It is considered that publication of this document at present would
significantly undermine the Council’s position in continuing negotiations and the public
interest would not be served by publishing this information. This document may be
published in full or in an amended form at a later date.
7

BLACKPOOL AIRPORT ENTERPRISE ZONE: COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT AND LEASE
WITH MULTI-PLY COMPONENTS LIMITED
(Pages 287 - 308)
To seek approval for the Council to develop a commercial unit of 40,000sq ft on the
Enterprise Zone and subsequently enter into a 25 year lease with Multi-Ply Components
Limited for the occupation of the premises, at a market rent without a premium.
While the report and Appendix 7b are public documents, Appendices 7a and 7c are not
for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. It is considered that publication of the documents would

significantly undermine the Council’s position in continuing negotiations and the public
interest would not be served by publishing this information.

* 8

HOUNDS HILL PHASE 2

(Pages 309 - 322)

To consider a report on the Hounds Hill Phase 2.
(This item to be considered in private by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12a of the
Local Government Act 1972 as the report contains information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information))
It is considered on balance that the public interest would not be served by publishing the
information as it could prejudice the proposed development.
Notification has been given on the 15 June 2020 that this item was to be considered in
private and no representations have been received in response to this notification.
* 9

INVESTMENT IN TOWN CENTRE

(Pages 323 - 416)

To consider a report on purchase of a property in the town centre.
(This item to be considered in private by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12a of the
Local Government Act 1972 as the report contains information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information))
It is considered on balance that the public interest would not be served by publishing the
information as it could prejudice the proposed purchase and subsequent development.
Notification has been given on the 15 June 2020 that this item was to be considered in
private and no representations have been received in response to this notification.
Other information:
For queries regarding this agenda please contact Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory
Manager, Tel: (01253) 477157, e-mail lennox.beattie@blackpool.gov.uk
Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
Notice of:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Business
Enterprise and Job Creation

Date of Meeting:

13 July 2020

PROPOSED APPROPRIATION AND DISPOSAL OF OPEN SPACE LAND
AT STANLEY PARK GOLF COURSE, BLACKPOOL
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To provide information to enable members to consider a number of representations
following the advertisement of the proposed appropriation of open space land for
planning purposes and the proposed disposal of open space land at Stanley Park Golf
Course, Blackpool and to decide whether or not to proceed with the proposals to
appropriate and dispose of the land.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To note and consider the objections, along with the information contained in this
report, received in respect of the intention to dispose of the open space land at
Stanley Park Golf Course, Blackpool coloured red on the plan attached at Appendix
2a (‘Site A’).

2.2

To authorise the disposal of Site A by way of leasehold disposal arrangements for the
initial operation of the whole of Site A as golf course facility followed by the
operation of a golf course facility on that part of Site A which is shown coloured
green on the plan attached at Appendix 2a (‘Site C’).

2.3.

To delegate authority to the Director of Communications and Regeneration to
undertake the disposal process in respect of Site A, agree the timing of the
implementation and all matters related to the disposal, deal with all matters arising
from the decision and to complete the disposal process.

2.4

To note and consider the objections, along with the information contained in this
report, received in respect of the intention to appropriate the open space land at
Stanley Park Golf Course, Blackpool, shown coloured blue on the plan attached at
Appendix 2a (‘Site B’) from open space purposes for planning purposes.

Page 1

2.5

To agree in principle that Site B, which is held by the Council for the purpose of open
space/recreation is no longer required to be held for those purposes and should be
appropriated for planning purposes with a view to its subsequent future
development.

2.6

To authorise the appropriation of Site B from open space/recreation purposes for
planning purposes.

2.7

To delegate authority to the Director of Communications and Regeneration to
undertake the appropriation processes in respect of Site B, to agree the timing of the
implementation and all matters relating to the appropriation, to deal with all matters
arising from the decision and complete the appropriation process

2.8

To note and consider the objections, along with the information contained in the
report, received in respect of the intention to dispose of the open space land at
Stanley Park Golf Course, Blackpool, shown coloured blue on the plan attached at
Appendix 2a (‘Site B’)

2.9

In the event that the appropriation of Site B for planning purposes is authorised in
accordance with the recommendation at 2.6, to authorise the disposal of Site B by
way of long term leasehold disposals for use for the proposed development of Site B.

2.10

To delegate authority to the Director of Communications and Regeneration to
undertake the disposal process in respect of Site B, agree the timing of the
implementation and all matters related to the disposal, deal with all matters arising
from the decision and to complete the disposal process.

2.11

To authorise the Head of Legal Services to enter into such documentation as may be
necessary to give effect to the disposal of Site A and the appropriation and disposal
of Site B.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

Interested parties have been given the opportunity to respond to the advertised proposals
for the disposal and appropriation of Sites A and Site B in accordance with the statutory
procedures as set out in this report. The disposals and appropriation of the open space
land set out in this report are proposed in connection with legal arrangements with the
preferred bidder following the outcome of the procurement exercise for the Stanley Park
Golf Course site.

Page 2

3.2a

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?
No. The recommendations for the disposal and appropriation of land follow the
statutory process for the appropriation and disposal of open space land. A number of
objections have been received stating that the proposals are contrary to adopted or
approved Council plans and/or strategy. These matters are addressed in the report.

3.2b

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? Yes

3.3

Other alternative options to be considered:
In November 2018, following the cessation of trading of the operator of Stanley Park
Golf Course, the Council considered the short and long term future in relation to the
golf course. Although the Council took steps to secure the future of the golf course in
the short term by reopening and operating the course on a temporary basis, it could
not continue to fund or subsidise the operation of an 18 hole golf course in the
medium to long term and a procurement exercise was subsequently undertaken to
secure a long term sustainable solution for the site.
If, having taken into account objections received and considered the matters set out
in this report a decision is taken not to proceed with the proposed disposal and
appropriation of the open space land, this would mean that the legal arrangements
with the successful bidder would not proceed. In such circumstances it is likely that a
fresh procurement exercise would be undertaken as the Council is not able to
subsidise the operation of the golf course at the site. Different proposals would fall to
be considered and evaluated and the outcome may or may not include the retention
of a golf facility at the site. Without a solution for the operation, management and
maintenance of the site it would be an ongoing maintenance liability for the Council
and could fall into disrepair.

4.0

Council Priority:

4.1

The relevant Council priority is: “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity
across Blackpool”

5.0

Background Information

5.1

The Council previously operated the golf course facility at Stanley Park, prior to
outsourcing the management of the course following a tender exercise in 2009/10.
Following the tender exercise, Mack Trading (International) Limited was selected to
manage and operate the golf course. In October 2018, Mack ceased running the
course due to financial and operational difficulties and the Council had to step in to
continue with the operation of the course by one of the Council’s wholly owned
companies. This was on a temporary basis pending a further tender exercise.

Page 3

5.2

In January 2019, the Council advertised an opportunity in relation to the Stanley Park
Golf Course site through an open procurement process conducted pursuant to the
Concession Contract Regulations 2016. The Council sought to enter into a concession
arrangement with an operator and invited proposals from bidders for the future
direction, investment, management and funding of the site. The public and private
sector have tried, unsuccessfully, over a number of years to operate the facility as a
golf course in a financially sustainable manner. Whilst the retention of an operational
golf course was suggested as a potential option, the Council encouraged innovative
alternative proposals for the future operation of the site providing that the facility
remained as a leisure facility. When advertising the opportunity, the Council stated
that it could not provide any grants or subsidy for investment purposes or towards
running the facility.

5.3

Following evaluation of the submitted bids as part of the procurement exercise,
Holmes Investment Properties Plc (‘HIP’) was recommended as the preferred bidder.
This recommendation was reported to and approved by the Executive at its meeting
on 15 July 2019 (Executive Decision EX31/2019 refers).

5.4

The proposal submitted by HIP includes the retention of the western part of the
current golf course site (Site C) for continued use for golf. This is proposed to include
investment in the site and the operation of a 9 hole golf course and new practice
facilities. HIP’s proposals for Site B are for a leisure development including Adrenaline
World, a new leisure venture to be managed and operated by David Lloyd’s
Adventure Parks, offering indoor and outdoor activities and also the development of
up to 250 holiday lodges with associated facilities and services, subject to planning
permission being granted.

5.5

A planning application for the development proposed by HIP on Site B is expected to
be submitted to the Council in its capacity as local planning authority later this year.
Pre application meetings have been held with planning officers commencing in
January 2020. In May 2020 a request for a Scoping Opinion relating to the proposed
development was submitted to the Council in connection with the requirement for
an Environmental Impact Assessment for the proposed development. The Scoping
Opinion was issued on 22 June 2020.

5.6

In planning policy terms, the site is currently designated as Open Land Meeting
Community and Recreational Needs. It will be a matter for any applicant for planning
permission to provide the justification that any proposed development meets
planning policy requirements. At such time as a planning application is received for
the proposed development of the site this will be publicised in accordance with
statutory requirements and the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement and
interested parties will be given the opportunity to comment on the proposals for
development.

Page 4

5.7

At its meeting on 15 July 2019, the Executive approved HIP as the preferred bidder
and gave authority for the legal arrangements for the proposals in respect of the site
to proceed including agreements for lease and leases.

5.8

The Council is progressing the legal arrangements with HIP in order to proceed with
the implementation of the successful tender and as part of those arrangements is
proposing to dispose of and appropriate parts of the site as follows:
 Disposal of Site A by way of the grant of leases
 Appropriation of Site B from open space for planning purposes
 Disposal of Site B by way of the grant of leases, conditional on various matters
including the grant of planning permission.
Site A and Site B fall within the definition in section 336 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 which is “any land laid out as a public garden, or used for the
purposes of public recreation, or land which is a disused burial ground”. In
accordance with the statutory procedures for the proposed disposal and
appropriation of land consisting of or forming part of an open space, 3 separate
public notices were advertised in the Blackpool Gazette on 27 February 2020 and 5
March 2020. The consultation period provided 21 days for interested parties to
submit representations to the Council. The period for submission of representations
expired at 5pm on 19 March 2020. The consultation period expired prior to the
lockdown measures introduced by the government on 23 March 2020 in response to
the coronavirus pandemic.

5.9

Proposed Disposal of Site A
The first notice advertised the proposed disposal of Site A. The proposed disposal is
by way of an initial leasehold arrangement for the whole of the golf course site. This
will allow HIP to operate the golf course and to take the lease subject to the existing
lease of the club house, thus assuming the responsibility as landlord under the lease
to the Trustees of the Blackpool Park Golf Club and terminating the existing
temporary operating agreement under which HIP are currently managing the golf
course on behalf of the Council. The operation of the whole of Site A as a golf course
is proposed to continue until such time as development proposals for the east side of
the course (Site B) are sufficiently progressed at which time, the east side of the
course will close. The proposed disposal will also facilitate plans for investment in
that part of Site A which forms the west side of the course (Site C) and the continued
operation of a 9 hole golf course with training facilities on the west side of the course
and the subsequent disposal by way of a long term lease of Site C.

5.10

The powers of disposal which the Council proposes to use in respect of the disposal
by way of shorter term lease (‘Site A’) and the subsequent longer lease of the part of
Site A which is shown as Site C on the plans attached at Appendix 2a, are powers
under section 123(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. This enables the Council to
dispose of land in any manner they wish subject to the requirement to dispose of the

Page 5

land at the best consideration that can reasonably be obtained. As the proposed
disposal of the land follows an open and transparent procurement exercise it is
considered that appropriate processes have been followed to bring the opportunity
to the market and to secure best value.
5.11

Prior to disposing of any land consisting of or forming part of an open space, the
Council must advertise the proposed disposal in two consecutive weeks in a local
newspaper and consider any objections to the proposed disposal which may be made
to them. Notice of the proposed disposal was advertised in the Blackpool Gazette on
27 February 2020 and 5 March 2020. A plan of the area proposed to be disposed of
was made available for public inspection at the Council offices at Number 1
Bickerstaffe Square and at Customer First, Municipal Buildings together with copies
of the notice and a document providing an explanation of the notice. The published
notice stated that any representations in respect of the proposals to dispose of the
open space land should be received by the Council no later than 5pm on 19 March
2020. The statutory requirements for consultation on the proposed appropriation
have, therefore, been complied with.

5.12

Proposed Appropriation of Site B
The second notice advertised the proposed appropriation of Site B from its existing
use as open space/recreation for planning purposes.

5.13

The Council acquires and holds property and land for various statutory purposes in
order to perform its functions and continues to hold the land for that purpose unless
it either disposes of the land or appropriates it in accordance with its statutory
powers for another purpose. Appropriation is the means of transferring the purpose
that a local authority holds land from one purpose to another.

5.14

Section 122 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 enables the Council to appropriate
to any other purpose for which the Council is authorised to acquire land by
agreement, any land which belongs to the Council and is no longer required for the
purpose for which it is held immediately before the appropriation.

5.15

In addition to the above, as it is proposed to appropriate Site B for planning
purposes the Council must also be satisfied that the land should be appropriated for
planning purposes by applying the tests set out in Sections 226(1) and (1A) of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. These are:
 That the Council considers that the appropriation will facilitate the carrying
out of the development, re-development or improvement on or in relation to
the land, and
 That such development, re-development or improvement is likely to
contribute to the achievement of the promotion of improvement of the
economic, social and/or environmental well-being of their area, and/or
 That the appropriation is required for a purpose which it is necessary to

Page 6

achieve in the interests of the proper planning of an area in which the land is
situated.
5.16

Prior to appropriating any land consisting of or forming part of an open space, the
Council must advertise the proposed appropriation in two consecutive weeks in a
local newspaper and consider any objections to the proposed appropriation which
may be made to them. Notice of the proposed appropriation of Site B was advertised
in the Blackpool Gazette on 27 February 2020 and 5 March 2020. A plan of the area
proposed to be appropriated was made available for public inspection at the Council
offices at Number 1 Bickerstaffe Square and at Customer First, Municipal Buildings
together with copies of the notice and a document providing an explanation of the
notice. The published notice stated that any representations in respect of the
proposals to dispose of the open space land should be received by the Council no
later than 5pm on 19 March 2020. The statutory requirements for consultation on
the proposed appropriation have, therefore, been complied with.

5.17

As a consequence of the exercise of the Council’s powers of appropriation, individual
rights of affected third party owners and occupiers of nearby properties may be
overridden. There are no affected third party owners and occupiers of nearby
properties whose rights will be overridden as a consequence of the appropriation
proposed in this report

5.18

In considering whether to appropriate Site B for planning purposes, the Council must
be satisfied that the land is no longer required as open space. This question is one
solely for the Council in good faith to decide and requires the Council to examine
whether the land is no longer needed in the public interest of the locality as open
space. There is no requirement for the land to have fallen into disuse before the
Council may appropriate it for some other purpose and the fact that Site B is
currently used for the purposes for which it is held is not the sole consideration. The
Council must have regard to the relative needs or uses for which the land has been or
may be put and is entitled to conduct a balancing exercise between competing uses
with the needs of the wider community at the forefront of that balancing exercise.
The statutory tests set out above must be considered and there must be justification
for the use of the powers to appropriate by a clear ‘public interest’ case. The loss of
the open space has been considered and it is considered that the loss can be justified
by the need to repurpose and facilitate the redevelopment of the land.

5.19

If Site B is appropriated for planning purposes then this will facilitate the progression
of proposals for the future of the Stanley Park Golf Course site. If a suitable planning
application is submitted and planning permission is granted, the proposals for Site B
are for a leisure development including Adrenaline World, a new leisure venture to
be managed and operated by David Lloyd Adventure Parks, offering indoor and
outdoor activities and up to 250 holiday lodges with associated facilities and services.
The proposals set out by the preferred bidder are to offer a wider range of leisure

Page 7

activities at the site than is currently available. Economically, if redeveloped, the
income from the site will be used to fund vital services in the town and the proposals
involve the creation of an estimated 150 jobs in Blackpool. The proposals for the site
align with the Council’s objective of seeking a long term sustainable leisure facility for
the site, as a result of the current golf course facility not being financially sustainable
as evidenced by the inability of the public and private sector over a number of years
to operate it in a financially sustainable manner. For the above reasons it is
considered that the appropriation of Site B for planning purposes will facilitate the
carrying out of development that is likely to contribute to the achievement of the
promotion or improvement of the economic and social well-being of the area, and
that the appropriation is required for a purpose which is necessary to achieve in the
interests of the proper planning of the area in which it is situated.
5.20

As stated elsewhere in this report a planning application for the proposed
development is yet to be submitted and at such time as a planning application is
considered by the Council, it will be determined under the planning decision making
process which is separate to this process. As stated above, the proposals for the
development of Site B remain subject to planning permission being granted and the
grant of leases of Site B will be conditional upon planning permission being granted
and other matters.

5.21

Proposed disposal of Site B
The third public notice advertised the proposed disposal of Site B by way of grant of
leases for the use of the site for leisure and lodge facilities in accordance with the
development proposals for the site. This disposal is dependent on the land first
having been appropriated for planning purposes as it relates to proposals to dispose
of the land using powers within the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, which can
only be used by the Council if the land has first been appropriated by the Council for
planning purposes.

5.22

In considering whether to dispose of the land as proposed, the Council must be
satisfied that the use of such disposal powers will meet the statutory tests inSection
233 (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 which permit the Council to
dispose of land held for planning purposes, in such manner and subject to such
conditions as appear to them to be expedient in order


To secure the best use of that or other land and any buildings or works
which have been, or are to be, erected, constructed or carried out on
it (whether by themselves or by any other person) , or
to secure the erection, construction or carrying out on it of any
buildings or works appearing to them to be needed for the proper
planning of the area of the authority.

Page 8

5.23

As explained in this report, a procurement exercise was carried out, under which the
Council advertised the opportunity to the market and invited proposals from bidders
for the future direction, investment, management and funding of the Stanley Park
Golf Course site. This resulted from the current golf course facility not being
sustainable as evidenced by the inability of the public and private sector over a
number of years to operate the facility as a golf course in a financially sustainable
manner. It is considered that the proposals submitted by the successful bidder for a
leisure and lodge development on Site B will secure the best use of the site, should
planning permission for the proposal be granted, in that the proposals set out by the
preferred bidder are to offer a wider range of leisure activities at the site than is
currently available.

5.24

Prior to disposing of any land consisting of or forming part of an open space, the
Council must advertise the proposed disposal pursuant to S233(4) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 in two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper and
consider any objections to the proposed disposal which may be made to them.
Notice of the proposed disposal of Site B was advertised in the Blackpool Gazette on
27 February 2020 and 5 March 2020. A plan of the area proposed to be disposed of
was made available for public inspection at the Council offices at Number 1
Bickerstaffe Square and at Customer First, Municipal Buildings together with copies
of the notices and a document providing an explanation of notices. The published
notices stated that any representations in respect of the proposals to dispose of the
open space land should be received by the Council no later than 5 pm on 19 March
2020. The statutory requirements for consultation on the proposed disposal have,
therefore, been complied with.

5.25

Representations
If representations are made to the Council in response to public notices of this nature
it is a statutory requirement for the Council to consider any objections and take them
into account in deciding whether to proceed with the proposals. Members are
respectfully reminded that the issues under consideration in this report are whether,
having regard to the objections received, they consider that the proposed disposals
of Site A and Site B and the proposed appropriation Site B should proceed. The
representations received should be considered in that context.

5.26

The Council received 293 representations in response to the public notices before the
deadline of 5pm on 19 March 2020. There were 288 objections to the proposals, 3
responses in support of the proposals and 2 responses which neither supported nor
objected to the proposals.

Page 9

5.27

In order to provide some context, the numbers of responses received and the
postcodes stated by those who responded have been analysed as set out in Appendix
2. 178 responses are from FY1-FY4 postcode areas.
The population of Blackpool is 139,300 (2018 JSNA) and this equates to 0.12 of the
Blackpool population. However, some responses did not provide addresses.

5.28

Out of the total number of objections received, a number of the responses were in
identical format with persons providing their names and addresses on standard
letters.

5.29

To ensure that the objections are fully considered by Members, copies of all
individual representations with personal information redacted, including those in
support of the proposals are attached as Appendix 3b.

5.30

To assist Members in their consideration of the objections received a summary of the
main issues raised within the objections have been categorised and provided below
together with officer comments.

5.31

Objections
Loss of open space
242 (82.5 %) representations mentioned this as a ground for objection
The main issues raised in this category are:
 The site is a valued open space to residents and visitors of all ages
 The site is used by golfers and for other recreational uses e.g. walking, dog
walking, is by local groups, use by hospital staff and visitors
 The current use of the land is of greater benefit of people of Blackpool
 The green space is irreplaceable
 Green space brings multitude of benefits: social, economic and environment
 The land should be left for future generations
 Greenspace is a premium and safeguarding of open spaces should be
paramount
 There is a lack of open space in Blackpool.
 This is one of largest green spaces in Blackpool.
 The negative effect of the loss of green space on physical and mental health
well being
 Stanley Park is an award winning park
 Handing over public open space to private developers
 Green space is vital to the health and well-being of Blackpool residents
 Green spaces support a healthier lifestyle
 Open space belongs to the people of Blackpool
 The site is listed at the Land Registry as being for the enjoyment of the public
as part of the Stanley Park complex.

Page 10

5.32

Officer comment
The loss of open green space resulting from the proposed disposal and appropriation
of the site is a matter for consideration by members having regard to the relative
needs or uses for which the land has been or may be put. In particular, members
must consider, having regard to the development proposals for the site arising from
the procurement exercise and in light of the representations made in response to the
notices of proposed appropriation and disposal, whether the site is required in the
public interest for open space and whether there is sufficient justification for the use
of the powers of appropriation and disposal as set out in this report.
Whilst it is acknowledged that should the proposals to appropriate and dispose of the
land proceed, and planning permission for the proposed development is granted,
there will be a loss of open space, it is considered that the loss can be justified by the
need to repurpose and facilitate the future development of the site that is likely to
contribute to the achievement of the promotion or improvement of the economic
and social well-being of the area.
Parts of the site are subject to covenants which are noted on the Council’s title to the
land. These covenants restrict the use of parts of the site for any purpose other than
as a public park or garden or public pleasure ground or ground dedicated to the
recreation of the public. Any disposal of the land would be made subject to those
covenants.
To the extent that the loss of open space is a relevant planning consideration, it will
be considered at such time as a planning application in respect of the proposals is
submitted for consideration by the Council in its capacity as local planning authority.
This process is entirely separate to the subject matter of this report.

5.33

Location of site for proposed development
In total 234 (80%) representations mentioned this as a ground for objection
The main issues raised under this category are:
 Other areas of Blackpool are in greater need of investment and
redevelopment
 There are more suitable locations in the town for the development
 Development should be on brownfield land
 Development should be among existing tourist facilities
 Plans are not in keeping with the surroundings
 The area around Stanley Park is predominantly residential – development
unsuitable for a residential area
 Land could be put to other uses e.g. extension for hospital, allotments

Page 11

5.34

Officer Comment
The issues raised are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this
report because they do not directly relate to the matters that the Council is required
to consider when determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned
land. As explained in this report, a procurement exercise was specifically undertaken
in relation to this site due to the need to repurpose the Council’s land. Proposals
were invited from bidders for the future operation of the site as a leisure facility. The
proposals in respect of the site are those which were submitted by the successful
bidder following evaluation of all of the submitted proposals. To the extent that such
issues are relevant material planning considerations, they will, if submitted in
response to consultation on any planning application that is made in respect of the
proposed development, be considered at such time as a planning application in
respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the Council in its capacity
as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to the subject matter of
this report.

5.35

Traffic/Highways/ Parking
In total 205 (70%) representations mentioned these issues as grounds for objection
The main issues raised under this category are:
 Infrastructure will not cope with increased traffic resulting from proposals
 Surrounding roads are already seriously congested especially during peak
times
 Highway safety concerns due to increase in traffic.
 Increase in traffic will impact on traffic to the hospital including access and
delays to emergency services, to general public attending the hospital
 Parking problems around the hospital will become worse
 Dangerous junctions
 State of existing road
 Pedestrian safety including school children

5.36

Officer comment
The issues raised are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this
report because they do not relate to the matters that the Council is required to
consider when determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned
land. To the extent that such issues are relevant material planning considerations,
they will , if submitted in response to consultation on any planning application that is
made in respect of the proposed development be considered at such time as a
planning application in respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the
Council in its capacity as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to
the subject matter of this report.

Page 12

5.37

Wildlife/ecology/destruction of natural habitats and conservation
In total 157 (53.5%) representations mentioned these issues as grounds for objection
The main issues raised:
 Proposals will lead to a loss of flora and fauna
 The site is a valuable haven to local wildlife
 Proposals will lead to a loss of habitat and feeding ground for wildlife in the
area
 Site is close to Conservation Area
 Damage to adjacent Woodland Gardens area could be irreversible.
 Site is home to many species of native birds
 Site is next to the biggest protected heronry in the north west
 The site is a vital link in the green corridor between north and central
Blackpool
 Hedgehog Society have identified the site as being a key release site for
rescued hedgehogs

5.38

Officer comment
The issues raised are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this
report because they do not relate to the matters that the Council is required to
consider when determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned
land. To the extent that such issues are relevant material planning considerations,
they will, if submitted in response to consultation on any planning application that is
made in respect of the proposed development, be considered at such time as a
planning application in respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the
Council in its capacity as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to
the subject matter of this report.

5.39

Impact on Blackpool Victoria Hospital and Emergency Services
In total 147 (50%) representations mentioned these issues as grounds for objection
The main issues raised:
 Congestion will cause delays for access to and from the hospital by
emergency services, visitors and those attending for hospital appointments.
 Impact on difficulties and delays in achieving hospital targets
 Air and noise pollution from the construction phase and subsequent use of
the proposed development next to the hospital/ cardiac centre
 Hospital patients, staff and visitors will lose the surrounding views, fresh air
and the use of the green space
 Impact on patient care and health and safety risks
 Prevention of future extension of the hospital

Page 13

5.40

Officer comment
These issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this report
because they do not relate to the matters that the Council is required to consider
when determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned land. To the
extent that such issues are relevant material planning considerations, they will , if
submitted in response to consultation on any planning application that is made in
respect of the proposed development be considered at such time as a planning
application in respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the Council
in its capacity as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to the
subject matter of this report.

5.41

Environmental Issues
In total 145 (49%) of representations mentioned these issues as a ground for
objection
The main issues raised under this category are:
 Proposals are contrary to government and Council’s environmental strategy
 Pollution from vehicles
 Impact of noise pollution on hospital and surrounding area
 Effect on climate change and carbon footprint
 Proposals contradict Council’s commitment to the climate emergency

5.42

Officer comment
These issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this report
because they do not relate to the matters that the Council is required to consider
when determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned land. To the
extent that such issues are relevant material planning considerations, they will, if
submitted in response to consultation on any planning application that is made in
respect of the proposed development be considered at such time as a planning
application in respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the Council
in its capacity as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to the
subject matter of this report.

5.43

Heritage
In total 114 (39%) representations mentioned these matters as grounds for objection
to the proposals.
The main issues raise under this categories are:
 The golf course is an important part of Blackpool’s heritage
 Loss of beautiful and historic sporting landscape

Page 14




5.44

Loss of unique golf course designed by Dr Alistair McKenzie
Conservation status of west side of the golf course and Stanley Park
Conservation Area
Part of the site is Grade 2 listed status

Officer Comment
Whilst it is acknowledged that should the proposals to appropriate and dispose of the
land proceed, and planning permission for the proposed development is granted,
there will be a loss of open space it is considered that the proposals for the site
(subject to any planning permissions being granted), will facilitate the future
development of the site that is likely to contribute to the achievement of the
promotion or improvement of the economic and social well-being of the area.
Some of the above issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered
in this report because they do not relate to the matters that the Council is required
to consider when determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned
land. To the extent that the above issues are relevant material planning
considerations, they will, if submitted in response to consultation on any planning
application that is made in respect of the proposed development, be considered at
such time as a planning application in respect of the proposals is submitted for
consideration by the Council in its capacity as local planning authority. This process is
entirely separate to the subject matter of this report.

5.45

Tourism
In total 99 (34%) representations mentioned these matters as reasons for objection
to the proposals
The main issues raise under this category are:






5.46

There is enough tourist accommodation in Blackpool
Diversion of tourists from tourist areas in the centre of Blackpool
Locally owned businesses will suffer as the development will take trade away
from other Blackpool tourist facilities
Holiday homes out of the town centre when Council is supporting new hotels
close to the tourist area
Will impact on existing struggling tourist accommodation

Officer Comment
These issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this report
because they do not relate to matters that the Council is required to consider when
determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned land. To the extent

Page 15

that such issues are relevant material planning considerations, they will, if submitted
in response to consultation on any planning application that is made in respect of the
proposed development, be considered at such time as a planning application in
respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the Council in its capacity
as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to the subject matter of
this report.
5.47

Loss of trees
In total 91 (31%)representations mentioned this as reason for objection to the
proposals
The main issues raised under this category are:
 Blackpool has lowest tree canopy in UK
 Trees are needed to fight climate change
 Loss of trees including mature trees.
 Planting new trees is no substitute for destruction of mature trees

5.48

Officer Comment
These issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this report
because they do not relate to matters that the Council is required to consider when
determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned land. To the extent
that such issues are relevant material planning considerations, they will, if submitted
in response to consultation on any planning application that is made in respect of the
proposed development be considered at such time as a planning application in
respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the Council in its capacity
as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to the subject matter of
this report.

5.49

Value of disposal
In total 72 (24.5%) representations mentioned this as a reason for objection to the
proposals
The issue raised under this category is that of concern that the site is being gifted or
proposed to be disposed of by the Council at below market value.

5.50

Officer comment
The Council has conducted an open and transparent procurement exercise whereby
the opportunity was advertised to the market. Submitted tenders have been
evaluated using the most economically advantageous tender analysis and the
preferred bidder selected on the basis of the highest scoring tender. The evaluation
of the submitted tenders included evaluation on price amongst other criteria. As the
proposed disposal of the land follows an open and transparent procurement exercise

Page 16

it is considered that appropriate processes have been followed to bring the
opportunity to the market and to secure best value.
5.51

Loss of golf facility
In total 51 (17%) representations mentioned this as a reason for objection to the
proposals.
The main issues raised under this category are:








5.52

Golf course is loved and used by local residents and visitors
Residents are losing the benefit of an important health and leisure facility
Loss of only 18 hole municipal golf course in the area – loss of opportunity for
people of all ages to play and learn to play golf
Site more beneficial to local community as a golf course than holiday lodges
and an adrenaline park
Golfers will not want to play 9 holes
Reduction to 9 holes will reduce the viability of the Clubhouse and facilities
Club is a social focal point for many people in the local community.

Officer comment
The proposals for the west side of the current golf course are for the retention of a
golf facility in the form of a 9 hole golf course. The proposals include investment in
golf facilities and the development of golf training facilities. The proposals for the
east side of the site are for a leisure development.
Whilst it is acknowledged that should the proposals to appropriate and dispose of the
land proceed, subject to planning permission for the proposals being granted, there
will be a loss of part of the golf course to an alternative use, as explained in this
report, the operation of an 18 golf course on the site has, over a period of a number
of years not been financially sustainable by either the public or private sector. The
Council, through the procurement exercise in respect of the site, sought expressions
of interest in line with its objective of securing long term sustainable solution for the
site whilst retaining the site for leisure use. It is considered that the proposals for the
site (subject to any planning permissions being granted), will facilitate the future
development of the site that is likely to contribute to the achievement of the
promotion or improvement of the economic and social well-being of the area.

Page 17

5.53

Developer/ Procurement Process/ Risk
In total 43 (15%) representations mentioned these matters as reasons for objecting
to the proposals.
The main points made under these categories are:
 Developer has no track record of delivering this type of development
 Developer has no experience in running and maintaining a golf facility
 Council has ignored concerns raised about the developer and has ignored a
report on due diligence provided to it
 Concern as to the capability of the developer to fund and deliver the
development
 Financial impact of COVID 19 on risk
 Adrenaline World is only a concept so there is a degree of risk attached
 Developer has no links to the town
 Council has engineered the outcome through the procurement process
 Lack of transparency in procurement process
 Concern as to Council’s due diligence

5.54

Officer comment
These issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this report
because they do not relate to matters that the Council is required to consider when
determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned land.
The procurement exercise and the due diligence carried out by the Council as part of
that process are separate to the subject matter of this report. The report to the
Executive meeting held on 15 July 2019 explained the procurement process that had
been undertaken in respect of the site and the decision was made to appoint HIP as
the preferred bidder. The Council has already provided full responses to a number of
requests for information and letters in relation to issues relating to the proposed
developer, the procurement process and due diligence.

5.55

Proposals contrary to Council policy
In total 26 (9%) representations mentioned these matters as reasons for objecting to
the proposals.
The main points made under this category are:
 Proposals are contrary to the Development Plan.
 The Local Plan does not mention this site for development
 Proposals are contrary to the Council’s blue and green infrastructure plan
 Blue and green infrastructure strategy highlights lack of open space and tree
cover
 Failure of Council to comply with policies to improve town green spaces and
infrastructure and promote green recovery

Page 18

5.56

Officer comment
The majority of the points raised in respect of the above issues will be planning
considerations when any planning application is submitted and considered by the
Council as local planning authority.
The remit of the Council’s Blue and Green Infrastructure Strategy is not to safeguard
every green space in Blackpool from development but to secure quality of green
space. Whilst it is acknowledged that should the proposals to appropriate and
dispose of the land proceed, there will be a loss of green space, it is considered that
the proposals for the site (subject to any planning permissions being granted), will
facilitate the future development of the site that is likely to contribute to the
achievement of the promotion or improvement of the economic and social wellbeing of the area.
The Blue and Green Infrastructure Strategy will be taken into account at such time as
a planning application in respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by
the Council in its capacity as local planning authority This process is entirely separate
to the subject matter of this report.
Any proposals to develop the site and the accordance of the proposals with the
Development Plan policies will be assessed at such time as a planning application in
respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the Council in its capacity
as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to the subject matter of
this report.

5.57

Flooding/ Drainage
A total of 20 (7%) representations mentioned these matters as reasons for objecting
to the proposals.
The main points made under these categories are:
 Proposed development is on a known flood plain
 Land is prone to flooding
 Development will cause flooding to surrounding areas and properties
 Development on the east side of the course will have detrimental impact on
existing flood prevention measures
 Surrounding roads cannot dispose of water in bad weather

Page 19

5.58

Officer comment
These issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this report
because they do not relate to matters that the Council is required to consider when
determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned land. To the extent
that such issues are relevant material planning considerations, they will, if submitted
in response to consultation on any planning application that is made in respect of the
proposed development, be considered at such time as a planning application in
respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the Council in its capacity
as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to the subject matter of
this report.

5.59

Alternative proposals for the site
In total 18 (6%) representations mentioned these matters as reasons for objecting to
the proposals.
The main points made under this category are:
 There is an alternative, locally led proposal available
 Council has refused the option of a not for profit organization running the golf
course and paying rent to the Council
 Dismissal of proposals from qualified professionals to maintain an 18 hole golf
course
 Under correct management the golf course could thrive
These issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this report
because they do not relate to matters that the Council is required to consider when
determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned land. . For the
reasons set out in this report, an open and transparent procurement exercise was
undertaken in relation to the golf course site and proposals were invited from
bidders in respect of the future operation of the site as a leisure facility. The
proposals set out in this report in respect of the site are those which were submitted
by the successful bidder who was selected following evaluation of all of the
submitted proposals in accordance with publicly available evaluation criteria.

5.60

Consultation/Publicity
In total 14 (5%) representations mentioned these matters as reasons for objecting to
the proposals.
The main points made under these categories are:
 No resident consultation has taken place and the Council previously said there
would be
 Plans show no detail
 Unfair process of giving publicity

Page 20






5.61

Ballot should have been conducted
Decision has already been taken
Council blocking attempts to evaluate the scheme democratically
Council rushing through to the planning stage
Wishes of local people/ general public has been ignored

Officer comment
The statutory publicity requirements relating to the subject matter of this report
have been complied with in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government Act 1972 and the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. In accordance
with the statutory procedure, this report sets out all of the representations received
in connection with the proposals and directs members to consider the objections
submitted prior to making a decision.
The subject matter of the report is the proposed appropriation and disposal of the
site. It does not relate to consideration of detailed development proposals which is
an entirely separate process. At such time as a planning application is submitted to
the Council, this will be publicised in accordance with statutory requirements and
consultation will be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s Statement of
Community Involvement giving interested parties the opportunity to comment on
the proposals.

5.62

Petition
In total 13 (4%) representations mentioned these matters as reasons for objecting to
the proposals.
The main points made under this category is the dismissal by the Council of the views
of over 8,000 people who signed a petition against the development

5.63

Officer Response
A petition entitled ‘Joint Petition to Save Stanley Park Golf Course’ with over 8,000
signatories was previously submitted to the Council. The petition was reported to
and debated at the Full Council meeting on 25 September 2019 in accordance with
the Council’s Petition Scheme. Following consideration of the petition the decision of
the Council was to take no action with regard to the petition.

5.64

Use of Appropriation Powers
In total 5 (2%) representations mentioned these matters as reasons for objecting to
the proposals. The main points raised under this category are:
 The land is used daily, 25,000 rounds of golf were played last year so the
requirement that the land is “not required for the purpose for which is was

Page 21







5.65

held” in the Local Government Act 1972 is not met
Not a legitimate use of appropriation powers
Appropriation needs to be justified and reasons provided
The land is not disused, derelict or redundant.
Use of powers of appropriation is a consequence of the procurement process
Land is not surplus to requirements
Appropriation is not necessary as there are no third party issues

Officer Response
This report addresses the justification for the proposed use of the powers to
appropriate land and directs members to the consideration of the relevant statutory
tests 1990 when considering whether to appropriate the site for planning purposes..
There is no requirement for the land to have fallen into disuse before the Council
may appropriate it for some other purpose. The Council must have regard to the
relative needs or uses for which the land has been or may be put and is entitled to
conduct a balancing exercise between the need for competing uses with the needs of
the wider community at the forefront of that balancing exercise. In particular, the
Council must consider, having regard to the proposals arising from the procurement
exercise and in light of the objections submitted in response to the notice of
proposed appropriation, whether Site B is no longer required in the public interest
for open space/recreation. The fact that Site B is currently used for the purposes for
which it is held is not the sole consideration. The procurement exercise in relation to
the site was specifically carried out due to the need for the Council to repurpose the
land.The use of the power to appropriate Site B for planning purposes is considered
to be necessary because the proposals involve disposing of the site for development
(subject to planning permission being granted) and subject to the Council being
satisfied that it meets the statutory tests, the relevant and correct purpose for the
Council to hold the land is for planning purposes pending disposal. Without an
appropriation for planning purposes, the site could not be developed or repurposed
to achieve a more sustainable use of the site. Whilst it is acknowledged that should
the proposals to appropriate and dispose of the land proceed, and planning
permission for the proposed development is granted and implemented, there will be
a loss of open space, it is considered that the proposals for the site (subject to any
planning permissions being granted) , will facilitate the future development of the
site that is likely to contribute to the achievement of the promotion or improvement
of the economic and social well-being of the area.
Powers of appropriation for planning purposes are not limited to use in
circumstances where there are third party rights, In this case the proposed use of the
power to appropriate will not override any such third party rights.

Page 22

5.65

Other
Responses received also mentioned the following headings as reasons for objections
 Crime and Anti-social behavior
 Impact on school numbers
 Increase in shops
 Public rights of way
 Council’s mismanagement of the golf facility lead to a decline in numbers
 Housing will end up being built on the site
 Devaluing properties in the area
 Local people will not use the development
 Plans do not detail the buildings and access and egress
 Development will increase the population and cause overcrowding of the area
 Profits will leave the town to pay the developers investors
 Land should have first been made available to the Blackpool Victoria Hospital
 Utility infrastructure
 Impact on surrounding area during construction phase
 Go Ape facility on West Park Drive is rarely used which is proof of no demand
for similar leisure facilities
 Conflict with proposals for the Blackpool Central development

These issues are not relevant to the matters required to be considered in this report
because they do not relate to matters that the Council is required to consider when
determining whether to appropriate or dispose of Council owned land. To the extent
that such issues are relevant material planning considerations, they will if submitted
in response to consultation on any planning application that is made in respect of the
proposed development be considered at such time as a planning application in
respect of the proposals is submitted for consideration by the Council in its capacity
as local planning authority. This process is entirely separate to the subject matter of
this report.
5.67

Support
A total of 3 representations were received in support of the proposals. Comments in
support included the investment in the site and the creation of jobs and that there
are sufficient golf facilities in the area.

5.68

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

Page 23

No

5.68

List of Appendices:
Appendix 2a – Plans of Site A, Site B and Site C
Appendix 2b - Copies of representations (personal data redacted)

6.0

Legal considerations:

6.1

It is considered that the land shown edged red on the plans attached at Appendix 2a
(Site A and Site B) by virtue of the fact that it is used for public recreational purposes
consists of or comprises, open space within the definition in section 336 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 which is “any land laid out as a public garden, or used
for the purposes of public recreation, or land which is a disused burial ground”.

6.2

Proposed Disposal of Site A
Sections 123 (1) and (2) of the Local Government Act 1972 enable the Council to
dispose of land in any manner they wish subject to the requirement to dispose of the
land at the best consideration that can reasonably be obtained. As the proposed
disposal of the land follows an open and transparent procurement exercise it is
considered that appropriate processes have been followed to bring the opportunity
to the market and to secure best value.

6.3

Section 123 (2A) of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that before disposing of
any land consisting of or forming part of an open space, the Council must advertise
the proposed disposal in two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper and consider
any objections to the proposed disposal which may be made to them. These
provisions have been complied with, as set out in this report.

6.4

Proposed Appropriation of Site B
In order for land to be appropriated as proposed in this report, the following points
must be considered and determined by the Council;
 Identification of the purpose for which the land is currently held;
 Whether the land is no longer required for that purpose;
 Whether the appropriation will facilitate the carrying out of development,
redevelopment or improvement on or in relation to the land and whether this
is likely to contribute to the achievement of the economic, social or
environmental well-being of the area.

6.5

Section 122 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 enables the Council to appropriate
to any other purpose for which the Council are authorised to acquire land by
agreement any land which belongs to the Council and is no longer required for the
purpose for which it is held immediately before the appropriation.

Page 24

6.6

In order to appropriate land, the Council needs to be satisfied that the provisions of
Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972 are met, and in particular, that the
land is no longer required for the purposes for which it was held immediately before
appropriation.

6.7

The Council must also be satisfied that the land should be appropriated such that it
becomes held for planning purposes by applying the tests set out in section 226(1)
and (1A) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

6.8

Section 227 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 enables the Council to
acquire land for development and other planning purposes.

6.9

Before a decision can be made to appropriate the land, regard has to be had for
section 122(2A) of the Local Government Act 1927. Section 122 (2A) of the Local
Government Act 1972 requires that before appropriating any land consisting of or
forming part of an open space, the Council must advertise the proposed
appropriation in two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper and consider any
objections to the proposed appropriation which may be made to them. These
provisions have been complied with, as set out in this report.

6.10

The question as to whether the land is no longer required for the purpose for which it
is held immediately before the appropriation is one solely for the Council in good
faith to decide.

6.11

In addition to the question as to whether the land is no longer required for the
purpose for which it is held immediately before the appropriation, the Council also
needs to be satisfied that the land should be appropriated to planning purposes by
applying the tests set out in section 226(1) and (1A) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990. These are
(a) That the Council thinks that the appropriation will facilitate the carrying out of
development, re-development or improvement on or in relation to the land
and that such development, re-development or improvement is likely to
contribute to the achievement of the promotion or improvement of the
economic, social and/or environmental well-being of their area , and/or
(b) That the appropriation is required for a purpose which it is necessary to
achieve in the interests of the proper planning of an area in which the land is
situated.

6.12

Proposed Disposal of Site B
Section 233 (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that where any
land has been appropriated by a local planning authority for planning purposes, the
authority may dispose of the land to such person, in such manner and subject to such

Page 25

conditions as appear to them to be expedient in order(a) To secure the best use of that or other land and any buildings or works which
have been, or are to be, erected, constructed or carried out on it (whether by
themselves or by any other person) , or
(b) to secure the erection, construction or carrying out on it of any buildings or
works appearing to them to be needed for the proper planning of the area of
the authority.
6.13

Section 233(3) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the consent
of the Secretary of State is required where the disposal of land is to be for a
consideration less than the best that can reasonably be obtained and the disposal is
not the grant of a lease of 7 years or less or the assignment of a lease where there
are 7 years or less unexpired. As the proposed disposal of the land follows an open
and transparent procurement exercise it is considered that appropriate processes
have been followed to bring the opportunity to the market and to secure best value
and that the consent of the Secretary of State is not required.

6.14

Section 233(4) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires that before
disposing under this section of any land which consists of or forms part of an open
space, the Council must advertise the proposed disposal in two consecutive weeks in
a local newspaper and consider any objections to the proposed disposal which may
be made to them. These provisions have been complied with, as set out in this
report.

7.0

Human Resources considerations:

7.1

None for the Council.

8.0

Equalities considerations:

8.1

The purpose of this report is to consider representations arising from a statutory
process.

8.2

At such time as a planning application is submitted for the proposed development of
the site, this will be publicised in accordance with statutory requirements and the
Council’s Statement of Community Involvement and interested parties given
opportunity to comment.

9.0

Financial considerations:

9.1

There are no specific financial considerations arising from the matters in this report.
Financial matters have previously been detailed in the report to the Executive
meeting on 15 July 2019 seeking authority to appoint HIP as the preferred bidder at

Page 26

the conclusion of the procurement exercise.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

The proposed appropriation and disposal of the open space land as set out in this
report is required in connection with the proposed legal arrangements to implement
the successful tender resulting from the procurement exercise for the Stanley Park
Golf Course site. Should the proposed appropriation and disposal not be authorised
then the arrangements to implement the successful tender will not proceed.

10.2

The proposed disposal of Site B will be conditional on planning permission having
been obtained. If planning permission is not granted, the disposal will not proceed.

10.3

The Council’s statutory duties as local planning authority and local highway authority
are separate to its duties as land owner relating to the consideration of the proposed
appropriation and disposal of land. The consideration of any matters relating to
planning application will be dealt with separately and interested parties will have the
opportunity to make representations as part of that process

11.0

Ethical considerations:

11.1

Interested parties have been given the opportunity to make representations on the
proposals set out in this report and any objections received are to be considered
prior to a decision to appropriate and/or dispose of the land being made.

12.0

Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1

Internal: Growth and Prosperity Programme Director, Growth and Prosperity Board,
Finance, Legal, Community and Environmental Services.
External: DWF (legal)

12.2

The statutory procedures explained in this report directs how consultation is to be
undertaken. The Council advertised public notices providing information as to the
proposals to dispose of and appropriate the open space land as set out in this report
in accordance with the statutory requirements. Interested parties were given a
period of 21 days to make representations to the Council. Additionally, a press
release was issued on the Council’s website notifying interested parties that the
proposals were being advertised. An explanation of the reasons for the public notices
was provided on the Council’s website and placed with the copy notices and plans
which were made available for public inspection.

Page 27

13.0

Background papers:

13.1

None.

14.0

Key decision information:

14.1

Is this a key decision?

14.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

14.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

14.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

15.0

Call-in information:

15.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to
be exempt from the call-in process?

15.2

No

If yes, please give reason: n/a

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
16.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

17.0

Date approved:

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1
18.0

Executive decision:

18.1

19.0

Date of Decision:

19.1

Page 28

No

No

20.0

Reason(s) for decision:

20.1
21.1

Date Decision published:

21.1
22.0

Executive Members in attendance:

22.1

23.0

Call-in:

23.1
24.0

Notes:

24.1

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

26

2

1
22

2

1

2
7

1a

to

19

8

16

8
10

27

23

4

2

33
35
49 to

26

3a
3

11

CH

20
18

33
a

17
9

CT
H
AF

FI
NC

1

92

UE
BU
RY

102

AV
EN

4
18 to

LO
SE
4

ES
AF
T
SH

2
4

46

8

52

50

48
50

39

1

9

11

22

Dr

15
21

56
32

3

33

7
11

6
10

58

1

126

112

E
15

D

68

9
16

12

16

16

5

98
88

161

11

84
74

60

151

44

62

Club
HE

YS

17

145

RO

AD

1

to

42

Nursery

46

1

a
143

10

32

54

147

48
42

12

24

11

Chapel
(private)

Shelter

4

2

22

135

to
129 1
13

12

2
123

121

1

FB
El Sub Sta

119

117

E

22

OS

CL

Annacliffe
Residential
Home

Shelter

RK
D

125

91a

91

Dra

Victoria Hospital

87

Pond

in

2
13

FB

Tan
ks

RIV
E

127

2

49

3

24

E
SID

L
HIL

138
134

Multi-storey Car
Park

Chy

93

25

2

60

UE

3

22

5

36

143

1

El Su
b Sta

EN
AV

UE

15

4

1

52

72

17

11

15

153

15

RK D
RIVE
11

249

66

21

NOR
TH P
A

4

80

1

1

109

36

86
92

28

EY

T PA

7
25
1
25

20

100

5

NE

NN

EAS

9

30

100

5

DR
IV

120

110
7

25

46

25

136

5
17

11

60

1a

3
26

44

11

OO

68

114

1
11

BU
RW

2

9

27

29
3

11

2
78

18
27

12

82

5

ai
n

20

92

1
1
24

14

7
23

21

OS
E
CL

3

RN

21

73

9

BIT
TE

1

22

18

RC
LO
SE

18

27

SA
ND
PIP
E

3
23

28

44

29

21

24

1
15

2

19

1

37
10

to

15

34
32

36

7

11

18

39

TE

31

26

49

AL
CO
UR
T

7
19

36

9

22

5

36
33

16
22
26

9
21

26

49

28

7
59

24

1
21

19

20

27

1
120

69

2
27

20

2

3
20

41

14

12

12

11

39

NE
TC

7
19

2

36a

27

16

9
20

A
VE
N
U
E

1

51

LIN

20

65

8

79

12

21

19

Y
WA

19

11
11 a

18

93

8

39
WAY
AVEN
UE

38

5
21

3

3

TOR

89

9
19

37

NETH

7

5
19

SWA
Y A
VEN
UE

105

151

13
25

2
8

79

3
21

9
3

N

7

RO

25

Hall

HE

53

23

7

173

1

3
18

158

37

61

2

160

47

49

11

12

63

Newton
NE
TO
NS
UR

2

21

RT

58

2

15

CO
U

25

23

61

15

37

20

59

45

11

AR
D

26

46

11

41

5
LL

7

130

138

83

5

154
156 150
152
148
142

11a

25
49

83

21

2

36
19

3

8

88
90

97

122
126

10

28
Pond

2

94
92

12
0

136

14

57
a

15

10
4

5

10
9

45

11

1

14

36

51

Posts

Newton Hall
Holiday
Park

57

19

26

26

LB

35

20
34 to

9

35

15

14

20

36

Shelter

Pond

ARK

N
AVE

47

142

70

2

30

34
47

3

1

2

34
36

102

96
98

100

WAY

18

1

34

a

22
AY

a

8

12

12

18

26
24 2
2

110

to 1
08

AVEN
UE

22

24

4

69

81
NETH

10

14

7

36
50 to

St

2

6

20

58

1

1a

HAT CL

W

El
S

ub

T
LA
PA

25

3

S
ER
OV

9

e
rin s
Sh rde
ng u
vi Lo
gi f
ks y o
an ad
Th L
e ur
Th f O
o

28

56

74

12

22

5

17

1

1

PL

EC
STON

15

Sta

2

52

2

11

38

b
Su
El

W
HI

2a

8

45

237

7

1

48

60

9

5

49

149

1
23

1
18
1

25

37

1 61

7

23

2a

3

1
13

59
139

2

1
8

2

10

45

8

40

24

3

40

169

74

24

14

60
66

14
2

1

2

9

SNIPE CLOSE

4

1
18 6

37
35

40

Sta

50

5

26

29
30

8

31

7

20

43

Sewage Ppg Sta

a

148
14 8

14

SE
LO

C
INE

Nurses Home

Car Park

WHINP

ION

160
158

11

1

El Sub Sta

52
66 to

Pond

12

A

UE
VEN

H
INC

42

ALB

AY

IVE
DR

2

LEW

ON
WT
NE

8a

ING

172

2

E

21

Blenheim
House

18

UE
VEN
DA
OO

Shelter

4

RIV
ED

10

T
SCO

31

Y
WA

2a

G
KIN

43

AVENUE

1

33

ENF

GRE

Multistorey Car Park

186

16

BIRCHWAY

11

51
65 to
RT
COU

64

14

184

47

43

44

b

57

26
27
43

Su

194

ALW

E

41

M

El Sub Sta

4

22

NU

VE
Y A
WA
RD
FO

5

37

66

ES
TT

Gas
Gov

RK
PA

67

22

33

23

15
11a

206

200

6

4

RE

210

UE

3

Pond

Vicarage

T

CO

Presbytery

216

to
202

24

47

31

25

El

A
AY

VEN

11

AC
PL

O

2

NUE
AVE

LEW
ING

69

19

AD
RO

AY

37

23
33

79

5

E

6
22

14

EW
DEN

47

89

27

1

0
22

36

24

AVENUE

OSE

63
59

7

A'S
Crown
Lodge

4

99

2
21 3

UE

38

18

25
71

1

9

Allotment Gardens

2

109

9

FOUR LANE
ENDS

32

101

8

MA

23

117

UE

15

D
EL

11

33

24

Victoria
Mansions

Posts

AV
EN

45

23

48

0
24

127

24

HEATHWAY

13

ON CL

TT
STRA

81

25

59 to 75

Victoria
Mansions

11

FI
HO
SC

6
9

5

RG

UE

38

13
E

Scout
Hut

9

10

29

7

HERON WAY

26

BU
AL

RIV

126

26

44

1

101

91

D

1 to 58

139

111

EN

N

W

2

113

79

COVEWAY AVENUE

Shelter

2

80

63

83

120

101

14
4
14
8

7

26

84

85

103

5
26

61

124

ta

75

15

99

65

6

86

Page 31

112

El Sub Sta

7

27

El Sub Sta

93
FB

2

91
85

164

12

65

1

Club

Old Number 4 &
Freemason's
Hotel (PH)

1 to
10

S
ub

AY
SW
ER

6

N
AVE
AY
SW
TOR

46

1

236

S
El

10

123

V
Y A
WA
RD
FO

E

23

n

i
ra

DR

ST

12

36

UE
VEN
Y A
WA

45

AV
E

22

AY
TW
ES
CR

16

60

a
141

S
RD
BA

8

1

15
EY

FB

2

6

U
EN
AV
AY
SW
RD
BA

DA
UN
TE
S

D
BI

4

71
El Sub Sta

25
1

TO

Y
WA

2

Pond

39

A

21

E

KE

38

TCB

57

RD
FO

5
11

IV

26

LA

16
El Sub
Sta

UE

N
VE

2

36

77

URT

6

11

9

32

46

7

EY CO

r

e
Sh

87

1

1

37

3

lte

ck
Tra

UE

FIE

24

SE

10

17

NE

48

EN

AV
AY

AV

LD

ST

WE

12

15

NU
E

17

IRW
B LA

24

AR

10

9

56

50

15

11

14

UE

EB
GR

W

2

Play Area

26

CH

Y

LE
NG
BI

19

Works

E
LAC
MP
THA
BEE

UE

LO
EC

2

1

Sh

te
el

33

Sports Court

1

EN
AV

O
NW

r

5

70

26

D
ROA
DEN
CAM

OD

3

Allotment Gardens

14

UE
EN

23
AV

12

Health
Centre

64

16

Car Park
Posts

OS
S

17

15

LB

6
24

44

76

UE
AY AVEN

BROCKW

16

D
ROA

2

11

3

68 66

1

EM

3

7

25

46

80

30

11

HIT

EN

Shelter

UE

72

34

Builders
Yard

W

27

26

NUE
AVE
RLEY
BRIE

21

23

11

Post

4
25

27

90

21

42

72

31

4

TO

NE

1

15

KW
AY
AVE
N

DR

AY

84

62

I

N

W

Pond
2
2a

W

11

BEC

VE

9

15

50

AVE
NUE

149

2

HLY
N

Balancing Pond

1

98

52

RAT

141

N
RO
HE

69

26

38

1

6

26

11

59

Kingscote Park

10

86
88

58

14

25

81
54

Pegasus School

48

68

EN

9

AVE
NUE

AV

ER

B
ST

6

139

AD

OA
D

15
25

ANG
ER

THORNBANK

D

R
NA

GR
TCB

90
92

CK

UE

23

20
9

BRE

6

21
3

LAR

28

28
0
28

12

Telephone
Exchange

38

UE
EN
AV

26

4

DR

1

Spire Fylde Coast Hospital

4

S
UI

123

Shelter

Mast

2

LO

82

14

ON

WT
NE

8

28

R

RT

ST

72

113

IVE

UE

8
15

St Mark's
Vicarage

EN
AV

BE

2

62

D
AN

11

103

50

AVE
NUE

11

20
5

DRU
MM
OND

1
11 13
5

RO

El Sub
Sta

Sta

38

24

26

1

2

Newton
Court

ub
El S
Sta

84

82
E
DRIV
TON
NEW

r

Mast (Telecommunication)

Pond
Cardiac Centre

55

53a
12

Tank

E
Gas
Gov

8

KD

17
FB

ESS

Shelter

Path (um)

Double Wall

Shelter

Pond

E

7
49

AV

NU

T'S

VE

EN

NA

18

EM

TO

CL

S

2

R
TE

MIL

ST

IS
O
CL

PC

EN

1

UE

11

17

Parkwood

RIV

53
R
PA
RTH
NO

TH
E

20

15

14

78

Shelte

11

78a

41

Pond

15

15

3

1

15

6

S
PH
SE

O
CL

SE

10

E

JO
ST

14

11

RIDGWOOD
AVE
NU

39

FB

35
Gas
Gov

15

Stanley Park Golf Course

12

33

PARK

in
Dra

EAST

Tower

Fire
Station

Tank
FB

DRIVE

31

25
23a
rch
t Chu
Chris rage
Vica

23

Pond

Hillcrest
Dra
in

Pond

60
IVE
K DR

RT

H

FS

P AR

NO

Drai
n

ain

Dr

21

47
Footbridge
Footbridge

Footbridge
Footbridge

Club
House

11

Salisbury Woodland
Garden

WOODSIDE DRIVE
WO
ODS
IDE

Boating Lake

Water

DRIV

E

Footbridge
Footbridge

s
se
Ro rden
Ga
Water

nd

32

Po

1

PCs

Pond

Mod
el
Railw Passeng
ay
er

Car Park
Shelter
El Sub Sta
Bowling Green

North
Lodge

Waterfall

Water

Pond

Pond

FB

ESS

Shelter

LB

2

South
Lodge
Shelter

Shelter

Footbridge

Vis
ito
rC
en
tre

PCs

Shelter

Pond
Pond
Pond

Tank

Car Park

TCB

FS

OW
RL
BACRESCE

Pond

Pond
FB

Boat
House

Pond

NT

12

Sea Lion Pool

Mast
(telecommunication)

ce

s

Boat
House

Childrens
Boating
Pond

ESSs

Te

rra

Slipway

PC

Terr

Pond

s

ace

22

Pond

Putting Green

Pond

Boating Lake

Cricket Ground

FB
FB
FB

30

Childrens
Nursery

Pond

Turntable

Pond

Pond

Pond

35

62

32

FB

Zoological
Gardens

SM

FBs

Italian Gardens
IVE

69
Terraces

Wa
te

r

EAS

42

37

Stanley Park

T PA

59

Fn

RK D
R

Fn

Terr
a

Heron's Reach Golf
Club

Pond

ces

FB

Bandstand

Shelter

Doctors Lane

Stanley Park - Site A
©

Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey Licence No.100019178. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions.

Public Open Space Stanley Park Golf Course, Blackpool

Bridle

way

Pond

UE

N
AVE

E
DRIV

OD

TWO

K
PAR

49

WES

ST
WE

52

Pond

Legend:
Boundaries

Drawn By:
Scale
Paper Size: A1

LDC
1:2,500

V.Date: 17-Feb-20
Date: 14-Feb-20

Growth &
Prosperity

V.1.0

N

This page is intentionally left blank

SA
N

1

39

22

15

61

Dr
ai
n

20

11

11

a

2

9

St

LL
AR
D

45

b
Su

50

El

24

20

59

5

MA
Posts

CO
UR
T

38

56

32

3

33
27

47
9

5
17

58

7
11

IV
E
DR
11

BU
RW
OO
D

15

5
11

9
16

1
11

60

68

64

7
16

5

1

109

W
RK

1a

Multistorey Car Park

20

3

11

Nurses Home
2

14

7
53

14

12

AY

PA

3

73

Sewage Ppg Sta

8

4

Y
WA

ES
TT

El Sub Sta

Gas
Gov

ON

CO

Presbytery

49

6

O
M

R
HE

26

E

2

RE

AC
PL

E
ON

ST

RN
TU

66

1

8

18

27

58

8

2
23

25

4
23

9

e
rin s
Sh rde
ng u
vi o
gi f L
ks y o
an ad
Th L
e ur
Th f O
o

Crown
Lodge

12

63

FOUR LANE
ENDS

0
24

DRIV
E

26

TH P
ARK

18

W

11

15

NOR

Car Park

HI
NN
EY

28
Club

HE
YS

RO
A

17

D

42

Pond
2

Pond

2a

EN
AV
PARK
WHIN

Nursery

46

1
10

El Su
b

Sta

UE

Chapel
(private)

Shelter

4
Multi-storey Car
Park

Chy

93
EAS
T PA
RK
DRI
VE

91a

FB

Tan

ks

Shelter

FB
El Sub Sta

in
Dra

Victoria Hospital

El Sub Sta

Page 33

FB

12

Mast (Telecommunication)

Cardiac Centre
Parkwood
Tank
Gas
Gov
FB

ESS

Shelter

Path (um)

Double Wall

Shelter

PC

FB

Gas
Gov

Stanley Park Golf Course

PARK

ain

Dr

EAST

Tank
FB

DRIVE
Dr
ain

Pond

Drain

Footbridge
Footbridge

Footbridge
Footbridge

Salisbury Woodland
Garden

WOODSIDE DRIVE
WO

ODS

Boating Lake

IDE

DRI

VE

PCs

nd

Po

Stanley Park - Site B
©

Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey Licence No.100019178. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions.

Public Open Space Stanley Park Golf Course, Blackpool - Eastern Boundary

Legend:
Boundary

Drawn By:
Scale
Paper Size: A1

LDC
1:1,250

V.Date: 17-Feb-20
Date: 14-Feb-20

Growth &
Prosperity

V.1.0

N

5
16

This page is intentionally left blank

11

to
129 1
13

12
2

91a

123

121

134

Tan

91

119
25

117
2
13

El Sub Sta

22

Annacliffe
Residential
Home

ks

EAS
T PA
RK

125

138

1

Chy

93

DRI
VE

127

49

70

15

60

135
2

142

Chapel
(private)

Shelter

3

11

22
a
148

148

AV

4

47

1

2a

45

158

11

UE

EN

PARK
WHIN

E
NU
AVE
ION

160

12

ALB

UE
VEN
Y A
WA

8

LE
ING

8a

21

Victoria Hospital

87

80

Shelter

61

124

85

103

84

63

83

120

86

101

75
99

65

112

El Sub Sta

27

El Sub Sta

91

2

93

7

12

65

1

Club

ld Number 4 &
Freemason's
Hotel (PH)

85

o
1t
10

1

2

Newton
Court

ub
El S
a
t
S

Mast (Telecommunication)

11

er
Shelt

55

12

Parkwood

53
PA

RK

D

8

RTH
NO

E
RIV

E

17

MIL

Shelter

VE
NA
TO

T'S
EN
EM
CL

2

RS
TE
IS

ST

O
CL

18

TH

15

14

53a

Path (um)

Double Wall

Shelter

E
NU

7

AV
EN

PC

1

UE

41

11

15

Pond

3

15

1

15

6

S

SE

10

H
EP

39

14

S
JO
ST

O
CL

35

Stanley Park Golf Course
12

33

EAST
PARK

DRIVE

31

25

Station
23a
23

rch
t Chu
Chris arage
Vic

Hillcrest

H

DRIVE

RT

K
PAR

Drain

NO

Page 35

Pond
FS

Footbridge
Footbridge
Footbridge

Club
House

Salisbury Woodland
Garden

WOODSIDE DRIVE

Boating Lake

Water

s
se
Ro rden
a
G

Mode
l
Railw Passeng
er
ay

Water

Bowling Green

Waterfall

Pond

Pond

FB

ESS

Shelter

Shelter

Shelter

Vi
si

PCs

Footbridge

to
rC

en

Car Park

Pond

tre
Tank

Sea Lion Pool

FS
FB

Boat
House

ra
ce

s

Boat
House

Childrens
Boating
Pond

Te
r

Slipway

PC

Pond

s
ace

Terr

Putting Green

Boating Lake

Cricket Ground

Childrens
Nursery
Turntable

SM

Stanley Park - Site C
©

Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey Licence No.100019178. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions.

Public Open Space Stanley Park Golf Course, Blackpool - Western Boundary

Legend:
Boundary

Drawn By:
Scale
Paper Size: A1

LDC
1:1,250

V.Date: 1-Jul-20
Date: 1-Jul-20

Zoological
Gardens

Growth &
Prosperity

V.1.0

N

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2b
This is a summary of the responses received in relation to the 3 public notices published in the
Blackpool Gazette from 27th February 2020 until 19th March 2020 by Blackpool Borough Council,
notifying of their intention to appropriate and dispose of, Land at Stanley Park Golf Course,
Blackpool’.
Please note the following:


The responses shown in this document are only those that were received between 27th February
2020 and 19th March 2020.



To comply with GDPR regulations personal details including names, house numbers, street
names, email addresses, contact numbers and signatures have been blocked out from responses
received from the general public and will appear like this: blhk. NB: Postcodes have been
included in this document.



For the purposes of authentication no changes have been made to text, type, font or the
contents of each response in any way.

Breakdown of contact methods used in response to the public notices:
Emails: 139
Posted letters & hand delivered letters: 153
Social media: 1
Total responses: 293

Break down of objections:
Total objections received: 288
Objections which stated a postcode or confirmed FY residency: 227
Objections which did not state an FY postcode: 52 (of which 17 postcodes were found)
Number of objections received from people outside of the FY postcode: 8
Number of objections received from outside the UK: 1
Total number of objections that stated a post code in FY1 – FY4 areas: 175 (inc. 15 postcodes found)
Total number of objections that stated a post code in FY5 and beyond: 49 (inc. 2 postcodes found)

Page 37

Objections which stated/ indicated a profession, local business or charitable organisation: 12
(Indicated in the table below)
Sector
Creative Industries
Conservation
Law/ Solicitors
Faith Communities (employees of)
Recruitment
Auto Industry
Care Provider & NHS
Leisure
Civil Service
Government

Total
1
2
1
2
1
1
2
1
1
1

Breakdown of main themes highlighted in objections
Theme
Loss of open green space
Location of site for proposed development
Traffic/Highways/Parking
Wildlife/Ecology/Conservation
Impact on Blackpool Victoria Hospital and Emergency Services
Environmental issues
Heritage
Tourism
Loss of trees
Value of disposal
The loss of golf facility
Developer/ Procurement Process/Risk
Proposals Contrary to Council Policy
Flooding/ Drainage
Alternative Proposals
Consultation/Publicity
Petition
Use of Appropriation Powers

Total
242
234
205
157
147
145
114
99
91
72
51
43
26
20
18
14
13
5

Breakdown of responses of support
Total responses of support received: 3
Responses of support which stated a postcode or confirmed FY residency: 3
Total number of responses re support which stated a post code in FY1 – FY4 areas: 1
Responses of support which stated/ indicated a profession, local business or charitable organisation:
1 (Indicated in the table on the next page).

Page 38

Sector
Local government

Total
1

Breakdown of themes highlighted in responses of support
Theme
Opportunity for investment & growth of the local economy
Increased opportunity for local employment
Improvement to open/ green spaces
Increased housing opportunities

Breakdown of responses that neither support nor object
Total number of responses neither supporting not objecting: 2
Responses which stated a postcode or confirmed FY residency: 2
Total number of responses which stated a post code in FY1 – FY4 areas: 2
Responses which stated/ indicated a profession, local business or charitable organisation: 2
(Indicated in the table below).
Sector
Civic Trust
Conservation & Charity

Total
1
1

Page 39

Total
3
3
1
1

Objection 001
27.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Please register my objection to the planned developments at the golf course.
This is one of the most prestigious areas in Blackpool. Why lower the tone and replace open space
with lodges etc. There is already congestion near the hospital, Wiltshire very restricted parking,
more people and cars will make this worse.
Blackpool resident.
Objection 002
27.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I object to houses being built on Stanley park golf course!
Objection 003
27.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I object to houses being built on Stanley park golf course we will have no open space left in
Blackpool if new houses keep being built schools will be over run and we also have a struggling
hospital with the amount of people it makes no sense to me at all
Thanks
A
Objection 004
27.02.2020
Email
FY1 5AY

As you will be aware Blackpool Stanley Park won a prestigious award - mainly due to the
hard-work of ‘The Friends of Stanley Park’ and volunteers.
However, you the council announced (in 2019) that you had accepted a bid re the
development of the east side of the Golf Course! Now it seems you are looking at
redevelopment for both the west and east sides. This so called development seems to be
aimed at holidaymakers who have more than enough facilities available to them (Ribby
Hall just five minutes down the road has a similar facility). Plus the infrastructure as it is
now would not be able to cope with an added traffic etc.
One of the main reasons that Stanley Park won the award was that it filled the criteria:

Page 40

“The charity is concerned that many parks and green spaces are under threat and are at
risk of being lost to development or a cycle of decline and disappearance.”
Also it seems to be a done deal as it has been noted that UKAP (Blackpool) Holdings ltd
was incorporated on 26th February 2020 and its main shareholders are also main
shareholders with Holmes Investment Properties ltd !! I would be grateful if you could
tell me why this is so.
I firmly believe that the actions that have taken place are not ethical and are not in the
interests of Blackpool residents.
Regards
A
1
Bl
F
Objection 005
27.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

Dear Sirs
I am writing to let you know if my objection to the disposal of the Gold Course.
Once this has gone it has gone for good.
I personally would not want to be apart of any council that makes this disposal decision as
you would be going against the majority of the town’s people.
Best regards,

Objection 006
27.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

Please accept this email as an objection to the proposed development of Stanley park golf
club.
It is unnecessary destruction of a beautiful area.

Page 41

Objection 007
27.02.2020
Email
Italy
Good evening
I live in Italy but my mother is from Blackpool so we regulary go there about 3 times a year to visit
our family. It's fantastic seeing all the great work and new projects going on aeounf town. BUT
THIS ISNT ONE OF THEM. This money could be better invested in parts of Balckpool (many) that
desperately need it. It's great that all these new hotels and conference centets are being built but
where are all these going to go? There no shops more than half of town is empty and most of the
buildings and shops are absolute eye sores.
When will South Shore ever get a regenaration programme?
We have so many attractions for visitors that come but then the actual people that live there have
nothing to lick forward to. We are so lucky to have miles of coast line and coukd be one of the
best looking towns in the country but it s still miles away from it since it s filled with poverty and
tackiness all over.
We use to be a town for the rich Victorian who fancied a trip to the seaside on a weekend and
now it s just full of drunks and drugged up people. What a shame.
Stankey Park has won UK park of the year leave it as it is and get money spent on the areas of
town that really need it.
Sincerely

Objection 008
27.02.2020
Email
FY1 2LS
Dear Sir / Madame,
I strongly protest about the council plans for the transformation of Stanley Park Golf Course. I
object to Notices 1, 2 and 3. My reasons are:
1) Concerns for safety with traffic congestion and emergency services.
2) Development of green areas and encroachment on wildlife habitats.
3) Other areas in Blackpool in need of much ‘re-development’ before money is spent on building
over green space.
4) The plans are most definitely not in keeping with the surroundings.
5) Overpopulation and multiple occupancies in a nicer area of Blackpool will lead to higher crime
rates within that area.
6) As a Blackpool citizen from a long line of ‘Blackpudlians’, I find this totally disrespectful to the
township, utterly barbaric and a down right sacrilege of beautiful green parkland.
I believe this decision has been approved by people who are not from the town and must
obviously Let money rule their hearts. Ask the people who live here what they really want and the
answer will be a definite ‘NO!’. Listen to your community as we are the ones who have voted you
in power. There are better ways to make money. Start with the town centre shops which are
empty and the derelict hotels on the Golden Mile. Do something extraordinary to bring the
crowds back to this fantastic town. Do not build more follies for a quick buck.

Page 42

Kind regards
J
3

Objection 009
28.02.2020
Email
FY1 5DF

Hi there,
As a resident of Blackpool I would like to formally object to the proposals for the
demolition and replacement of The Stanley Park Golf Course, it’s is a HUGE part of
Blackpool’s heritage and adds so much the surrounding Park areas, it would be an
absolute travesty to see something like what has been suggested built in its place... there
are so many other sites that would be more well suited for a complex as such. And the
golf course is a much valued open space which in this town are being taken away so
quickly!
Stanley Park golf course played a big part in many of my family members lives and is a
beautiful and calm place that residents can go to play golf - away from the tourism and
hustle that comes with living in a seaside town. It’s a place that many local residents,
families enjoy and a place that with some regeneration that their younger generations can
enjoy in the future.
Please do not take away a valued space from local residents and essentially give it to
tourists. Many decisions you have made for redevelopments throughout the town to help
with tourism have been good ones for the future of our town, although not without total
disruption resulting in business closures and such. But this one is not a good decision and
is a decision that is not, in my opinion, in the best interest of the town and its residents.
Thank you for taking the time to process and read this objection.
Please consider my points raised and include my email as a formal objection against the
plans that are seemingly (without publicity) in place.
Best wishes

Page 43

Objection 010
28.02.2020
Email
FY3 9HP
>>> Hello
> I have asked my daughter to send you this email as i do not have the intenet but i can be
contacted to confirm by post or tel
>>> I wish to object to this land being leased or sold off to developers. Blackpool needs to keep its
green spaces and building attractions or houses on this land will ruin the area. Not only will it be
difficult to get to the hospital but already overcrowded roads will be made worse. Surely there are
enough open spaces on the edge of town to build houses and there are plenty of run down and
falling down properties near the promenade where an adrenaline world can be built.

Objection 011
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident

To whom it may concern,
I am emailing to give my opposing view of handing over the Blackpool golf club site to
private developers.
As a local resident of Blackpool I feel strongly that this site should not be destroyed by an
adventure centre.
Thank You

Page 44

Objection 012
28.02.2020
Social media
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

Objection 013
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
As a resident I fully appreciate the benefits tourism brings to our town. However I believe
redeveloping our golf course is extremely short-sighted and is purely financially driven.
The golf course and Stanley Park as a whole are extremely important amenities for tourists,
Lancashire residents and also our wildlife.
If the council believes we need 'lodges' or yet more tourist accommodation, it should be looking
at redeveloping derelict eyesores or unused areas, not taking away something so valuable and
irriplacable.
Our council seems unable to grasp the importance and benefits leisure and health facilities have
on its residents. Reducing sports facilities and recreation areas appear to be high on its agenda the only apparent benefit being short term financial gains.

Page 45

I strongly object to this development.

Objection 014
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

Dear Sirs
It is with surprise that i learn of Blackpool Council proposal to allow development upon
part of Stanley Park golf course.
As an award winning nationally feted park, much loved by Blackpool residents the idea of
allowing the building of lodges on this piece of green land amazes me .
This is one of the few green spaces left in Blackpool the increase in traffic and consequent
parking problems will be inevitable in an area which already has huge problems as a result
of the need to park at the Vic .
The local people who will be troubled by this development will get no benefit and will be
constantly troubled by parking increased traffic flow and antisocial behaviour.
If the Council in any way cared about the views of its residents it would not be involved
or allow this development.
This has traditionally been one of the better areas of Blackpool to allow this development
will inevitably lead to it being an area deemed as less desirable and there will be a
consequent flight of people to other areas , who care more for the local residents as
opposed to visitors to the area.
Blackpool may be based on tourism this does not mean that the views and interests of
residents are simply ignored to do so will lead to a view that this consultation is merely
window dressing about a decision which has already been taken.

Objection 015
28.05.2020
Email
FY6 7QX
Dear Madam/Sir,
HIP/ Blackpool Borough Council.
I am writing to vent my feelings regarding the proposed loss of the few open green spaces left in
Blackpool.
It goes against the Blackpool Local Plan.
It is against the Blue and Green Strategy adopted by the Council.
The proposed development is on a known Flood Plain.
Why not build this development on other plots of land available, such as:
Lawsons Road recreation area?
Unused school football pitches?
Whyndyke Farm?
Central development area?

Page 46

Regards,

Objection 016
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

I wish to register my objection to the development of this area it is one of the largest
areas of green space left in Blackpool it also goes against the blue and greens strategy
adopted by the council this development should be located on brown field land or the
proposed sports development at the airport

Objection 017
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I wish to register my objection to the proposed building on the Stanley golf club land

Objection 018
28.02.2020
Email
FY3 9HS

Dear Sir/Madam.
After careful consideration of the proposals, please record and note my objections.
Green space is of a premium and I donot share the view that the proposed development
would enhance the area.

Objection 019
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Once again this council as made a ludicrous idea to give away land that belongs to the people of
Blackpool. Blackpool have one of the lowest recorded green spaces in england it also goes against
Blackpool local plan and against the blue and green strategy adopted by the council. You should

Page 47

take this project elsewhere and leave it as it is. the people i have spoken too do not want 250
lodges on this land or adrenalin world which would completely ruin this green space.
yours

Objection 020
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
How dare you call this disposal of open space land which belongs to the people of blackpool it is a
shame you cannot stick to the policies you signed up to ie goes against blackpool local plan and
also against the blue and green strategy adopted by the council you should be ashamed we have
so little green space in Blackpool but you wish to reduce it further hope you never get planning.

Objection 021
28.02.2020
Email
FY3 9RS
I am opposed to the councils plan for the golf course. At a time when climate change is at the
foremost of people’s minds do we really want to take away one of the few green spaces tgat this
wonderful town has???
Tourism takes over Blackpool surely locals should have sacred areas that are tourist free. I live on
East Park Drive and it is gridlocked most of the day I dread to think what it will be like when this
monstrosity arrives. I just do not understand what the council are thinking!
The centre is full of crumbling properties that could be pulled down and turned into a holiday
village instead of bulldozing nature! Our town is a disgrace at the moment - Stanley park is falling
apart (tennis pavilions roof has fallen through in parts over the winter) and it appears to rely on
volunteers to keep it going.
We need to bring about the old community feeling and the council need to put locals first if
they want to regain power in the next election and as a staunch supporter of labour I never
thought I’d hear myself say that!! This will, I fear be the final nail in their coffin if it goes ahead.

Objection 022
Email
28.02.2020
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
When I was growing up my family live on Granville Road in Blackpool.
Like most of Blackpool it is just rows of houses.

Page 48

However come the school holidays we left each morning and went to Stanley Park and the
surrounding area.
They were great time.
How many people in the council who decided that this was a good idea grew up in Blackpool.
Leave the trees, grass and walkways as they are.
This is a heart felt sentiment that all the people of Blackpool now and the future can have the an
opportunity to experience what i have.

Objection 023
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Dear sir/madam
I wish to register my objection to the proposed disposal and development of the east side of
Stanley Park Golf Course.
It is highly inappropriate to decimate this wonderful green space, which is used by golfers and
public alike, to make way for holiday chalets and an adrenalin world development.
Traffic congestion in that area is already very bad at most times of the day, the proposed
development will only add to the queues on East Park Drive.
The choice of operators to develop the site also appears to be inappropriate looking at their
financial records and previous history.
It is disappointing that the council are blaming objections on a minority of local residents, when in
fact there are many people who are against this development, and many others who will not be
aware that it is taking place.
Yours faithfully

Objection 024
28.02.2020
Email
FY4 resident
Hello,
I would like to object to the proposed disposal of Stanley Park golf course, and the proposal to
build properties on the land.

Page 49

1. Recent flooding in Blackpool shows how much each green space is needed. Developing this area
means looks valuable grassland and trees, which will impact on local wildlife.
2. The roads around Stanley Park golf course are already unequal to the amount of traffic using
them daily; directing even more traffic along those roads will render them impassable at crucial
times.
3. The extra traffic will negatively impact on people using Blackpool Victoria Hospital, including
ambulances and other emergency services. Has the hospital Trust been given the opportunity to
calculate what impact extra traffic could have on their targets?
4. Blackpool is high on almost every league table of negative health outcomes; the local people
need more usable green space, not less. Another private development further distances locals
from healthy engagement with the town they live in.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you need any further information.
Yours sincerely,

FY4 resident.
Objection 025
28.02.2020
Email
FY5 4PU
Hi,
I object to the disposal of the East side for anything other than open land/golf course.
However, if the site must, must, must be lost then it should be sold/made available to the NHS to
support Blackpool Vic. The hospital has almost run out of usable estate.
Do not allow this land to be turned into leisure or homes.

t

Objection 026
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

Very disappointed about the proposed golf course reduction how are our young
generation of golfers from deprived areas ever going to learn golf

Page 50

Objection 027
28.02.2020
Email
FY3 9JE

We would like to lodge our very strong objections to the proposed sale of the golf
course at Stanley Park, and indeed any sale of any part of that area.
This green corridor is vital not only to wildlife but also the mental health and well being of
Blackpool residents, many of whom suffer from living in poor housing conditions and have
very restricted access to green space.
Please reconsider this proposal and put the needs of the residents above everything else.
‘Once it’s gone, it’s gone!’
e

Objection 028
28.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I object to construction on the above site. Firstly, the land is green space and should be left as
such. Secondly, traffic is already congested and further access would only add to this.
There is already enough accommodation in Blackpool (which is struggling) without adding more.
Regards

Objection 029
29.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
I wish to object to the proposal to build on any part of the golf course. We need to preserve our
green spaces, not continue to build on them and this land is very valuable to local wildlife, being
so close to the Conservation areas at Marton Mere and Stanley Park.
If this holiday village is wanted there are much more suitable locations, such as Whindyke Farm
which would be better for this purpose as it has good transport links and would not cause the
congestion problems anticipated on Park Drive which is already a very busy road, and also
problems parking which is difficult around the hospital anyway, without bringing in a lot more
traffic.
This proposal doesn't make sense. Regardless of the capability of the proposed developer, which I
believe doesn't have the confidence of the public or our councillors.

Page 51

I urge you to withhold the contract and reconsider the site for a new holiday village, preferably
somewhere where it will not cause such inconvenience to local people and wildlife.
Yours sincerely,
Blackpool resident.
Objection 030
29.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

Stanley Park golf course,used to be one of the busiest municipals in the
country.However,over the years,maintenance standards have dropped.Too many corners
have been cut,in particular,contracting the green keeping out.Now its come to selling part
of the course off,so the council can make another quick buck.BLACKPOOL
COUNCIL,YOU ARE AN ABSOLUTE DISGRACE.
Objection 031
29.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Councillors
I am writing to object the future proposals regarding the sale of any part of Stanley Park Golf Club.
As a Blackpool resident I am appalled at the lack of consideration given to the many thousands of
residents who voiced their valid concerns and signed a petition to oppose your plans. In no way
do I feel that Blackpool Councillors represent or have considered the residents best interest.
Please can you advise me of the positive impacts the new proposals will have for Blackpool
Residents,the people paying for your plans?
I would like to hear how these plans stand up against your own Environmental/ Health/ Heritage
policies and traffic management measures, have these been considered ?
I am able to think of many reasons not to go ahead I'd like you to consider these and explain why
my concerns aren't valid.
* Loss of more green space.
* Loss of another leisure facility.
* Increased traffic on already overcrowded roads.
* Delays for Emergency Vehicles accessing the Blackpool Victoria Hospital
* Loss of a prestigious Mackenzie Course
* Selling part of The Best Park in the Country
* No requirement for more holiday accommodation.
*Devastating impact on local Wildlife.

Page 52

I look forward to hearing your response should I get one.
Regards

Objection 032
01.03.2020
Email
FY3 8LZ
To Whom it may concern,
I object to the proposed development on the East side of Stanley Park Golf
course. This is open green space and belongs to the people of Blackpool. Why destroy a natural
beauty just for the sake of commercial development where we have areas in the centre of the town
which are in dire need of redevelopment and can only be classed as 3rd world in some cases.
Those areas are also suitably served by transport networks and roads something the area around
the park is missing. Any development in that area would bring traffic chaos and could well be
deemed a danger to life, if Ambulances are impeded getting to and from Victoria Hospital. That
area is already a traffic hot spot since the council narrowed the promenade thus diverting traffic
away from the Promenade and onto the hinter roads of the town. Just for once the council should
think about the effects of its actions for future years and try to maintain some kind of standards
within the town. The area around Stanley Park is the only one decent place left in the town too
raise a family and enjoy a decent life. Please concentrate your efforts on other areas which need
the investment and leave Stanley Park well alone.

l

Objection 033
01.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

I would like to object strongly to the proposed plans for development on Stanley Park
golf course. Having lived in the town for 50 years I feel it would be a huge mistake to
allow another green space to disappear just to gain monetarily short term. The town has
inumerable guest houses hotels and caravan parks which never operate at full capacity so
the proposed plans seem shortsighted to say the least. Im hoping Blackpool Council
seriously reconsider their proposed action once they have taken the time to read mine
and what I am sure will be many more emails opposing the plans.
Regards
l

Page 53

Objection 034
01.03.2020
Email
FY3 9QW

I wish to protest at the absolutely disgraceful decision of this Labour Council to sell off
yet ANOTHER of Blackpool’s assets to a private company who are quite frankly not fit
or proper.
This Council have held the people of Blackpool in contempt for far too long.
Just how many back handers have been paid to council members over the last few years
so they can ride roughshod time and time again over the inhabitants of the Town.
It stinks of bribery and corruption.
Your disgusted

Objection 035
01.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
I wish to submit my objection to the proposed development at Stanley Park Golf Course.
The reasons being as follows:










Concern with road access
increased congestion to a very busy and congested road now - please go and drive around
that area at peak times and in the summer!
Drainage issues becoming worse with new development - bad flooding last week all
around that area after the gales
losing valuable green space for locals
impact on local wildlife in the area
causing more pollution and not environmentally friendly
Blackpool has so many local caravan and log cabin sites on the fylde coast - we dont need
any more
lots of derelict hotels - we dont need any more tourist accomodation - spend the money
doing them up
woodland gardens - used by lots of locals, scout groups and tourists etc- walking, walking
dogs, more green space lost

Blackpool resident for
58yrs

Page 54

Objection 036
02.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I would like to object to the plans for the golf club

Page 55

Objection 037
02.03.2020
Posted letter
FY4 2DT

Page 56

Objection 038
02.03.2020
Email
FY5 2AW

Please do not remove one of the few, large green spaces from Blackpool, especially for
another “amusement”. Surely there are brownfield sites more suited to this?
P

Objection 039
02.03.2020
Email
Postcode not started
FY residency not stated
Ref : Stanley Park Golf Course.
I am writing to object regarding the loss of green space Blackpool would ensue if plans to develop
Stanley park Golf course were to go ahead. I think it is NOT in the interest of local people both
environmentally and traffic congestion related.
Regards

Objection 040
03.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Blackpool business owner

I strongly object to your disgraceful plans for the McKenzie designed Stanley Park golf
course.
You’re not fit for purpose.

Objection 041
03.03.2020
Post Letter
FY6 8AD
Dear Team,

Page 57

I have lived in Blackpool for most of my life and many of my relatives live in Bispham, Cleveleys,
South Shore.
I have watched a well loved town decline but Stanley Park has always remained a constant source
of pleasure.
I am constantly reminded by numerous notices, not to drink and drive after my journey home etc.
Is this in any way linked to the Communications Directorate? If so, please desist and get a
message from the general public. We have lost so many green areas around Blackpool. How much
more is to be surrendered?
I have noticed that the wishes of the public are largely ignored.
The fiasco in the centre of Blackpool is proof! Church Street and Talbot Road are prime examples.
However, The Winter Gardens is a wonderful achievement of presentation. Let Stanley Park be
protected and preserved for future generations.
Sincerely

Objection 042
03.03.2020
Email
FY3 9HP

To Whom It May Concern,
I am writing to state my objection to the plans made for Stanley Park Golf Course. I am a
local resident and I believe the plans will greatly affect my immediate area, property and
lifestyle in a negative way.
I have lived around Stanley Park for my whole life and I find the plans absurd. Stanley Park
Golf Course is much loved by the local residents and the council have made no effort to
maintain it as a local attraction. My husband grew up playing the course from the age of
12, and when the Course went into administration he pursued many avenues to attempt
to offer to possibly purchase or run the Golf Course as the Head Professional. He was
met with enthusiasm from the clubhouse, and could not reach anybody who was
interested at the council. After 3 months, he received an email containing no more than 4
sentences telling him to provide a secret bid to buy the course even though his wishes to
see any financial information had been ignored.
Continuing from this, the local residents in my area have absolutely no desire for the
plans to go ahead and I am at a loss as to how the council think these plans can be
welcomed. Traffic in the area will be increased to an absurd amount. Ambulances already
struggle with the volume of traffic surrounding the park. To add a tourist attraction right
in the middle of a heavy residential area is unfathomable. My niece and nephew walk
home from St. Mary’s High School every day past the proposed area along with hundreds
of other students. Can you guarantee their safety when you are encouraging out of area
strangers on the same daily route? The residents surrounding the park are proud and
encourage the area to flourish but there is no way that this attraction or any plans for

Page 58

building or housing can continue to establish this prestige that has been created. Myself
and my neighbours regularly litter pick, tidy and garden around the area. This level of
community feel will not be maintained when there are hundreds of tourists creating an
increased level of litter, traffic and a general unwanted presence.
Aside from the council probably profiting from the proposals, I am at a loss as to how you
can justify this. These plans are resented by local residents, not welcomed and I sincerely
hope you listen to the people of the area that you are meant to represent and make an
effort to maintain the Golf Course as the community treasure that it is.
Yours sincerely,
e
l

Objection 043
04.03.2020
Email
FY3 9HP
Dear Sir/Madam
Following your public notice in the Gazette re the proposed disposal of Stanley Park Golf Course to
Holmes Investment Properties Plc (HIP) I would like to state that I am against the development for
the following reasons:
1. First and foremost I fully support investment and regeneration in Blackpool as it is greatly
needed, however this is predominantly a residential area and I feel there are plenty of other areas
within the town centre which would benefit more from this type of development and support the
tourist industry;
2. Victoria hospital runs alongside the east side of the course. The hospital emergency services
already struggle with the traffic that runs down East Park Drive and the surrounding roads, the
additional traffic that will be introduced due to this development would be unacceptable;
3. The proposal states the east side of the course is to be dug up and 250 holiday lodges are to be
built alongside an Adrenalin World, however this land is unstable and prone to flooding as has been
previously proved with other areas around East Park, South Park Drive and Stanley Park;
4. This site is one of our last green spaces within Blackpool and runs alongside Woodland
Gardens which has a covenant on it because of its important flora and fauna and the proposed
disruption whilst laying utilities and roads and its associated pollution once developed could
irreversibly damage this area;
5. To my knowledge and research HIP have no track record on delivering this type of
development, so having purchased this land should they change their minds on the proposed
development going forward what is to stop them building something else and including the land on
the north side where the remaining 11 holes are currently, which hold Historic England Grade II
listed status?
6. The claim that it will bring added prosperity to the town does not stack up as HIP will need to
raise money via investors to enable them to build, they are suggesting returns of 8/10%, therefore
any profits will leave the town to pay their investors;

Page 59

7. Despite the council stating this has been an open and transparent procurement process they
have refused to attend public meetings and have dismissed the views of over 8,000 people who
signed a petition against this development as "attempts from a minority of Blackpool residents to
frustrate the outcome of this process";
8. The council have previously stated that the golf course cannot be operated in a financially
sustainable manner, however I understand a 'not for profit' organisation have offered to take on the
running of the course and offer rent to the council, but this has been refused.
In conclusion I do not disagree with investment and regeneration in our town, however there is no
logical reason to dispose of one of our last green spaces to this type of development and for the
reasons stated above I would ask the council to vote against this land being sold off.
Regards

Objection 044
05.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not state
Growth and prosperity team,
I would like to register my objections to the ‘proposed’
development at b/pool park golf course, I disagree with losing the only pay and play 18 hole golf
course locally and I disagree with an ‘adrenaline’ experience being put in its place directly
alongside our hospital, I disagree with the inevitable loss of greenspace and loss of flora and
fauna.
Respectfully,
Objection 045
05.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident

To whom it may concern,
I wish to object to the proposed plans for the
regeneration of Stanley Park Golf Course.
I object to all 3 of the public notices which
appeared in the Gazette on Feb 27th 2020 as they
are each inter dependent.

Page 60

The open space afforded by the golf course is a
haven for both humans and wildlife.
We are constantly hearing how green spaces
improve mental health and yet this caring council
seeks to destroy a large swathe of such land.
The knock-on effect on Stanley Park would also be
detrimental with an increase in traffic, parking
facilities and, no doubt, accompanying shops.
This green space is a vital part of Blackpool and
once lost, is lost forever.
lifetime resident,
Objection 046
05.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
To whom it may concern,
I wish to object to all three plans proposed for Stanley Park Golf course, which appeared in the
Gazette on Feb 27th 2020.
This green space is vital for Blackpool as a haven for both human and wildlife.
Mental health is closely linked to green spaces and if this area is lost, it is lost forever.
The impact on the surrounding area......award winning Stanley Park, would be disastrous with an
increase in cars, parking facilities and noise.
As all three proposals are inter dependent, I wish to protest against them all.
Blackpool Resident,

Page 61

Objection 047
05.03.2020
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

To whom it may concern,
I wish to object to the proposed plans for the
regeneration of Stanley Park Golf Course.
I object to all 3 of the public notices which
appeared in the Gazette on Feb 27th 2020 as they
are each inter dependent.
The open space afforded by the golf course is a
haven for both humans and wildlife.
We are constantly hearing how green spaces
improve mental health and yet this caring council
seeks to destroy a large swathe of such land.
The knock-on effect on Stanley Park would also be
detrimental with an increase in traffic, parking
facilities and, no doubt, accompanying shops.
This green space is a vital part of Blackpool and
once lost, is lost forever.

Objection 049
05.03.2020
Email
FY3 9BJ

Page 62

I wish to register my objection the Councils decision to allow Holiday lodges to be built
on the Stanley Park golf course Open space is a rare commodity in the town and is
essential to help promote the physical and mental well being of local people If the golf
course is no longer a viable option better to use the land as a rewilding project to
promote the above .

Objection 050
Email
05.03.2020
FY3 7QA
e
Drive

Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications and Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Borough Council
PO Box 11
Town Hall
BLACKPOOL
FY1 1NB

5th March 2020

DISPOSAL OF OPEN SPACE LAND
LAND AT STANLEY PARK GOLF CLUB, BLACKPOOL
I write with regard to the Public Notices published in the Blackpool Gazette on Thursday 27th
February 2020 in relation to the disposal of Open Space Land at Stanley Park Golf Club.
In the first instance, I strongly object to the appropriation of this land to change it from the
designated use of this public open space to allow it to become available for planning purposes and
possibly further development. This is one of only a few open green spaces left in Blackpool and
would result in the loss of another habitat and feeding ground for wildlife in this and surrounding
area. Allowing this to happen, completely goes against the Blue and Green Strategy adopted by
this Council in early 2019.
The Public Notice also states that the Council is to dispose of land currently used as a golf course
at Stanley Park. Again I object profusely as this would lead to the disappearance of a most
beautiful and historic sporting landscape within Blackpool.
Lastly and most importantly I vehemently object to the proposal that would allow a proposed
development incorporating leisure and lodge facilities on the east side of East Park Drive. Any

Page 63

development would include the need for further roads and parking facilities adding to more traffic
congestion with potentially devastating impact on emergency ambulances. Not to mention
increased air pollution and, more importantly, noise pollution near the hospital Cardiac Centre.

I ask that my objections be considered during this consultation process and common sense will
prevail.

Yours sincerely

e
Objection 051
05.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I wish to object to all three notices that the council are proposing for Stanley Park Golf Course .
My reasons are as follows
The loss of public green land
The congestion and noise it will cause around the hospital
It isnt for the people of Blackpool
Business in the town will be lost
and finally
Its Ours and Not yours
regards
Objection 052
05.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

I wish to object to all 3 notices that the council are proposing for Stanley Park golf
course.
> Reasons why:> 1, Loss of PUBLIC green space
> 2, Traffic congestion on an already congested route, will cause an
> impact onto emergency ambulances 3, increase air & noise pollution
> around the hospital 4, loss of many mature trees 5, loss of habitat &
> feeding areas for wildlife 6, the loss of the golf course which is
> nearly 100 years old part of Blackpool’s heritage 7, increase to
> tourism out of town impact on smaller businesses in town 8, large
> amount of green space given away/sold off cheaply.

Page 64

>
> This land belongs to the people of Blackpool not the council.
>
> Regards
> l
Objection 053
05.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool residency not stated
To whom it may concern,
I wish to object to the proposed plans for the regeneration of Stanley Park Golf Course.
I object to all 3 of the public notices which appeared in the Gazette on Feb 27th 2020 as they are each
inter dependent.
The open space afforded by the golf course is a haven for both humans and wildlife.
We are constantly hearing how green spaces improve mental health and yet this caring council seeks
to destroy a large swathe of such land.
The knock-on effect on Stanley Park would also be detrimental with an increase in traffic, pollution,
parking facilities and, no doubt, accompanying shops.
This green space is a vital part of Blackpool and once lost, is lost forever.
Blackpool Resident

Objection 054
05.03.2020
FY6 7BQ
Blackpool resident
Local Business
Dear Sirs
I write to place on record my objection to the proposals in place regarding the development of
Stanley Park Golf Course.
Given the much publicised negativity of depravation in the Blackpool area, any development of
what little green land in Blackpool should be carefully considered.
Being not only a local golfer myself, but also a former resident of the park area, it is my opinion
that this would be the last place to commence any form of redevelopment. The course itself has
always been heralded as a lovely municipal course to play golf as well as being a much needed
source of enjoyment for walking etc.
Please therefore consider other options ahead of this, surely there are many more workable sites
without taking away such a beautiful part of this community?
Kind regards

Page 65

Managing Director

Objection 055
06.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Good morning Growth and Prosperity Team
I strongly objects and oppose to the 3 public notices Blackpool Council has published with regards
to the development of Stanley Park Golf Course.
Firstly, for the council to dispose of the golf course on the east side and reduce this historic course
to 9 holes is appalling. Another bad decision by our council getting rid of heritage sites and
GREEN SPACE. Blackpool cannot afford to get rid of its valuable green space.
Secondly, appropriating the east side of the course for planning purposes, once this has been
passed this green space will be lost forever and will be open up to any kind of development. The
council are making decisions that are going to affect our town for many years to come. We DO
NOT need more building taking place in the middle of residential areas. Keep tourism to the town
centre and promenade. We need GREEN SPACE not more buildings.
Thirdly, disposing of our town's green space. Blackpool has the lowest tree canopy in the UK and
by leasing this green space to a developer who has no experience, money or track record already
spells disaster. How many times has Blackpool Council sold off the town's land and then a few
years down the line had to buy it back i.e. Blackpool Airport, Hounds Hill to name two. Cash
strapped council - we don't have the funds to keep bailing out failed enterprises and destroying
good green land that is being used for leisure and health benefits for our residents and
community.
The following are all taken from the GBI strategy which the council are supposedly following but
are going against with this proposed development.

This proposed lease and development goes against Blackpool's very own Green and Blue
Infrastructure Strategy (GBI).
"Lowest tree canopy" intensely urban with one of the highest densities of housing outside
London" " one of lowest life expectancies in England" " 18,500 Blackpool people use outdoor
space. This is 5000 people less than national average" "Always think for the future" " making
the most of what we have for Residents & visitors" " take health seriously - help at least 5000
more local people each week enjoy exercise at our parks and encourage forest schools, green
gyms and nature-based prescriptions" " double tree canopy" remove air pollutants" improve the
mental health of adults and children" " ensure all biological and heritage sites are protected for
nature conservation"" provide attractive roots for residents, communities and visitors"
This proposed development will affect the flood plains as new developments are going to put a
strain on areas surrounding the green space.

Page 66

There are many more sites where this development could be built; Whyndyke Farm would be
perfect and more suited to this type of tourist attraction. NO road congestion, cars would be able
access from M55. No issues with construction vehicles whilst building takes place. No noise
pollution next to a hospital.
Why destroy a facility that is used by residents and tourists and can, with the right people running
the course, increase membership and provide an activity suitable for all ages, genders, abilities,
residents and visitors and still keep the valuable green space which our town needs.
The East side of the course which is being proposed to be developed sits on an already congested
road right next the extremely busy and over stretched hospital which is going to affect
ambulances being able to enter and exit if more traffic is set to use these roads (East Park Drive
and/or Newton Drive) It is going to put even more strain on all the roads in this vicinity which
struggle during the daytime now.
Schemes for development need to benefit our whole community - residents who live and pay
council taxes and visitors NOT just the tourists.
This green space in question is an historic site which is almost 100 years old. Our council are
already destroying and removing our valuable green space and selling off for developments which
are going to have a huge detrimental effect on people's health and well being. Our wildlife, flora
and fauna are also going to suffer if this is allowed to go ahead.
I STRONGLY OPPOSE THESE PLANS.
Yours worriedly

Resident
Objection 056
06.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I wish to object to the loss of the green open space should the development of this prime public
land be misappropriated by development.
Everything we read these days is for us to stop climate change, stop spoiling the environment and
encourage wildlife and the natural habitat.
The extra pollution from traffic congestion cannot be ignored. Stop being greedy, look after the
local residents who have been let down far too often by bizarre schemes that the council have
allowed. Think before you act.

Page 67

Objection 057
06.03.2020
Posted Letter
FY6 7SW

Page 68

Objection 058
06.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 9AP

Page 69

Objection 059
06.03.2020
Email
FY4 4SP

Ref Stanley Park Golf
Course
6 March 2020
Referring to your intentions to build on one of the few green spaces left in our town
Surely, you do not need me to point out how much damage and in connivance, it will take
to convert wetland into building land for 250 lodges and the services and roads that will be
needed, lodges that will probably not be used by local people who now use these green
spaces.
Also about the so-called Adrenaline World being purposed for the green space left, it does
not bear thinking about.

Page 70

Therefore, as a person who uses the green open space in question, I would like to register a
written objection to the three notices that have been published in the local paper on
Thursday 27th February 2020.
I do not think that a few people should have the right to take away and change all our green
and beautiful land enjoyed by so many Blackpool people.
s
e
Blackpool

Objection 060
06.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
To who it may concern i a writing to you today to let you know how i strongly object to all 3
notices because they are all interlinked and interdependent.
I travel regularly to Blackpool to visit close friends and enjoy the golf very much playing at
the beautiful Stanley Park golf club.
Whilst attracting tourist as myself and many of my friends i feel loss of such a wonderful course
would have a great impact of our visits therefore it may sound a minor loss but not very
encouraging for your own reputation.
yours
Objection 061
06.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I am not along with hundreds more in favour of the said proposal for development for chalets log
cabins or any leisure park.
We have better open spaces for that kind of development with out spoiling wha5 we have plus the
wild life in the area would be homeless.
On a safety side it is already very dangerous at the junction plus traffic is congested already.
Woodlands Gardens Stanley Park Heron Reach is a sanctuary for every body and every animal in area,
even the Zoo.
So sod somewhere else.

Page 71

Objection 062
06.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I am totally against the continuing loss of green space.
The Stanley Park area is a lovely part of Blackpool which I believe would be spoilt by the proposed
development.
Isn't there a company that's prepared to run the course as a 18 hole one?
Or is it a fait accompli and always has been.?
Objection 063
07.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
With regard to the plans for the green space on EastPark Drive by Blackpool council we strongly
object as it is totally against the environmental strategy of the government. With all the floods
throughout the country this winter surely the safe guarding of green open spaces is paramount.
With regard to Blackpool itself it is one of few green spaces in the area a place of peace and
beauty in an already hustle and bustle town. The plans the council has could easily be situated in
other areas of the town that desperately require modernisation and to be given a face lift i.e.
Central Blackpool where the catchment area is most likely to attract a greater volume of people.
We are astounded and disappointed that the Labour council would consider such a proposal
based alone on the disruption to the area surrounding Stanley Park and more importantly Victoria
Hospital. The traffic this would create would be detrimental to the area and impact on the
desirable residential district here.
As a born and bred citizen of Blackpool I have seen many changes to Blackpool and the Fylde
coast over the past 60 + years, most of which have not contributed to a more attractive holiday
destination for the public and I strongly oppose the proposed plans.

Objection 064
08.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I am writing to ask you to reconsider your decision to repurpose the Blackpool Park Golf Club. The
Club is a lifeboat for many people in the community – young and old - and acts as a social focal point –
essential in this increasingly isolated society.
I came to Blackpool in March 1990 after the death of my husband, a serving officer in the British Army.
I stayed with a friend in Blackpool to help me survive this traumatic period of my life. I’d just started
to play golf and plucked the courage to go to Blackpool Park Golf Club. I knew meeting people would
be essential for my mental health. I met an incredibly welcoming group of people who have, over the
last 30 years, become very close friends. The golf club was (and continues to be) my sanctuary and
place of social interaction. I know I’m not alone in feeling this way – as demonstrated by the number of
people who have voiced their outrage at the plans. I implore you not to take it away from us.

Page 72

Currently, there’s a lot of focus on the causes and impact of climate change – particularly on the
importance of our countryside to limit this impact. It’s also well known that the countryside and green
areas support a healthier lifestyle for people in the community and visitors from the cities. People are
waking up to the reality that our countryside is vital to sustaining our mental and physical health – it’s
far more important than amusement arcades; they only need to go into Blackpool town to partake in
this type of entertainment.
Please also consider the safety associated with the increase in traffic both for ambulances trying to
navigate the along single traffic lanes as well as the considerable increase in pollution caused by these
cars.
This is a beautiful, picturesque area of Blackpool……PLEASE DON’T RUIN IT.

Objection 065
08.03.2020
Email
FY3 9AT
Growth and Prosperity Team `
Communications & Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council
Town Hall
Blackpool
FY1 1NB
8th March 2020

re: Stanley Park Golf Course
Further to Public Notices issued by Blackpool Council recently in the local papers, regarding the
Stanley Park golf course and its surrounding green spaces, l wish object to all 3 notices because
they are all interlinked and interdependent.
My objections are follows regarding the impact this scheme will have to the change of designation
of this land.












The loss of one of the few public and peaceful green spaces available to people.
Loss of another habitat and feeding ground for wildlife in this and the surrounding area.
Serious loss of trees that we need to ﬁght climate change.
The loss of a beautiful and historic sporting landscape in the town.
Failure to comply Annie Heslop and the council’s policy, improving the towns green
spaces and infrastructure as released at the Blackpool civic trust meeting.
Increased tourism in a residential area with diversion of tourists away from tourist areas
with impact on existing businesses.
Loss of a further green belt asset being sold oﬀ very cheaply by the council, this land
belongs to the town, not the councillors, soon there will be very left.
A very signiﬁcant increase in traﬃc congestions on an already busy commuter route.
Potently devastating impact on emergency ambulances passenger transport hospital
visitors.
Increased air pollution and noise pollution around the hospital.
The council’s U-turn on its environment policy to accommodate this scheme.

Page 73

















Failure to protect public Green Open Space as defined in their own Blue and Green
Strategy.
The gifting of the said leases to a company that has no assets, at a ridiculously low price.
Manipulation of leases and the length of leases show the lack of credentials the council
has for its residents and green belt land.
The use of this scheme will be of very little use to the residents of Blackpool, clearly aimed
at tourist and business at the expense of its residents.
Very few residents would consider using this site, with the cost considerations aligned to
similar sites.
This scheme is to the detriment of the town’s residents by removal its only municipal
course.
A company which has never run and has no knowledge how to run a golf course.
This scheme should have been sited elsewhere however Blackpool council have already
offered a site on the south shore but this rejected by HIP!
As HIP has no money or assets to develop this site, the suggestions that HIP will develop
this site is fanciful, more likely when the lease has been given there will a be a sale of the
land to the highest bidder, what the scheme will then look like outside the residents and
councils control.
This scheme will not bring prosperity to residents of the town and that the only people
who will benefit from this development will be the shareholders/investors of HIP.
Outside the council there is no appetite for this scheme even when details were released
by the council.
Blackpool council’s urgency to rush through to the planning stage by blocking all attempts
to democratically evaluate this scheme hiding behind no disclosure agreements, so it will
be then too late to stop or reverse the leasing process is despicable. Clearly the council
does not have the interests of Blackpool residents.
The lack of Blackpool council’s transparency over the procurement processes

It will come as no surprise to see that Blackpool is ranked first in the most deprived local
authorities based on rank. Schemes such as these will keep it there.
Residents of Blackpool are not included in council’s growth and prosperity polices, the
only include businesses and chasing the tourists at the expense of its residents.

Page 74

Objection 066
08.03.2020
Email
FY1 5NH

Fao:- Growth and Prosperity Team, Communications and Regeneration Directorate,
Blackpool Council.
Ref:- Stanley Park Golf Course
I strongly object to the proposed redevelopment of our golf course.
To contemplate desecrating this public open green space is a disgrace.
It is an area of historical and natural importance.
The loss of one of the few public and peaceful green spaces available to the public is
irresponsible.
The detremental effect on the habitat for all kinds of wildlife is unforgivable.
The changes would result in a significant increase in traffic congestion causing a
potentially devastating impact on emergency services en route to the hospital.
I therefore object to the Council plans 1,2 & 3, published in the Blackpool Gazette on 27th
February 2020, because they are all interlinked and interdependent.
Please take these concerns seriously and listen to the public.
t
l

Objection 067
08.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Good morning Growth and Prosperity Team
I write with regards to Stanley Park Golf Course and STRONGLY object and oppose to ALL 3 of the
public notices published by Blackpool Council with regards to 'getting rid' of the land to HIP for
development.
Firstly, for the council to dispose of the golf course on the east side and reduce this historic green
space and part of an 18 hole golf course is appalling. This land is valuable PUBLIC GREEN
SPACE belonging to the town of Blackpool and should not be removed. A decision made by a
handful of executives on the council and Blackpool and not what our town wants or needs is
another tourist attraction in a residential area next to the hospital.
Secondly, appropriating the east side of the course and redesignating this green space for building
land means that once this has been passed this green space will be lost forever and will be open
up to any kind of development even housing, which I feel this is what will end up being built. This
would have a devastating effect on the area if more property were to be built. The land and
surrounding areas would be flooded? The roads already have problems and cannot dispose of the

Page 75

rain water were have now in the bad weather. Once again the council are making bad decisions
which will have a detrimental affect on our town and residents for many years to come. Our
future generations need to be able benefit from having green space and not more buildings and
tourist attractions that aren't accessible by the majority of residents. This green space is a
valuable piece of land and letting a company have it FREE for 2 years again is taking money and
facilities away from our already cash strapped town. DEFINITELY NOT IN THE BEST INTEREST OF
OUR RESIDENTS AND TOWN. When this company finally own the land our town stands to lose in
the region of £70million + as this is probably what the land is worth and the council are prepared
to 'give' it away.
Thirdly, the current proposal is for a large warehouse adrenaline park and up to 250 lodges to be
built on the east side. This in itself is going to create havoc on the town's already congested roads
in and around the park and very busy hospital entrance. During the daytime these roads are
always busy and to build a tourist attraction in this area is going to create more problems on our
roads and create additional and unnecessary air and noise pollution in an area right next to
Blackpool Victoria Hospital. Blackpool currently has the lowest tree canopy in the UK and by
leasing then giving away this green space to a developer who has no experience, money or track
record already spells disaster.
Blackpool Council have made this same mistake a number of times and the town budget has
suffered in the process as Blackpool end up having to buy back land and developments following
bad deals two that come to mind are Blackpool Airport and Hounds Hill both of which have cost
millions to buy back what was once owned by our town. Blackpool is on the top of league tables
for all the wrong reasons! We have the highest rate of poverty in the UK and we should be
spending money on sorting out the issues our own residents deserve. We don't have unlimited
funds to keep bailing out failed enterprises and destroying good green land that is should be used
for leisure and health benefits for our own residents and people In the community.
I pay council tax and think all residents deserve the right to have a ballot with regards to these
public notices. This Way of having our say is again an unfair situation as many people do not have
social media or read the gazette so the council are banking on many people not being aware of
what is taking place.
Blackpool Council published and adopted their own Green and Blue Infrastructre Strategy (GBI)
which is a policy that has been developed to ensure all biological and heritage sites are
protected for nature conservation, protect and increase green space and double tree canopy,
increase and encourage residents to take up exercise in the parks and green gyms, remove air
pollutants and improve mental health and wellbeing in adults and children. This is just a few of
the statements taken from the GBI policy
These public notices are going AGAINST everything in the Green and Blue Infrastructure
Strategy. It really is farcical and the executives making these decision need to read their own
policies before sign over and destroying our towns green space which will be lost forever.
This proposed development will affect the flood plains as new developments are going to put a
strain on areas surrounding the green space.
Why is the council letting go of our town's heritage and iconic green space when there are many
more sites that could be used for a tourist attraction. Why is a developer being allowed to take
away our green space and cause more congestion on our roads, more air and noise pollution in a

Page 76

residential area. There are areas on the outskirts of the town that would not cause issues on the
road during and after building.
WHY ARE THE COUNCIL GIVING AWAY AND ALLOWING DEVELOPERS TO DESTROY OUR GREEN
SPACE. THIS PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS NOT IN THE INTEREST OF RESIDENTS LIKE MANY OF THE
TOURIST ATTRACTIONS IN OUR TOWN.
We need a town that has facilities and attractions for residents and tourist to enjoy not just
tourists. The current golf course, with the right people running it could increase membership and
offer an outdoor sport for everyone regardless of age, gender, ability resident or visitor and still
keeping the valuable green space which our town needs. This would also follow Blackpool's own
GBI policy
Developments should be benefit to our whole community - residents who live and pay council
taxes and NOT just the tourists.
Blackpool council are destroying our valuable and much used green space and giving it away for
developments. No thought has gone into the effect this is going to have people's health and well
being let alone the wildlife, flora and fauna which are going to suffer if this is allowed to go ahead.
The green space in question is an historic site which is almost 100 years old and again going
against the GBI policy which states that it will "ensure all biological and heritage sites are
protected for nature conservation".
I STRONGLY OBJECTED AND OPPOSE THESE THREE PUBLIC NOTICES ISSUED BY BLACKPOOL
COUNCIL

Blackpool Resident
Objection 068
08.03.2020
Email
FY1 4HZ

From:

To: Growth and Prosperity Team,
Communications and Regeneration Directorate,
Blackpool Borough Council,
PO Box 11,
Town Hall,
Blackpool.
FY1 1NB
Notice 1
Notice 2

Disposal of open space land, land at Stanley Park golf course, Blackpool.
Appropriation of open space land, land at Stanley Park golf course,

Page 77

Blackpool.
Notice 3

Disposal of open space land, land at Stanley Park golf course, Blackpool.

Sir,
I write in connection with the above proposals. I have examined the plans and I
know the sites well. I wish to object strongly to the developments of these areas.
These proposals will affect the community of Blackpool as a whole. An “Open Area”
amenity will be lost forever.
It is one of the few open spaces left in Blackpool that can be appreciated by people. It will
have a detrimental affect on the quality of life for those that enjoy the Open Area.
It will be an over development of a site and will be out of character with the open area that
is currently enjoyed by local residents who are able to walk in this area along the nearby
bridle path.
Currently, it is very pleasant to be able to walk nearby in this open area and this will be
destroyed by the housing and amenities.
The development will have a huge detrimental and
negative visual impact, changing a pleasant open area, enjoyed by many walking along the
nearby bridle pathways, into an overdeveloped use of this space.
More residential development, albeit on a holiday basis, and the commercialisation of this
open area, is not needed or wanted in this area. It is a recognised Open Area.
The proposed over development of this open space will increase traffic and population in
the area with the resultant increase in noise and pollution. It will result in an overcrowding
of the area.
There is a large number of wild life in this open area that will be destroyed with no
prospect of return.
These proposed developments of the Open Area will have all of the above adverse affects
are not acceptable.

Objection 069
08.03.2020
Email
FY3 8FB
Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications and Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council
I am contacting you in response to the public notices published in the Gazette concerning the
plans for the future of the golf course land.

Page 78

I an objecting to all three notices since they are closely connected with the disposal of this land
and proposals for the future use.
My main objection has always been the loss of the land between the hospital and the woods since
it involves a change to use and it will become building land. Not only do we not need buildings
with all that entails of more roads, the need for local facilities etc. and increased traffic - a further
danger to the hospital emergency services - and pollution on an already very busy route, we lose
open land and loss of habitat for wildlife, so
precious in these times of heightened awareness of the dangers to environment.
Why should we be allowing planning for holiday homes in this area out of town when the council
is already supporting the erection of big new hotels close to the tourist areas of the town?
I appreciate that the Council have huge responsibilities and our town, where I was born and bred
and which I love is suffering hugely through huge austerity imposed cuts in financial resources.
But it is now wise to sell off this important local asset so cheaply and it would seem with no
control over the actual development the purchasing company intends. I urge you to reconsider .
Sincerely
Please acknowledge this email. Thank you.

Objection 070
09.03.2020
Email
FY3 8JB
Resident and local business owner
Sirs,
Please take this email as a formal objection to the selling, regeneration and development of the
land on East Park Drive and part of the golf course at Stanley Park.
As a resident of the area for 18 years, the traffic is getting worse. This will not help matters

Page 79

Objection 071
09.03.2020
Email
FY3 8NP
LAND AT STANLEY PARK GOLF COURSE, BLACKPOOL
From
ad

09/03/2020
I wish to strongly object to the above proposal.
The council are supposed to be guardians of land in Blackpool. They do not own the land, just care
for it for the people of Blackpool. When was this idea put to the people of Blackpool? There has
been a golf course on this land for many years, I played there in my youth.
How has the effect on the climate changes been taken into account, with this appropriation?
Yours sincerely

Objection 072
09.03.2020
Email
FY3 9SZ

Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications and Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Borough Council
PO Box 11
Town Hall
Blackpool
FY1 1NB

9 March 2020

Ref: Stanley Park Golf Course
Dear Sir/Madam,
We are writing to object strongly to the plans for the Appropriation and Disposal of The
Open Space Land at Stanley Park Golf Course, Blackpool.
We welcome new developments in Blackpool but in our opinion, for many reasons we
believe this development is in the wrong place.

Page 80

Firstly, this is one of the very few open green spaces remaining in a town which has one of
the lowest number of such spaces in the whole of the UK. Therefore every single one is
precious. How many mature trees will be lost in the construction of Adrenaline World and
the holiday lodges? Planting new young trees is no substitute for the destruction of
efficient, carbon destroying, mature specimens, and also the significant acreage of grass
which will be lost.
Secondly, the traffic on East Park Drive and especially near the hospital, is already
severely congested, especially during peak periods. This development will cause it to be
even worse and will certainly have a negative impact on the many ambulances en route to
the hospital and departing from there to other emergencies. The additional traffic will
cause difficulties for the general public attending the hospital for appointments or visiting
patients, and also to local residents during their daily travels.
The plans available for viewing tell us absolutely nothing about the location of the
proposed buildings or the means of access to and egress from the development. It is hard to
envisage where these access points may be situated without causing even greater delays
and inconvenience to local residents. Last summer the traffic queues were such that it took
us almost one hour to travel home from the Zoo car park, a distance of about half a mile.
Throughout that time, most of the stationary vehicles were pumping out exhaust fumes.
The building and operation of Adrenaline World and the holiday lodges will seriously
exacerbate this problem, increasing pollution in the area of the hospital. The green spaces
around East Park Drive are essential to help counter the traffic fumes along its length.
Surely Blackpool Council should be trying to reduce pollution, rather than adding to it.
Noise pollution from the proposed facility is likely to impact the hospital and the peace of
Salisbury Wood.
Labour Party policy, which is supported by Blackpool Council’s blue/green policy, is
supposed to protect green open spaces. How does this development fit into these policies?
Or is Blackpool Council merely paying lip service to these policies?
Thirdly, how will this development benefit local people? Many families in Blackpool are
amongst the poorest in the country and will be unable to afford Adrenaline World. Nor is
it likely that Blackpool residents will use the holiday lodges.
Rather than the proposed development, this site is of greater benefit to the local community
in its current use as a golf course and green space, enjoyed by walkers, nature lovers, dog
walkers, all those who enjoy the outdoors, healthy pursuits and rural peace, than the
proposed development.
Adrenaline World is an indoor attraction which does not need to be situated in a green
space. Blackpool has many central run-down sites in need of redevelopment and in such a
situation would be a both an improvement and an asset to the town’s tourist industry,
conveniently located for the majority of visitors to our town.
If the current plans are passed, Blackpool residents will be deprived of a well-loved facility
that they can and do use, for the provision of one which they cannot afford and will be of
no benefit to them. This land, as it stands, is a major asset to our town, is irreplaceable and
should not be sold off and lost for ever.

Page 81

We strongly urge you to reject these plans.

Yours faithfully,

Objection 073
09.03.2020
Posted letter
FY6 7NX

Page 82

Objection 074
09.03.2020
Posted envelope
FY3 9EA

Objection 075
09.03.2020
Posted letter
FY6 7DN
Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications and Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council
PO Box 11
Town Hall
Blackpool
FY1 1NB
Dear Blackpool Council
Re: - Stanley Park Golf Course Blackpool
It is not clear what the underlying motive is for Blackpool Council to act in such an undemocratic
way in relation to this area of land, but no doubt it will become clear in the fulness of time.
In the meantime, I wish to place my objection on record, against the action to appropriate this
land on behalf of a private developer!

Page 83

1. Your first notice intends to produce a short-term lease which will allow the developer to take
over the running of the golf course and includes the land to the east and the west sides of East
Park Drive.
You are already aware of the background and trading history of the individuals who make up the
management of this development company, who have collectively been involved in serious and
significant insolvency actions from previous business ventures, but you choose to ignore this,
stating that although the individuals themselves have such a background the development
company itself has passed your financial assessment and due diligence process!
You also appear to be satisfied that this company who have no experience in running a golf course
proper, (unless you include the crazy golf facility in Croydon Golf) are suitable to maintain and
manage this facility, which more experienced and competent companies including the council
itself have failed to do in the past?
Once you have established the this lease you intend in March 2021 to then extend the lease to the
West Side of the course in order that it can
be reduced to a nine holes despite the fact that any substantial change to the layout of this area
of recreational land needs to be approved by English Heritage, under the current conservation
notice?
2. The appropriation of the land to the east side will then allow the course to be split in two, and
in so doing destroying over 100 years of golfing heritage.
The golf course as a whole still has more use than many other municipal leisure offerings across
the town, bowling greens and tennis courts remain unused for lengthy periods throughout the
year, whereas this land is in use all year round, the purpose for which it was originally establish
nearly 100 years ago.
Dog walkers and bird watchers again use this area all year round, and data from local groups show
that this area is home to many species of native birds who would lose this habitat if the significant
re-development is approved.
3. Finally, the third notice allows the change of use of this land for development although at this
stage this may not include housing there does not appear to be any guarantee that at some stage
in the future such development may take place.
It is suggested that if this development should fail in its efforts to get this development through
the full planning process, then the land will be retained in its current use?
If this is the case then why is there a need to destroy the existing layout, what’s the rush?
If the developers are so sure they will get this through planning, then why don’t they wait until
such approval is given before carving up the golf course?
Every single person we talk to about this project cannot believe the proposal to put a theme park
behind the hospital’s cardiac unit. This is not a tourist area, its deep in the heart of Blackpool, and
it should be retained for its current use.
The disruption from construction traffic and the restricted access to the site can only lead to sever
congestion around the hospital, making access for emergency vehicles more difficult that it
already appears to be.

Page 84

There must be many more suitable sites within the town existing leisure areas where this type of
development would be much more suited.
Yours truly
Barlow
Objection 076
10.03.2020
Email
FY3 9AU
Further to your Public Notice "Disposal of Open Space Land, Land at Stanley Park
Golf Course Blackpool
under Sections 123(1) and 123(2A) Blackpool Borough intends to dispose of an
area comprising of open space land at Stanley Park Golf Course Blackpool for use
as a golf course and ancillary facilities.
We wish to lodge our objection to this sale of the said Land.
This is an area of outstanding beauty and a green belt portion of land. In this
borough we are loosing too much green belt and type of green spaces.
This has been a Golf Course for a very long time and once sold off it will ruin the
Blackpool Stanley Park Municipal Gold course.
The sale would be damaging to all the local community bringing in large amounts
of polluting traffic in an area that is a main archery for traffic to the Fylde. Most
days the main road is blocked with traffic and at rush hour morning and evening is
almost grid locked. It is also the main road for ambulances to travel to and from
Victoria Hospital. Should the situation be that one person dies in the ambulance
because of the traffic problems being caused then it is on the Chair of the
councils head and he should have to answer why he and his fellow council
members voted to get rid of the most important space.
When we have all gone to meet our maker this facility will have been taken away
by a very uncaring set of councillors. It can never be replaced as a golf course
with a perfect 18 hole format.
Yours sincerely

Objection 077
Email
10.03.2020
FY3 9AU
Further to your Public Notice "Appropriation of Open Space Land, Land at Stanley
Park Golf Course Blackpool

Page 85

under Sections 122(1) and 122(2A) Blackpool Borough intends to dispose of an
area comprising of open space land at Stanley Park Golf Course Blackpool for use
as a golf course and ancillary facilities.
We wish to lodge our objection to this sale of the said Land.
This is an area of outstanding beauty and a green belt portion of land. In this
borough we are loosing too much green belt and type of green spaces.
This has been a Golf Course for a very long time and once sold off it will ruin the
Blackpool Stanley Park Municipal Gold course.
The sale would be damaging to all the local community bringing in large amounts
of polluting traffic in an area that is a main archery for traffic to the Fylde. Most
days the main road is blocked with traffic and at rush hour morning and evening is
almost grid locked. It is also the main road for ambulances to travel to and from
Victoria Hospital. Should the situation be that one person dies in the ambulance
because of the traffic problems being caused then it is on the Chair of the
councils head and he should have to answer why he and his fellow council
members voted to get rid of the most important space.
When we have all gone to meet our maker this facility will have been taken away
by a very uncaring set of councillors. It can never be replaced as a golf course
with a perfect 18 hole format. The proposed development will not be feasible on
the space and with the road structure
Yours sincerely

l

Objection 078
10.03.2020
Email
FY3 9AU
Further to your Public Notice "Disposal of Open Space Land, Land at Stanley Park
Golf Course Blackpool
under Sections 233(1) and 233(4) Blackpool Borough intends to dispose of an area
comprising of open space land at Stanley Park Golf Course Blackpool for use as a
golf course and ancillary facilities.
We wish to lodge our objection to this sale of the said Land.
This is an area of outstanding beauty and a green belt portion of land. In this
borough we are loosing too much green belt and type of green spaces.
This has been a Golf Course for a very long time and once sold off it will ruin the
Blackpool Stanley Park Municipal Gold course.
The sale would be damaging to all the local community bringing in large amounts
of polluting traffic in an area that is a main archery for traffic to the Fylde. Most

Page 86

days the main road is blocked with traffic and at rush hour morning and evening is
almost grid locked. It is also the main road for ambulances to travel to and from
Victoria Hospital. Should the situation be that one person dies in the ambulance
because of the traffic problems being caused then it is on the Chair of the
councils head and he should have to answer why he and his fellow council
members voted to get rid of the most important space.
When we have all gone to meet our maker this facility will have been taken away
by a very uncaring set of councillors. It can never be replaced as a golf course
with a perfect 18 hole format. Please be clear about what exactly you mean by
ancillary uses. The current details as laid out by the council are not clear as to
exactly what will happen if this land is sold/leased off. It needs to be made clear
now as to what activities the council are prepared to use this land should it ever
be sold or leased, again not so clear? One of the whispers going round is there will
be a go-cart track as part of the development. This has numerous problems, all at
the detriment of the local community. In fact all we can see is that we are an
aging community and it will be of no use to the local citizens what so ever. It then
means bring in outside extra traffic and pollution to an area which is already in
such a poor state of repair. You the council are raising our Rates and working
against your local communities and not of much use to the people who will bear
the burden of what ever you decide.
Yours sincerely

032
Objection 079
10.03.2020
Email
FY3 9UF
I wish to object to all three recently announced public notices relating to the open space land
appropriation and disposal associated with Stanley Park Golf Course.
Whilst I recognise that the first public notice only relates to the short term lease of both the east
and west sides of the golf course I believe that this is being done solely to meet the
ultimate objective of the council to change the use of and the disposal of the east side of the
course land and hence is a means to an end. I do not believe that any short term lease of this land
should be given until the overall situation regarding the long term use of the land has been
decided.
I cannot overstate my objection to proposal number 2, which in essence seeks to change the
designated use of the public open space between the Hospital and Salisbury Woodlands from a
green open space to building land. Given that this space is one of the few public and peaceful
green spaces available to the people of Blackpool I believe that its current use should be
preserved particularly given the government’s edict to retain such spaces to help promote the
need for healthy living. Such a change of designation would also lead to the destruction of tress

Page 87

needed to fight climate change and a local habitat and feeding ground for wildlife in both the
immediate and surrounding areas. Furthermore, it would mean the loss of a beautiful and
sporting landscape in the town, which we can ill afford to lose.
Finally I object to proposal 3, which seeks to dispose of the land to the east of East Park Drive by
way of leases for use for a proposed leisure/lodge development. Whilst I appreciate that the
town is in much need of development, I firmly believe that this is the wrong site for such a
development to take place. I believe that such a development, if successful, would lead to a very
significant and detrimental increase in traffic congestion on an already busy commuter route
leading to an increase in air and noise pollution around the hospital, a potentially hazardous
impact on emergency services, particularly fire and ambulance, and a detrimental impact on
passenger transport and hospital visitors.
Yours Sincerely

Page 88

Objection 080
10.03.2020
Posted letter
FY6 8AE

Page 89

Objection 080
10.03.2020
Posted letter
FY4 4TA

Page 90

Page 91

Objection 082
10.03.2020
Posted letter

Page 92

Objection 083
10.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Dear Growth and Prosperity Team
I write to register my opposition to the disposal and appropriation of the area of open space land at
Stanley Park Golf Course.
I would ask you not to add the decimation of this historic golf course to this council’s tally of disasters,
such as the Talbot Road tram, and the dangerous road junction at Watson Road, St Anne’s Road, and
Marton Drive.
Yours faithfully

Page 93

Objection 084
10.03.2020
Posted Letter
FY3 9AP

Page 94

Page 95

Page 96

Objection 085
11.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Good morning Growth and Prosperity Team
I was born and bred in Blackpool and have lived here all my life, (88 years) so class myself a true
Blackpudlian.
My point in contacting you is to let you know how strongly I object and oppose to what Blackpool
Council has published with their 3 notices regarding the development of Stanley Park Golf Course.
The first notice whereby the council is to dispose of the golf course on the east side for the
purpose of building and reduce the iconic and historic course to 9 holes is absolutely
appalling. Whether a golfer or not, this green space belongs to the people of Blackpool and for a
handful of people to make a decision to get rid of our space is totally unacceptable. This land is
our heritage and valuable GREEN SPACE which the council should not be making this decision
which is going to affect our future generations. I, along with my family and many other residents
and visitors have spent many many years using this facility and green space playing, walking,
golfing, bird watching. Why now take this away when there are so many more suitable places to
build on for a tourist attraction? Places which would be more in-keeping with tourist attractions,
less intrusive and tidy up unused/derelict areas of land in the town.
The second notice appropriating the east side of the course for planning purposes, once this has
been passed this green space will be lost forever and will then be open up to any kind of
development including building houses. The people of Blackpool deserve so much more than
houses and tourist attractions. Our community should be inclusive to everyone who lives and pays
council taxes. We surely have a right and a say as to what happens in our town.
Blackpool council keep making decisions which have an affect on our town and residents for many
years to come. The green space in question is in a predominantly residential area and right next to
a very busy hospital that certainly doesn’t need to contend with more traffic congestion. Our
wildlife will suffer if building takes place on this land. There are many variety of birds including the
herons, hawks, owls and kestrels that are huge part of this green land along with the hedgehogs
and other wildlife which can be seen around the golf course. There is an abundance of flora and
fauna which is all part of the Stanley Park ‘umbrella’. Any building work is going to have a huge
and detrimental effect on the wildlife. Blackpool does NOT NEED any buildings or tourist
attractions in residential areas at the cost of losing our green space. Once it’s gone it’s gone and
we the residents deserve so much more than an attraction we will never use.
Thirdly, disposing of our town's green space for a proposed leisure development is ludicrous. Why
has this even been considered when the council have already passed a similar, much bigger
leisure development for central promenade. This is the right place to build a tourist attraction
NOT on green space next to the hospital.
Blackpool has the lowest tree canopy in the UK and by leasing/giving away this green space this is
going to be reduced even more.
Why is this lease being given to a company who has no track record of ever building, or running a
leisure complex and also when Blackpool are frequently saying they have no money are now

Page 97

giving 12 months FREE lease and then negotiations for a 125 year lease which will work out at
approx. £11,000 per year. This land is so much more valuable than that and already spells
DISASTER! How many times has Blackpool Council sold off the town's land and then had to buy it
back i.e. Blackpool Airport, Hounds Hill to name two. Cash strapped council - we don't have the
funds to keep bailing out failed enterprises and destroying good green land that is being used for
leisure and health benefits for our residents and community.
What happens when the hospital needs to extend? Not going to happen if this land is owned by a
developer who have a tourist attraction or worse still housing development built on here. Where
is the forward thinking of basic infrastructure for all these new housing developments going to be
as this is what will be built when another leisure attraction fails because it is in the wrong area.
Selling off our green land is taking away any possibility in the future of this happening.
I have read Blackpool Council’s Green and Blue Infrastructure Strategy (GBI) and by selling off this
green space for building it is going against everything set out in this GBI strategy. Is this strategy
just a ‘ticking the boxes’ for government purposes? As The council are definitely not following
it.....
" ensure all biological and heritage sites are protected for nature conservation”
" making the most of what we have for Residents & visitors"
”provide attractive roots for residents, communities and visitors"
" take health seriously - help at least 5000 more local people each week enjoy exercise at our
parks and encourage forest schools, green gyms and nature-based prescriptions"
"18,500 Blackpool people use outdoor space. This is 5000 people less than national average"
“intensely urban with one of the highest densities of housing outside London"
”Always think for the future"
”remove air pollutants"
“improve the mental health of adults and children"
" one of lowest life expectancies in England"
"Lowest tree canopy"
It is very sad to keep hearing reports in the media that Blackpool is number 1 for all the wrong
reason; poverty, deprivation, lowest tree canopy and here is our council on track to make things
worse. Blackpool council’s so called executives are not thinking about the residents of Blackpool
and their future. DO WE NOT COUNT?
It is unthinkable about the additional strain this development is going to have on the already
congested roads in and around the area including East Park Drive, Newton Drive, North Park
Drive, South Park Drive. These roads are chaotic at the best of times.
There is going to be an increase in pollution and noise which will have a detrimental impact on the
hospital and their patients as well as residents in the area and the wildlife.
Why are Blackpool Council being allowed to sell off this land and destroy a facility that is used by
residents and tourists? With the right people running this facility (and not this proposed
developer) it could be returned to the best municipal course providing a sporting facility suitable
for all ages, genders, abilities, residents and visitors and still keep the valuable green space which
our town needs. It could be used by schools, prescription sport, mental health patients and many
more people who live in Blackpool and visitors alike. This is not just a golf course, the club has a
social membership and is a place where many feel safe to visit and meet and make new
friendships. What is going to happen when this is taken away!

Page 98

Blackpool Council are once again being short sighted. Our town needs facilities that will be
beneficial for our whole community NOT just the tourists. DO WE NOT COUNT!!
Stanley Park Golf Course is almost 100 years old and is an historic sight. The course was built by Dr
Alister MacKenzie a famous golf course architect. We should be celebrating NOT destroying! Even
people who are not golfers regularly enjoy this green space. It is a place of beauty and should be
left intact for our future generations.
Over the years I have witnessed many bad decisions made by the council who are elected to
represent and serve the people of its town and not make decisions that are going to cause issues
in the future.
PLEASE STOP AND RECONSIDER BEFORE IT IS TOO LATE. WHEN THIS DEAL IS SIGNED
BLACKPOOL’S GREEN SPACE WILL BE DRAMATICALLY REDUCED AND THE TOWN WILL NOT
RECOVER FROM THIS LOSS.
I STRONGLY OPPOSE THESE PLANS.
Yours
Blackpool Resident
Objection 086
11.03.2020
Email
FY3 8NP
LAND AT STANLEY PARK GOLF COURSE
BLACKPOOL From

Blackpool

11/03/2020

I wish to strongly object to the above proposal
As I understand, if the land is disposed of there will be a large development. This will incorporate
leisure and lodge facilities together with ancillary uses.
As you can see from my address, I live very close to the proposed development, and have lived at
this address for more than 35 years. When the searches were done by our solicitor, there was no
indication of the massive development of Victoria Hospital, the Facility on the corner of Whinney
Heys Road/ Newton Drive, the building of the 2 blocks of flats just round the corner on Newton
Drive, the Staff Car Park behind Burwood Drive, and the Multi Storey Car Park at the end of
Whinney Heys Road. These buildings have had a massive effect on the Water Table in the area.
My rear garden floods on a very regular basis and the front garden nearly as often. This did not
happen prior to these buildings. Also the road on the corner of Whinpark Avenue and Whinney
Heys Road frequentpy floods.
Has the council considered this, and taken this into account when deciding to dispose of this land
in this fashion?

Page 99

Yours sincerely

Page 100

Objection 087
11.03.2020
Email
FY3 9TZ
Local business owner
Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I h ave
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:









HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority
must recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre -construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public
amenity and open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.
Yours faithfully,

Page 101

Objection 088
11.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident

Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Sec ondly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:









HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority
must recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre -construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public
amenity and open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.

Page 102

Objection 089
11.03.2020
Posted letter
FY4 4HZ

Page 103

Objection 090
11.03.2020
Posted letter
FY6 7DW

Page 104

Objection 091
11.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:









HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority
must recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not ha ve
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre-construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public
amenity and open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.
Yours faithfully
t

Objection 092
12.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Growth and prosperity team
I want to share my views and Object to all 3 notices.

Page 105

Our green land that we have left is so important. Not only to our well being but to our wildlife, the
loss of wildlife habitat would be horrendous.
This would have a huge impact on our environment. We need all the green space we have left, we
need to fight climate change as best we can.
The road is already heavily congested which already has an impact on our emergency services.
Increasing this congestion would have a fatal impact for us and emergency services.
These are just a handful of reasons. Please take our views into account and act accordingly to our
concerns.
Kind regards

Objection 093
11.03.2020
Email
FY6 8ES

Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:









HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority
must recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre -construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of pu blic
amenity and open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.

Page 106

Yours faithfully

Objection 094
11.03.2020
Email
FY2 0WL
Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public no tices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:











HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the auth ority
must recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre -construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viab ility of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public
amenity and open space.

Page 107

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.
Yours faithfully,

Objection 095
11.03.2020
Email
FY2 0PB

Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the
proposals for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving
Holmes Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:













HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a development on
the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been proposed for
Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package, is at
this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority must
recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have the
£40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the course
should remain open as normal during the pre-construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park Golf
Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public amenity
and open space.
A loss of public open space when the Council has voted in favour of a Climate Emergency
Flooding along this part of East Park Drive is a regular occurrence and this proposed
development can only make it worse.

Page 108



The impact on an already gridlocked road is totally unacceptable and may also cause
traffic problems for the nearby Victoria Hospital.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf
course on the Stanley Park site.
Yours faithfully,

Objection 096
11.03.2020
Email
FY5 3RL
Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:








HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Dr ive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority
must recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre -construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.

Page 109



An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public
amenity and open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.
Yours faithfully,

Objection 097
11.03.2020
Email
FY2 0WS

regeneration@blackpool.gov.uk
Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Se condly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:









HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority
must recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre -construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public
amenity and open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.

Page 110

Yours faithfully,

Objection 098
11.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident

Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involvin g Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:









HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority
must recognise there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool si te for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre -construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public
amenity and open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.
Yours faithfully,

Page 111

Objection 099
11.03.2020
Email
FY2 9HG
Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals for
disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes Investment
Properties (HIP) as published in public notices on February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate and
would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I have significant concerns
over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process B lackpool Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:









HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a development on the
scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.
The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been proposed for
Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package, is at
this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority must recognise
there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have the
£40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience i n running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the course
should remain open as normal during the pre-construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park Go lf
Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public amenity and
open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course on the
Stanley Park site.
Yours faithfully,

Page 112

Objection 100
12.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 8LS
Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications and Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council
PO Box 11
Town Hall
Blackpool
FY1 1NB

10th March 2020
Dear Blackpool Council
Re: - Stanley Park Golf Course Blackpool
Blackpool Open Green Spaces is a community forum with over 300 subscribers, and are an
environmental campaign group whose aim is the protection of Blackpool’s ever decreasing areas
of public open green space.
Blackpool Council clearly has a hidden agenda in relation to the land east of east park drive and
as outlined in red on the plan that has been produced in relation to the notices for appropriation
of the land and Stanley Park Golf Course in particular.
In regard of your first notice, our guardians are concerned that despite a record from the Council
meeting notes November 2018, stating that a consultation regarding this land would be
completed, no such consultation as occurred.
Had this consultation been undertaken there would certainly have been a move to have the area
registered as open green space providing protection against development with similar
restrictions to green belt, ruling out anything other than development under special
circumstances.
Alternatively, Stanley Park Golf Course in its entirety could have been registered as a community
asset.
Through consultation this area of land could have been considered subject to The National
Planning Policy Framework.
Which states: The council should have a framework within which local people and their
accountable councils can produce their own distinctive local and neighbourhood plans which
reflect the needs and priorities of their communities. Blackpool Framework fails to do this.

Page 113

This framework includes rights for local communities to identify, through their plans, Local Green
Space of significance to them for special protection.
This area of land should be protected because of the shortage of green space in Blackpool, the
natural beauty of the area, its historic sporting importance relating to the heritage concerned with
Dr Alistair Mackenzie. The recreational value of a well-used public leisure facility, the undisputed
tranquillity of the site, with a richness of local wildlife.
As such this land and its proximity to the residential community it serves, should be designated as
Local Green Space, and calls by the community to rule out new developments other than in very
special circumstances, should be given real consideration.
Why the Council, its officers and Labour Councillors have undertaken this process in such an
undemocratic way in relation to this area of land, will no doubt become clearer in the fulness of
time.
We understand that it is your intention not to make any charge for the short-term lease on this
land, was this arrangement part of the original submission when bidding for procurement by the
developer, if not then your procurement process is compromised. Any such arrangement cannot
be in the interest of the residents of the town.
The second notice allows the development in March 2021 when you intend to split the course in
two, and develop the west side with a driving range, practice facilities, and reduction in the
number of holes from 11 to 9.
This would constitute a significant alteration to the landscape of the area, and should the
developer submit a planning application that involves alteration to this part of the golf course
within the Stanley Park boundaries then the local authority are statutorily obliged to consult with
Historic England because the park is listed as Grade II*(star), and it also sits within the Stanley
Park Conservation Area (CA).
The third notice then changes the use of the land east of East Park Drive and will allow for leisure
development.
This change you will argue is due to lack of use in its current format as a golf course, we would
argue that there are still over 25,000 rounds of played on this land over the year, all be it that the
majority of rounds are played in the summer months, there are far more leisure facilities which
cost the council more to maintain and have significantly lower patronage! You also argue that this
facility is financially unviable and has been for several years.
We would say that it is your mismanagement of the facility that has led to the decline in playing
numbers and lack of investment in the course, and we have provided evidence that the course
could not just be viable but under the correct management could thrive and once established
provide vital revenue income to the council.
We have been given data from the local RSPB, which shows a wide diversity of bird life in this
area, and this will be lost if the land is developed, as this is the vital link in the green corridor
between North and Central Blackpool. It is also a location that the hedgehog society have
identified as a key release site for these rescue animals!

Page 114

The developer needs to submit detailed plans for the development of this land, plans which we
will undoubtably be challenge, as the siting of a holiday theme park at the rear of the hospital and
holiday lodges will be resisted by our supporters.
We are informed that the extended lease will be for 175 years, with a value of 2M, as such this
works out at less then £11,000 p/a, and completely undervalues the site?
Our supports have already contacted you and raised issues around disruption from construction
traffic and the restricted access to the site can only lead to sever congestion around the hospital,
making access for emergency vehicles more difficult that it already appears to be.
They have made appeals for you to reconsider this ill thought out development on this site and
offer the developer a more suitable site within the towns existing leisure areas where this type of
development would be much better suited.
We hope you are listening to these objections, and that this consultation is not just another tick
box process, by the council.
Should you fail to produce a public notice concerning the outcome of this consultation then we
will have our answer about your intentions concerning these objections.
Yours truly

Steering Group
Objection 101
12.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Sir
I am horrified at your latest proposal of the Stanley Park Golf Course.
This golf course is part of Blackpool’s heritage and is for the people of the town, surely there is
enough space elsewhere in Blackpool to build on, rather than decimate this beautiful place.
The idea of some 250 lodges and another theme park will impact on the already struggling smaller
hotels & guest houses, and along with the noise this will cause the Hospital is surely something to
consider.
I would ask you to reconsider this awful proposal, I have spoken to many people who are genuinely
upset at the loss of more green spaces, that you yourselves are portraying as something that you care
about!
Please show the people of Blackpool that you do care, that you do listen and above all that you care
about our town.
Regards

Page 115

Objection 102
12.03.2020
Email
FY1 5QR
Stanley Park Golf Club first Stanley park next?
Dear sir or Madam
I am writing to you to complain about your decision to appropriate the land and award the lease
for Stanley Park Golf Club to HIP. The directors of the company are not squeeky clean and are only
out to make the maximum profit available.
They have no experience in running golf courses and are at present only running a driving range.
The other properties they have leases on are awaiting planning permission for change of use to
build houses.
Will you ensure they pay the £60,000 rent requirement (which the other bidder is willing and
capable of paying) or will this be waived.
With the profits available on the area over the road then the next thing HIP will have their eye on
is the rest of the golf club. The figures are excessive.
The land was bought by the council in the 1920,s at a cost of £20,000. This equates (at todays)
prices (for a smaller site with building permission) of in excess of £2,000,000 .
Once HIP stop working on the site and leave it wild the council will initially give planning
permission for the sports village. After a few years when the furore dies down the planning will
change to 100 top end houses. Sales of 100 houses at a low price of £600,000 would generate a
profit of at least £2,000,000.
The houses would be sold as leasehold properties and would also have to pay HIP a yearly fee.
The council will benefit from the council tax of approx. £200,000 per annum. For 175 years.
All this for an annual rent of £60,000 which was not paid by Mac trading and probably will not be
paid by HIP.
During this period the rest of the course will be allowed to deteriorate and membership will drop.
HIP will then leave the area to depreciate even more until they get planning permission for more
houses. Once the build starts Stanley park itself is open for grabs.
This is something we should all be trying to stop.
Yours

Page 116

Objection 103
13.03.2020
Email
FY3 7SW

Objection 104
12.03.2020
Email
FY3 8NP

Page 117

12/03/2020
I wish to strongly object to this proposal
This proposal for the disposal of this open space land at Stanley park Golf Course for the use as a
golf course with ancillary facilities, has been used as a golf course in conjunction with the area of
Stanley Park on the west side of East Park Drive and the south side of North Park Drive for very
many years.
If this goes ahead, the site which has an abundance of wild life, and more than 400 trees, access
will be lost by the general population of Blackpool. It contributes to helping the Climate Change
problem, with the 400 plus trees, which would have to be replaced. There is also a Public Right of
Way crossing between the two areas to be disposed. This Public Right of Way leads onto the
Public Right of Way across The De Vere Golf Course, and onwards to Staining.
With the excess traffic, what facilities will be offered to the staff and patients attending Victoria
Hospital, not forgetting the Ambulances and Emergency Services, and the local residents? The
traffic on East Park Drive is at the moment monumental, and with the tourists accessing the
proposed development will be unsustainable.
In the 1980's/1990's, there was planning permission to build houses on land to the south of East
Park Drive, between Halifax Street and the junction of South Park Drive, West Park Drive and East
Park Drive. The houses on the lower part of the plot of land were unable to be built because of the
state of the land. It was piled many times, but the piles kept sinking. This shows the instability of
this area.
The infrastructure needed for such a large development could quite easily damage the
infrastructure of the Hospital, and the houses adjacent to the Hospital causing many unforeseen
problems.
Yours sincerely

Objection 105
12.03.2020
Email
FY4 4UU

Dear Sirs,
As a Blackpool resident and interested party I wish to register my objection to the proposals
for disposal and development of land at Stanley Park Golf Course involving Holmes
Investment Properties (HIP) as published in public notices o n February 27.
My objections are twofold, firstly that the redevelopment of the golf course is inappropriate
and would result in the loss of green space and community amenity. Secondly, I have
significant concerns over HIP as a suitable partner and the due diligence process Blackpool
Council has undertaken.
I believe the disposal of the land is ill-judged as:


HIP has only recently been established and has no record of delivering a
development on the scale of what is proposed at East Park Drive.

Page 118









The company has no experience in design and build projects such has been
proposed for Blackpool.
The Adrenaline World concept, which has been promoted as part of the HIP package,
is at this stage merely a concept. There are no active sites and as such the authority
must recognize there is a degree of risk attached.
Public scrutiny of HIP’s accounts suggest that, presently, the company does not have
the £40m funding required to deliver the Blackpool site for David Lloyd.
Should the venture fall through at any stage, HIP has no experience in running and
maintaining golfing facilities, placing doubt over the agreement reached that the
course should remain open as normal during the pre -construction phase.
A reduction to nine holes would significantly impact the viability of the Stanley Park
Golf Club as a business.
Failure of HIP to deliver the development may reduce in the land falling out of use.
An alternative, locally led proposal is available, based on the retention of public
amenity and open space.

I hope you will consider my objections and alternative options to retain an 18 hole golf course
on the Stanley Park site.
Yours faithfully,

Objection 106
13.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated – email signature post code PR2 2YQ
Care service provider
To whoever it may concern,
I has been recently brought to my attention that Stanley Park Golf Course is for sale, and that
offers had been made from several people, including the David Lloyd Gym group to purchase this
land. I am writing to highlight my concerns as not only a local resident but someone who uses the
area for work purposes, including the Golf Course. The negative impact of another gym is that we
are already in the top 8% for the least green town in the country, and that they impact that this
will have on the wildlife on that area would be detrimental. This land must be maintained for not
only habitats, but to decrease the risk of urban sprawl in that area, which is already a high traffic
zone without a new gym which building works will introduce a whole new level of problems to the
area. I am also aware that an offer has been made by another golf company, which would mean
no risk to the environment in regards to pollution or habitats to wildlife, and perhaps it would be
better for everyone if Lloyds gym purchased a brown site in the area in a less traffic congestion
area further away from the town most luxury gym.

Page 119

Thank You,

Page 120

Objection 107
13.03.2020
Posted Letter
LA9 6EB
Non Blackpool Resident

Page 121

Objection 108
13.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 9TD

Page 122

Objection 109
14.03.2020
Email
FY3 9PB
Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications and Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council
PO Box 11
Town Hall
Blackpool
FY1 1NB
Dear Blackpool Council
Re: - Stanley Park Golf Course Blackpool
I wish to complain/object about the proposed development by the HIP company on the Stanley
Park Golf Course.
As many people have already commented, this land is a precious area of open space which is
treasured by thousands of local people. It is used by these residents mainly for golf but also
walking dogs and enjoying a the wide diversity of wildlife or just to relax. Once this land is lost to
developers, that is it, it will never be that jewel again. This land is a local asset which residents
have the ability to use at little or no cost. The Golf may not be Royal Lytham, but it's something
the less well off can afford. Frankly Blackpool Council should be ashamed of considering allowing
this development in return for a quick cash hit. How do local people then use the developed
area, they can't, it's the for the visitor. I understand that no public consultation has taken
place, which appears to be a divisive move by the Council.
Despite being advised about previous insolvency on the part of interested parties in HIP
developers, the council appear to have been blinded by the glitter of gold and soldiered on
without due resident approval. Perhaps it might be prudent to at least take an overview of
previous proposed developments,where investors monies have disappeared quicker than a Paul
Daniels trick. Oh yes and unfortunately the development not completed. The cynical might say
such intent existed from the start. The expression " All that glitters is not gold" springs to mind.

Even if such a development was to progress, the site is totally inappropriate and it would
inevitably have adverse impact on traffic flows and increased pollution. Maybe it would be better
suited as a second pleasure Beach area - joke - please don't take me as seriously as you appear to
be taking HIP. The impact of visitors to the site would bring a massive impact regarding litter and
other nuisance.
The land is a wildlife corridor from East park drive through to the SSI area of Marton Mere and the
development would cause long lasting and most likely irreversible damage to the diversity of
wildlife and fauna. It follows that natural England should be consulted about the impacts against
rare species including bats and great crested newts,who's habitat fall in the proposed site. There
are many very mature trees in the site which have their own ecosystems gained over 50+ years. It
follows that mitigation takes decades to get to the same point where it retains the existing levels
of habitat and populations of wildlife.

Page 123

I commit myself to continuing to object to this proposal.

Objection 110
15.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Dear Blackpool council,
I would like to put my objections forward against all 3 notices for the plans of the regeneration of
Stanley park golf club. As a local resident I have concerns about the level of traffic which near the zoo
is already high, I feel the local green spaces should be saved for future generations to use, plans could
be in put in place to encourage families to take up golf which could lead to an uptake of memberships
at the golf course, I also feel that the construction of a large building will disrupt the patents at Victoria
hospital.
Yours sincerely

Objection 111
16.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
To whom it may concern
I have seen your public notice in the Gazette regarding the proposed sale of the golf course and
I'm totally AGAINST it.
This is an Alistair McKenzie heritage course, one of the few remaining in its original condition and
layout since 1926.
It was donated to the people of Blackpool for their leisure and recreation and is used not only by
the golfers but dog walkers, families, cyclists and horse riders.
The proposed development will not benefit the local residents as it's aimed at tourists and it's
destroying one of our last remaining greenspaces.
As a Blackpool resident who lives in the Marton area I urge you to stop this folly and focus your
efforts in the town centre which is in desperate need of funding and regeneration.
Regards

Page 124

Objection 112
16.03.2020
Posted letter
FY2 0TB

Page 125

Page 126

Objection 113
16.03.2020
Posted letter
FY2 0TB

Page 127

Objection 114
16.03.2020
Email
FY4 5AN
I would like to object to all 3 notices because they are all interlinked and independant .
The reasons are The loss of one of the few public and peaceful green spaces available to people .
The loss of more animal habitats.
Increased tourism in a residential area .

Objection 115
16.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

The governments initial proposal on Mon 4 Nov 2019 was a £50 million scheme to plant
11 million trees and new woodlands by 2022, in an effort to hit zero emissions by 2050.

Page 128

What is the point in doing this when various councils throughout the land are allowing the
cutting of trees so destroying the environment for future generations.
Blackpool Council will be allowing this company to destroy, I understand, 350 trees and
this with other building progammes in the area, to me makes a mockery of the governments
predictions.
I live on Lancaster Road and many vehicles use this as a cut through missing South Park
Drive and the junction with Preston New Road. The increased congestion from the lodges
and the Adrenalin World would make this area very dangerous.
t
Objection 116
16.03.2020
Email
FY5 1PQ

Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications & Regeneration Directorate
Complaint
I write with regard to the planned appropriation of land at Stanley Park. I wish to object to all 3
notices advertised in the Evening Gazette.
The land was in part purchased and partly gifted; on behalf of, and for the people of Blackpool. The
land has been used, and is still used daily by the public and as part of an historic provision for the
people of the town. A decision to appropriate this piece of land would be nothing but detrimental.
1. The land is still in use constantly by the people of Blackpool, it is a civic facility purchased and
gifted originally for the enjoyment of the public as part of the greater Stanley Park complex, and
is listed as such at land registry. The 1972 act states that a reason appropriation would be in land
That “is no longer required for the purpose for which it is held. This clearly is not the case as
more than 25,000 rounds of golf were played on it last year.
2. The Blackpool conurbation is dominated by leisure in designated leisure areas west of the site,
and as such land use change on this scale should be resisted. The is no historic precedent for this
scale or re categorising of land still in use as stated at land registry.
3. Given the accepted idea that Blackpool is largely overdeveloped in terms of built environment,
with little ‘open green space’, it seems short sighted to allow the single largest publicly owned
area still within the town centre neighbourhood to be re designated for development.
4. In light of climate change and the councils highly publicised commitment to both the climate
emergency; recently adopted, Blue Green Strategy, appropriation is contradictory and
hypocritical, aside from potentially being unnecessary in these circumstances.
5. Whilst the appropriation in itself may not be detrimental, the potential it provides would be
devastating to the immediate vicinity should planning permission be successful.
Appropriation was never designed for such circumstances. The council have been forced to embark
on these highly unusual and drastic measures to satiate a private company’s will that the council have
inadvertently or otherwise engineered through a poorly thought out and shortsighted procurement
process.

Page 129

The council need to be sure that all legal administration is correct and that all reasons for successful
appropriation are both justified and openly available for public view. This would include those
ultimately responsible for its signing off.
The land is not disused, derelict, or redundant in terms of use. It is difficult to justify that the land is
‘no longer required for the purpose for which it is held immediately before the appropriation’, As the
1972 Act states, given its continued use for the past 95 years.
Yours Sincerely

Objection 117
16.03.2020
Email
FY5 2ZQ

Letter of objection.
Re: Land appropriation at Stanley Park Golf Course.
I write to complain about the attempts to dispose of land at Stanley park.
The appropriation process would require the council not to have use for
the land as it currently stands. Clearly the current use and it being public
conducts with the sea of development for what will be a private use.
Also I am not entirely sure that propitiation needs to take place as there
at no issues of light or easement as no private dwellings or private land
will be impinged.
I find it very strange this is being railroaded through without consultation,
and in my opinion another holiday destination in Blackpool is not the
answer for the sake of green recreational land. The land is clearly in use
as there is an operational golf course and a municipal facility to play golf.
A clear business case can easily be made for a community enterprise.
What we need are open green spaces that add to the quality experience
of any given visitor or resident. The land in question has been liked by
thousands of visitors over the years, and forcing the development through
in the manner the council are to a less than sound business plan, I would
ask who is taking responsibility for this decision.
As a ratepayer in Blackpool I have the write to ask is this decision the
right decision for that parcel of green recreational land and is it right for
Blackpool, I think not. Unless you make somebody answerable for these
very poor decisions.. If the council push the destruction of this
recreational space we need to point the finger at the whole council an I
for one would say i have no confidence in them.

Page 130

The land is currently in use as a golf course and has never been left to
over grow or be a derelict site. It is also never had any other use. The
amount of public use of the space is continuous. Many thousands of
people use the facility as it is. It seems a stretch to say the land is no
longer used under its current open space registration.
A small unelected executive at Bickerstaff House seem able to force their
own agenda through without open and transparent dialogue and
explanation with elected members.
I would hope that very carful deliberation of the facts, and benefits to the
people of Blackpool be considered and hope the correct decision for the
people of Blackpool.
Yours Sincerly
15.3.20

Objection 118
16.03.2020
Email
FY1 4JQ
Regeneration and development team.

Objection to Stanley Park golf course appropriation.
I wish to complain to all 3 notices. The land is currently in use for exactly what it was intended.
The golf course has in excess of 20000 rounds per year on it. Dog walkers and cyclist regular use
found in the area. It is a public right of way, and bridal way has picnics areas. Hospital staff also
regularly use the green space for breaks and access to parking at the zoo. The woodland garden area
is part of the golf course and as such would be effected. The key question is whether the land is no
longer required for the purpose for which it is held. It clearly is still required as there is an active
Golf Club and a municipal pay and play facility currently operating.
The appropriation looks to be a consequence of a decision made by a procurement process. This is
a reaction to an engineered process not a push for development that has been part of a long term
policy. The local plan makes not mention of this area. It has been created by speculation.
A reassessment with regard to the legitimacy of the appropriation needs to be considered with
regard to section 122. The land has never been derelict, or unused for 95 years. The land is clearly
not surplus requirement.
Yours sincerely

l

Page 131

Objection 119
16.03.2020
Email
FY1 4JQ
Regeneration and development Team
Re: Stanley Park Golf course Appropriation
Dear Mr Gerrard,
I wish to object in the strongest terms with all 3 of the notices. Why would an appropriation be
needed on land that has no 3rd party issues? No private residences are within the area, the telecoms
and utilities are unable to be compensated.
Aside from that I would also suggest that the land is still in use. It is currently under use as a golf
course in the main. The General public has access to this land without payment. It is truly public
land. The area is used as a general area of exercise for both animals and people. There seems no
reason why that would change. A 95 year history of the golf course, woodland and hospital are still
taking place.
A reassessment with regard to the legitimacy of the appropriation needs to be considered with
regard to the 1970 Act. The land has never been derelict or unused for 95 years. The land is clearly
not surplus requirement. It is being used by thousands of Blackpool people every year.
I don’t believe the council could legitimately sacrifice this huge site in the public interest as the
legal test would necessitate. It is also arguable that the council have been forced to take this path
after a protracted procurement process.
The council should not be taking such drastic action. The financial model being used as
justification for this action is flawed. Blackpool’s socio economic problems will not be solved by
this appropriation and development, to a degree, that the green space lost, is worth the sacrifice.
Yours sincerely

10.3.30

Page 132

Objection 120
17.03.2020
Email
FY3 8FE

Page 133

Objection 121
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY8 4LE

Page 134

Objection 122
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY4 2BS

Page 135

Page 136

Page 137

Objection 123
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 9HF

Page 138

Objection 124
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY

Page 139

Objection 125
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 8EL

Page 140

Page 141

Objection 126
Posted Letter
17.03.2020
FY4 3PR

Page 142

Objection 127
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 7LH

Page 143

Page 144

Objection 128
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 7LH

Page 145

Objection 129
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY5 1PQ

Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications & Regeneration Directorate
Complaint
I write with regard to the planned appropriation of land at Stanley Park. I wish to object to all 3
notices advertised in the Evening Gazette.
The land was in part purchased and partly gifted; on behalf of, and for the people of Blackpool. The
land has been used, and is still used daily by the public and as part of an historic provision for the
people of the town. A decision to appropriate this piece of land would be nothing but detrimental.
1. The land is still in use constantly by the people of Blackpool, it is a civic facility purchased and
gifted originally for the enjoyment of the public as part of the greater Stanley Park complex, and
is listed as such at land registry. The 1972 act states that a reason appropriation would be in land
That “is no longer required for the purpose for which it is held. This clearly is not the case as
more than 25,000 rounds of golf were played on it last year.
2. The Blackpool conurbation is dominated by leisure in designated leisure areas west of the site,
and as such land use change on this scale should be resisted. The is no historic precedent for this
scale or re categorising of land still in use as stated at land registry.
3. Given the accepted idea that Blackpool is largely overdeveloped in terms of built environment,
with little ‘open green space’, it seems short sighted to allow the single largest publicly owned
area still within the town centre neighbourhood to be re designated for development.
4. In light of climate change and the councils highly publicised commitment to both the climate
emergency; recently adopted, Blue Green Strategy, appropriation is contradictory and
hypocritical, aside from potentially being unnecessary in these circumstances.
5. Whilst the appropriation in itself may not be detrimental, the potential it provides would be
devastating to the immediate vicinity should planning permission be successful.

Page 146

Appropriation was never designed for such circumstances. The council have been forced to embark
on these highly unusual and drastic measures to satiate a private company’s will that the council have
inadvertently or otherwise engineered through a poorly thought out and shortsighted procurement
process.
The council need to be sure that all legal administration is correct and that all reasons for successful
appropriation are both justified and openly available for public view. This would include those
ultimately responsible for its signing off.
The land is not disused, derelict, or redundant in terms of use. It is difficult to justify that the land is
‘no longer required for the purpose for which it is held immediately before the appropriation’, As the
1972 Act states, given its continued use for the past 95 years.
Yours Sincerely

10.3.20

Objection 130
17.03.2020
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Regeneration team,
I wish to add my objections to the sale of part of Stanley Park Golf Club to developers intending to
build holiday accommodations, lodges, and leisure facilities of which there is an abundance in Blackpool
already. Also the roads in the area are at times overwhelmed and would become nearly impassable
particularly for emergency vehicles attempting to access the hospital.
Yours,

Objection 131
17.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Registering objection to sale of this open space.
Objection 132
17.03.2020
Email
FY3 8JG
To whom it may concern

Page 147

As a rate paying voter and a resident of Ingleway Avenue, I wish to express my
concerns about the proposed development on the eastern side of the golf course.
Firstly, to lose an area of significant beauty to an adrenaline junkies fun park , is beyond
comprehension. This may be a good idea, but it is totally in the wrong place. This kind of
development should be built in an area designated to the tourism industry, not in a residential
area. The negative impact that this would have on the roads around this community would be
immense, the parking situation is bad enough, but the congestion would be unbearable.
Secondly, the noise pollution for the patient’s in the hospital certainly won’t help with their
recovery .
I sincerely hope that these concerns will be taken on board so this ridiculous decision can be
overturned.
Regards ,

l

Objection 133
17.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
We do not agree with the development at Stanley Park on east park drive

Objection 134
17.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated

I strongly object to the proposed development of the Golf Course on East Park Drive
Blackpool

Objection 135
17.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Further to the e mail sent by my husband I too oppose the proposed development on Stanley park
golf course I get great enjoyment playing golf and enjoying the fresh air and exercise may I remind
you you do not own the land it belongs to the residents of Blackpool for there use councillors are
only custodians of the land and the people of Blackpool will remember your disregard of their
views come election time
Regards

Page 148

Objection 136
18.03.2020
Email
FY3 8NJ

I
of
WANT
TO OBJECT TO THIS DEVELOPMENT?
The likely impact of the change of designation on this land will be: –











the loss of one of the few public and peaceful green spaces available to people
a very significant increase in traffic congestion on an already busy commuter route
the potentially devastating impact on emergency ambulances; passenger transport;
hospital visitors
increased air pollution and noise pollution around the hospital
loss of another habitat and feeding ground for wildlife in this and the surrounding areas
the loss of trees that we need to fight climate change
the loss of a beautiful and historic sporting landscape in the town
increased tourism in a residential area
diversion of tourists away from tourist areas with an impact on existing businesses
the loss of yet another asset being sold off very cheaply; council-owned land belongs to
the town, not the councillors, and there will be very little left.

Objection 137
18.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident

Dear growth and prosperity team,
As a citizen of Blackpool I would like to voice my disgust and disappointment
towards the proposed plans to destroy the last green space in our town, the eastern
side of Stanley Park Golf Course. This area does not belong to the council but to the
people of Blackpool, who have enjoyed its serenity for many years, it is our duty to
not only save this small oasis in the forever growing concrete jungle of England but
allow it to thrive and flourish for future generations.
I hereby strongly object to the planned proposals And fully reject to all three public
notices along with the other 8000 singnatories of this town. The fact that these
signatures have already been over looked goes against the basic principles of a
democracy based government.

Page 149

Does Blackpool really need another so called adrenaline park (housing estate), we
have the entire promenade for the thrill seekers, the piers and Blackpool pleasure
beach is already more than enough. But what we do NOT have is ample amounts of
green space for the peace seekers and nature lovers. The eastern side to the golf
course is the last hideout for many species of Birds, insects, flowers and trees we
have no right what so ever to take this away from them.
Climate change is all around us, it is real and it is happening. The planned proposals
will only put further strain on Blackpool’s ever growing carbon footprint,
congestion levels which are already at an all time high will only increase, and on the
doorstep of the emergency services you don’t need me to tell you that’s not smart.
Please listen to the voice of the people and bring a halt to the proposed destruction
you have planned, we need to protect and preserve our green spaces in times like
today’s. Think of our children and our children’s children, this decision will not
only effect the heat and now but future generations to come.
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public
domains and will be accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Thank you for taking the time time read this email, warm regards and smiles,

Objection 138
18.03.2020
Email
FY8 3FP

Re: Stanley Park Golf Course
I wish to express my objections to the three notices you have posted concerning the
proposed redevelopment of Blackpool Stanley Park Golf Course. The reasons for this are
outlined below:







The land to the East should remain a public open space for the people of
Blackpool to enjoy.
The land is not suitable for building on as it is part of a flood zone. It is
some of the lowest land in Blackpool and has no natural drainage away
from the area. Building on a flood zone makes flooding worse as there is
faster run off and less land to soak up the rainwater.
Building an “Adrenaline World” leisure development next to a hospital is
not a good idea – imagine the noise from Go Karts and screaming Zip wire
riders.
The traffic along East Park Drive is already a huge problem for regular
commuters and emergency services. This development will make

Page 150







congestion worse and cause more pollution and noise. It will also increase
wear and tear on an already potholed road.
There will be a loss of valuable trees in the area at a time when carbon
footprints and climate change is making headlines around the world.
Locally owned businesses will suffer as this development takes trade away
from the rest of the Blackpool leisure industry
It will destroy a historic Golf course.
There is a well-used Public Footpath running through the proposed
development. What will happen to this?
When it fails as a business, who will clear up the mess left behind?

Regards,

Objection 139
18.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications & Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council; PO Box 11; Town Hall; Blackpool

I wish to dutifully outline my discord with the current plans to remove the last remaining area of
public green space on the eastern side of Stanley Park golf course. This area is for the people, our
community does not require any more housing development, even more so when it is disguised as
an 'Adrenaline Park'.
I hereby fully object to the planned proposals and fully reject all three public notices. Some of the
most important issues worth raising are the concern over increased traffic around vital emergency
service roadways, entrances in and out of the Victoria hospital. This also ties in with an increase in
noise pollution and air pollution which will inevitably impact those in need of vital recovery space.
Another huge impact of the council's decision will be the loss of crucial habitat. These sensitive
ecosystems have already been disrupted by the creation of the golf course, but are tentatively
held together by the last remaining segment of old-growth trees along the eastern side. The array
of wild habitat, animals, flowers, shrubs and insects that have already been massively reduced
from their original state... will be lost forever. Consider our town's children, who deserve an
abundance of green space, with unreserved access to growth and prosperity, these being
their truedefinitions.
Council-owned land belongs to the town, to the people who were born here, and the countless
generations before them, not the councillors. When the people clearly want to keep this land, it

Page 151

goes against basic democracy to refute a body of over 8,000 signatories. Signatures that span
across the entire region rejecting your contractual agreement with HIP. Blackpool already has an
"Adrenaline center", found on the promenade a few miles away: Blackpool Pleasure Beach.
Building a second theme park is highly irrational and works in complete disregard of the people,
the local tribe that uses these areas regularly.
One of the most pertinent crises facing us today is climate change. The golf course is a beloved
space but if the course was to close, the land should be harnessed to reduce Blackpool's evergrowing carbon footprint via re-wilding techniques as we have seen with Woodland Trust
initiatives. We must protect and preserve what remains of the last fragment of wildlife seen here
in Blackpool. All that is hanging by a thread in the natural world of Britain, will become another
lost piece of the once-thriving eco-jigsaw we once found here. We must protect and preserve our
land!
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Kind regards,

Objection 140
18.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications & Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council; PO Box 11; Town Hall; Blackpool; FY1 1NB
Dear Growth and Prosperity Team,
I wish to dutifully outline my discord with the current plans to remove the last remaining area of
public green space on the eastern side of Stanley Park golf course. This area is for the people, our
community does not require any more housing development, even more so when it is disguised as
an 'Adrenaline Park'.
I hereby fully object to the planned proposals and fully reject all three public notices. Some of the
most important issues worth raising are the concern over increased traffic around vital emergency
service roadways, entrances in and out of the Victoria hospital. This also ties in with an increase in
noise pollution and air pollution which will inevitably impact those in need of vital recovery space.
Another huge impact of the council's decision will be the loss of crucial habitat. These sensitive
ecosystems have already been disrupted by the creation of the golf course, but are tentatively
held together by the last remaining segment of old-growth trees along the eastern side. The array
of wild habitat, animals, flowers, shrubs and insects that have already been massively reduced
from their original state... will be lost forever. Consider our town's children, who deserve an
abundance of green space, with unreserved access to growth and prosperity, these being their
true definitions.

Page 152

Council-owned land belongs to the town, to the people who were born here, and the countless
generations before them, not the councillors. When the people clearly want to keep this land, it
goes against basic democracy to refute a body of over 8,000 signatories. Signatures that span
across the entire region rejecting your contractual agreement with HIP. Blackpool already has an
"Adrenaline center", found on the promenade a few miles away: Blackpool Pleasure Beach.
Building a second theme park is highly irrational and works in complete disregard of the people,
the local tribe that uses these areas regularly.
One of the most pertinent crises facing us today is climate change. The golf course is a beloved
space but if the course was to close, the land should be harnessed to reduce Blackpool's evergrowing carbon footprint via re-wilding techniques as we have seen with Woodland Trust
initiatives. We must protect and preserve what remains of the last fragment of wildlife seen here
in Blackpool. All that is hanging by a thread in the natural world of Britain, will become another
lost piece of the once-thriving eco-jigsaw we once found here. We must protect and preserve our
land!
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Warmest wishes, may we have faith in the justice of your heart.

Page 153

Objection 141, (FY3 7SU), 142 (FY2 0XD)
18.03.2020
Posted letters – Duplicate letters received from different postcodes

Page 154

Page 155

Page 156

Objection 143
18.03.2020
Posted letter
FY2 9LX

Page 157

Objection 144
18.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Growth and Prosperity Team
Communications & Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council; PO Box 11; Town Hall; Blackpool; FY1 1NB
Dear growth and prosperity team,
As a citizen of Blackpool I would like to voice my disgust and disappointment towards the
proposed plans to destroy the last green space in our town, the eastern side of Stanley Park Golf
Course. This area does not belong to the council but to the people of Blackpool, who have enjoyed
its serenity for many years, it is our duty to not only save this small oasis in the forever growing
concrete jungle of England but allow it to thrive and flourish for future generations.
I hereby strongly object to the planned proposals And fully reject to all three public notices along
with the other 8000 singnatories of this town. The fact that these signatures have already been
over looked goes against the basic principles of a democracy based government.
Does Blackpool really need another so called adrenaline park (housing estate), we have the entire
promenade for the thrill seekers, the piers and Blackpool pleasure beach is already more than
enough. But what we do NOT have is ample amounts of green space for the peace seekers and
nature lovers. The eastern side to the golf course is the last hideout for many species of Birds,
insects, flowers and trees we have no right what so ever to take this away from them.
Climate change is all around us, it is real and it is happening. The planned proposals will only put
further strain on Blackpool’s ever growing carbon footprint, congestion levels which are already at
an all time high will only increase, and on the doorstep of the emergency services you don’t need
me to tell you that’s not smart.
Please listen to the voice of the people and bring a halt to the proposed destruction you have
planned, we need to protect and preserve our green spaces in times like today’s. Think of our
children and our children’s children, this decision will not only effect the heat and now but future
generations to come.

Objection 145
18.03.2020
Email
FY2 9LZ
Dear Sir/Madam,
With regard to the above and the proposed re-development, I wish to register my objections to the
entire project on several grounds.
I am not against proposals that take the local community wishes and needs into consideration and
that subsequent development benefits the people of the town, but the current plans meet none of
these criteria.

Page 158

Firstly, this whole matter smacks of a desperate land grab by a cash starved council looking to
make a quick killing in order to prop up it's finances. The public green space is being conveniently
bundled together with a golf course and therefore makes it easier for a Labour Council to "spin" the
story that objections are from a privileged few trying to protect their interests at the expense of the
greater good. This deserves to be exposed as the nonsense it truly is and is yet another example of
the grubby nature of politicians and their deeds.
Secondly, given the history of financial competence of successive councils, there are limited
grounds for any optimism that the proposed sale will raise anything like the true value of the land in
question, nor that the council will use these monies for any lasting benefit for the town.
Thirdly, the proposed sale to a private company with no links to the town does not inspire
confidence that they will think of anything but the "bottom line" and the profits that they can take
away with them.
Fourth, the existing infrastructure is already overburdened and with limited scope to improve
matters on East Park Drive, a proposal of this scale, on this site, will not only lead to greater
inconvenience for existing road users, but could have fatal consequences should this lead to
lengthening response times of emergency services.
Fifth, a construction site on this scale will undoubtedly produce noise levels that will impact upon
the wards immediately adjacent at Victoria Hospital. This will be ongoing for a significant period of
time and there is no guarantee that upon completion, it's proximity to the hospital will have further
unforeseen consequences.
There are many more objections that could be raised, but I think that the five above are sufficient to
justify the re-appraisal of the existing proposal and for the consideration of a more sympathetic
development with longer term benefits for all.
Your sincerely,

18th March 2020

Objection 146
18.03.2020
Email
FY3 8NS

I wish to express my objections to the three notices you have posted concerning the
proposed redevelopment of Blackpool Stanley Park Golf Course.



I think the land to the East should remain a public open space for the people of
Blackpool to enjoy.
This land is not suitable for building on as it is part of a flood zone. It is some of
the lowest land in Blackpool and has no natural drainage away from the area.
Building on a flood zone makes flooding worse as there is faster run off and less
land to soak up the rainwater.

Page 159










Building an “Adrenaline World” leisure development next to the Hospital in not a
good idea. Imagine the noise from Go Karts and screaming Zip wire riders.
The traffic along East Park Drive is already a problem for regular commuters and
emergency services. This development will make congestion worse and cause
more pollution and noise. It will also increase wear and tear on an already
potholed road.
There will be a loss of valuable trees in the area at a time when carbon footprints
and climate change is making headlines around the world.
Locally owned businesses will suffer as this development takes trade away from
the rest of the Blackpool leisure industry
It will also destroy a historic Golf course.
There is a well used Public Footpath running through the proposed development.
What will happen to this
When it fails as a business. Who will clear up the mess left behind?

Objection 147
18.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Good evening,
I wish to strongly object to the development of Stanley Park Golf Club.
As a Blackpool resident I believe it is absolutely critical the course is preserved in its current form.
The course offers an area of natural beauty. It offers a space for relaxation & enjoyment in a
natural setting.
It also offers a wonderful space for animals & habitats.
Blackpool as a town has such a small number of green spaces & natural recreational
areas. It is imperative that these remaining areas are preserved.
Please keep me updated with developments.

Blackpool resident.
Objection 148
19.03.2020
Email
FY3 9AU
To whom it may concern,
The possibility of the elected Council sanctioning the sale of ANY Greenfield site to private
enterprise is abhorrent.
The Council currently employ a lady whose mission it is to promote Green recovery in the

Page 160

borough. She has stated in very recent public meetings that Blackpool is all but the least Green
town in the UK. Anyone with eyes can see this to be true. She implores citizens to plant in plant
pots so desperate is the lack of Greenery in the town. How in the name of humanity can that very
same Council now contemplate the sale of such a significant area of Green space sought by the
likes of David Lloyd (or anyone else)?
It smacks of duplicity or worse. The application and planning process also seem to be highly
questionable.
I implore the Council to preserve the Green space we the people rely on. I implore them to reject
the sale of the land sought by any private profiteers, David Lloyd being the current case in point.
Thanks,

Objection 149
19.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
To whom it may concern,
I am writing to strongly object to all 3 notices advertised on the Gazetteon February 20th 2020 of
plans to destroy this beautiful land.
What is being proposed is utterly out of place, unnecessary and not what is wanted or needed in
that area.
Firstly the disruption, noise and pollution that this will incur will be huge and the site is next to a
hospital! How is that good thinking?!! The upset to patients who need rest and to the access for
families and staff will be hugely disrupted!
The golf course is used so much, 20.000 rounds last year!
Many of our family and friends gave used the facilities for anniversaries or celebrations.
The Woodlands is a open beautiful piece of land which myself, all my family and friends have
used for many many years.
Generations have used it to take children you educate them in wildlife and have then outside
enjoying(what Is left!) Of open green spaces in our area.
What is planned is not necessary, especially in our area, there are similar facilities in neighbouring
towns.
Also i think the money spent to have this built could ne far better spent elsewhere.
I strongly urge you not to ruin or destroy this wonderful piece of land, and key or future
generations know we didn't ruin every bit of greenery just for profit!!
I look forward to hearing the only right outcome.

Page 161

Regards

Objection 150
19.03.2020
Email
Blackpool resident
Dear growth and prosperity team,
As a citizen of Blackpool I would like to voice my disgust and disappointment towards the proposed
plans to destroy the last green space in our town, the eastern side of Stanley Park Golf Course. This
area does not belong to the council but to the people of Blackpool, who have enjoyed its serenity for
many years, it is our duty to not only save this small oasis in the forever growing concrete jungle of
England but allow it to thrive and flourish for future generations.
I hereby strongly object to the planned proposals And fully reject to all three public notices along with
the other 8000 singnatories of this town. The fact that these signatures have already been over looked
goes against the basic principles of a democracy based government.
Does Blackpool really need another so called adrenaline park (housing estate), we have the entire
promenade for the thrill seekers, the piers and Blackpool pleasure beach is already more than enough.
But what we do NOT have is ample amounts of green space for the peace seekers and nature lovers.
The eastern side to the golf course is the last hideout for many species of Birds, insects, flowers and
trees we have no right what so ever to take this away from them.
Climate change is all around us, it is real and it is happening. The planned proposals will only put
further strain on Blackpool’s ever growing carbon footprint, congestion levels which are already at an
all time high will only increase, and on the doorstep of the emergency services you don’t need me to
tell you that’s not smart.
Please listen to the voice of the people and bring a halt to the proposed destruction you have planned,
we need to protect and preserve our green spaces in times like today’s. Think of our children and our
children’s children, this decision will not only effect the heat and now but future generations to come.
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Yours

Objection 151
19.03.2020
Email
FY4 5ES
Blackpool resident
I wish to dutifully outline my discord with the current plans to remove the last remaining area of
public green space on the eastern side of Stanley Park golf course. This area is for the people, our
community does not require any more housing development, even more so when it is disguised as
an 'Adrenaline Park'.

Page 162

I hereby fully object to the planned proposals and fully reject all three public notices. Some of the
most important issues worth raising are the concern over increased traffic around vital emergency
service roadways, entrances in and out of the Victoria hospital. This also ties in with an increase in
noise pollution and air pollution which will inevitably impact those in need of vital recovery space.
Another huge impact of the council's decision will be the loss of crucial habitat. These sensitive
ecosystems have already been disrupted by the creation of the golf course, but are tentatively
held together by the last remaining segment of old-growth trees along the eastern side. The array
of wild habitat, animals, flowers, shrubs and insects that have already been massively reduced
from their original state... will be lost forever. Consider our town's children, who deserve an
abundance of green space, with unreserved access to growth and prosperity, these being
their true definitions.
Council-owned land belongs to the town, to the people who were born here, and the countless
generations before them, not the councillors. When the people clearly want to keep this land, it
goes against basic democracy to refute a body of over 8,000 signatories. Signatures that span
across the entire region rejecting your contractual agreement with HIP. Blackpool already has an
"Adrenaline center", found on the promenade a few miles away: Blackpool Pleasure Beach.
Building a second theme park is highly irrational and works in complete disregard of the people,
the local tribe that uses these areas regularly.
One of the most pertinent crises facing us today is climate change. The golf course is a beloved
space but if the course was to close, the land should be harnessed to reduce Blackpool's evergrowing carbon footprint via re-wilding techniques as we have seen with Woodland Trust
initiatives. We must protect and preserve what remains of the last fragment of wildlife seen here
in Blackpool. All that is hanging by a thread in the natural world of Britain, will become another
lost piece of the once-thriving eco-jigsaw we once found here. We must protect and preserve our
land!
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Kind regards,

Objection 152
19.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
I object to any development of our green space on stanley park golf course. Increase in traffic
volume, possible hospital extensions developments, all to be considered, and, environmentally
unacceptable.

Page 163

Objection 153
19.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Dear growth and prosperity team,
As a human who cares about the nature I would like to voice my disgust and disappointment
towards the proposed plans to destroy the last green space in our town, the eastern side of
Stanley Park Golf Course. This area does not belong to the council but to the people of Blackpool,
who have enjoyed its serenity for many years, it is our duty to not only save this small oasis in the
forever growing concrete jungle of England but allow it to thrive and flourish for future
generations.
I hereby strongly object to the planned proposals, and fully reject to all three public notices along
with the other 8000 signatories of this town. The fact that these signatures have already been
over looked goes against the basic principles of a democracy based government.
Does Blackpool really need another so called adrenaline park (housing estate), we have the entire
promenade for the thrill seekers, the piers and Blackpool pleasure beach is already more than
enough. But what we do NOT have is a good amount of green space for the peace seekers and
nature lovers. The eastern side to the golf course is the last hideout for many species of birds,
insects, flowers and trees we have no right what so ever to take this away from them.
Climate change is all around us, it is real and it is happening. The planned proposals will only put
further strain on Blackpool’s ever growing carbon footprint, congestion levels which are already at
an all time high will only increase, and on the doorstep of the emergency services you don’t need
me to tell you that’s not smart.
Please listen to the voice of the people and bring a halt to the proposed destruction you have
planned, we need to protect and preserve our green spaces in times like today’s. Think of our
children and our children’s children, this decision will not only effect the heat and now but future
generations to come.
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Kind regards,

Objection 154
19.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Dear Growth and Prosperity Team,

Page 164

I wish to dutifully outline my discord with the current plans to remove the last remaining area of
public green space on the eastern side of Stanley Park golf course. This area is for the people, our
community does not require any more housing development, even more so when it is disguised as
an 'Adrenaline Park'.
I hereby fully object to the planned proposals and fully reject all three public notices. Some of the
most important issues worth raising are the concern over increased traffic around vital emergency
service roadways, entrances in and out of the Victoria hospital. This also ties in with an increase in
noise pollution and air pollution which will inevitably impact those in need of vital recovery space.
Another huge impact of the council's decision will be the loss of crucial habitat. These sensitive
ecosystems have already been disrupted by the creation of the golf course, but are tentatively
held together by the last remaining segment of old-growth trees along the eastern side. The array
of wild habitat, animals, flowers, shrubs and insects that have already been massively reduced
from their original state... will be lost forever. Consider our town's children, who deserve an
abundance of green space, with unreserved access to growth and prosperity, these being
their truedefinitions.
Council-owned land belongs to the town, to the people who were born here, and the countless
generations before them, not the councillors. When the people clearly want to keep this land, it
goes against basic democracy to refute a body of over 8,000 signatories. Signatures that span
across the entire region rejecting your contractual agreement with HIP. Blackpool already has an
"Adrenaline center", found on the promenade a few miles away: Blackpool Pleasure Beach.
Building a second theme park is highly irrational and works in complete disregard of the people,
the local tribe that uses these areas regularly.
One of the most pertinent crises facing us today is climate change. The golf course is a beloved
space but if the course was to close, the land should be harnessed to reduce Blackpool's evergrowing carbon footprint via re-wilding techniques as we have seen with Woodland Trust
initiatives. We must protect and preserve what remains of the last fragment of wildlife seen here
in Blackpool. All that is hanging by a thread in the natural world of Britain, will become another
lost piece of the once-thriving eco-jigsaw we once found here. We must protect and preserve our
land!
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Warmest wishes, may we have faith in the justice of your heart.

Objection 155
19.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Dear Growth and Prosperity Team,
I wish to dutifully outline my discord with the current plans to remove the last remaining area of
public green space on the eastern side of Stanley Park golf course. This area is for the people, our

Page 165

community does not require any more housing development, even more so when it is disguised as
an 'Adrenaline Park'.
I hereby fully object to the planned proposals and fully reject all three public notices. Some of the
most important issues worth raising are the concern over increased traffic around vital emergency
service roadways, entrances in and out of the Victoria hospital. This also ties in with an increase in
noise pollution and air pollution which will inevitably impact those in need of vital recovery space.
Another huge impact of the council's decision will be the loss of crucial habitat. These sensitive
ecosystems have already been disrupted by the creation of the golf course, but are tentatively
held together by the last remaining segment of old-growth trees along the eastern side. The array
of wild habitat, animals, flowers, shrubs and insects that have already been massively reduced
from their original state... will be lost forever. Consider our town's children, who deserve an
abundance of green space, with unreserved access to growth and prosperity, these being their
true definitions.
Council-owned land belongs to the town, to the people who were born here, and the countless
generations before them, not the councillors. When the people clearly want to keep this land, it
goes against basic democracy to refute a body of over 8,000 signatories. Signatures that span
across the entire region rejecting your contractual agreement with HIP. Blackpool already has an
"Adrenaline center", found on the promenade a few miles away: Blackpool Pleasure Beach.
Building a second theme park is highly irrational and works in complete disregard of the people,
the local tribe that uses these areas regularly.
One of the most pertinent crises facing us today is climate change. The golf course is a beloved
space but if the course was to close, the land should be harnessed to reduce Blackpool's evergrowing carbon footprint via re-wilding techniques as we have seen with Woodland Trust
initiatives. We must protect and preserve what remains of the last fragment of wildlife seen here
in Blackpool. All that is hanging by a thread in the natural world of Britain, will become another
lost piece of the once-thriving eco-jigsaw we once found here. We must protect and preserve our
land!
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Warmest wishes, may we have faith in the justice of your heart.

Objection 156
19.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Dear growth and prosperity team,
As a citizen of Blackpool I would like to voice my disgust and disappointment towards the
proposed plans to destroy the last green space in our town, the eastern side of Stanley Park Golf
Course. This area does not belong to the council but to the people of Blackpool, who have enjoyed
its serenity for many years, it is our duty to not only save this small oasis in the forever growing

Page 166

concrete jungle of England but allow it to thrive and flourish for future generations.
I hereby strongly object to the planned proposals And fully reject to all three public notices along
with the other 8000 singnatories of this town. The fact that these signatures have already been
over looked goes against the basic principles of a democracy based government.
Does Blackpool really need another so called adrenaline park (housing estate), we have the entire
promenade for the thrill seekers, the piers and Blackpool pleasure beach is already more than
enough. But what we do NOT have is ample amounts of green space for the peace seekers and
nature lovers. The eastern side to the golf course is the last hideout for many species of Birds,
insects, flowers and trees we have no right what so ever to take this away from them.
Climate change is all around us, it is real and it is happening. The planned proposals will only put
further strain on Blackpool’s ever growing carbon footprint, congestion levels which are already at
an all time high will only increase, and on the doorstep of the emergency services you don’t need
me to tell you that’s not smart.
Please listen to the voice of the people and bring a halt to the proposed destruction you have
planned, we need to protect and preserve our green spaces in times like today’s. Think of our
children and our children’s children, this decision will not only effect the heat and now but future
generations to come.
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Yours

Objection 157
18.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
FY residency not stated
Dear Growth and Prosperity Team,
I wish to dutifully outline my discord with the current plans to remove the last remaining area of
public green space on the eastern side of Stanley Park golf course. This area is for the people, our
community does not require any more housing development, even more so when it is disguised as
an 'Adrenaline Park'.
I hereby fully object to the planned proposals and fully reject all three public notices. Some of the
most important issues worth raising are the concern over increased traffic around vital emergency
service roadways, entrances in and out of the Victoria hospital. This also ties in with an increase in
noise pollution and air pollution which will inevitably impact those in need of vital recovery space.
Another huge impact of the council's decision will be the loss of crucial habitat. These sensitive
ecosystems have already been disrupted by the creation of the golf course, but are tentatively
held together by the last remaining segment of old-growth trees along the eastern side. The array
of wild habitat, animals, flowers, shrubs and insects that have already been massively reduced

Page 167

from their original state... will be lost forever. Consider our town's children, who deserve an
abundance of green space, with unreserved access to growth and prosperity, these being their
true definitions.
Council-owned land belongs to the town, to the people who were born here, and the countless
generations before them, not the councillors. When the people clearly want to keep this land, it
goes against basic democracy to refute a body of over 8,000 signatories. Signatures that span
across the entire region rejecting your contractual agreement with HIP. Blackpool already has an
"Adrenaline center", found on the promenade a few miles away: Blackpool Pleasure Beach.
Building a second theme park is highly irrational and works in complete disregard of the people,
the local tribe that uses these areas regularly.
One of the most pertinent crises facing us today is climate change. The golf course is a beloved
space but if the course was to close, the land should be harnessed to reduce Blackpool's evergrowing carbon footprint via re-wilding techniques as we have seen with Woodland Trust
initiatives. We must protect and preserve what remains of the last fragment of wildlife seen here
in Blackpool. All that is hanging by a thread in the natural world of Britain, will become another
lost piece of the once-thriving eco-jigsaw we once found here. We must protect and preserve our
land!
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Warmest wishes, may we have faith in the justice of your heart.
Objection 158
19.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Dear Sir/Madam,
I wish to raise my objections to all three of the public notices made in the evening gazette on
27 Feb concerning the redevelopment of Stanley Park golf course.
Here are the reasons for my objections.
Firstly is the history and heritage of the course, designed by Dr Alister McKenzie in 1925, as I’m
sure you know, who in the world of golf course design is one of the most famous names in the
world. To my mind this golf course is a little gem and every effort should go into preserving it for
generations of Blackpool residents to enjoy. I admit that over the years that the course has seen
better days and work needs to be carried out for its improvement. One thing I do know for sure is
there are lots of people involved with the club, who love and care for it and are willing to give
their time, energy and money to bring it back to its best, given the opportunity and support of the
council. These people should, in my view, been given every opportunity and help by the council to
achieve this goal but have not been allowed to do so.
Secondly is the impact of the environment. Stanley Park and the surrounding area is primarily
used by the local residents as a environment for enjoying open spaces, viewing wildlife, walking
dogs. It’s generally peaceful and tranquil. It seems to me absurd to give this land away for the use
by tourists. We like our tranquility, we like our nature, we like our walk and family time. What we

Page 168

don’t want or deserve is more traffic, more noise and less nature. This is our part of town, the
tourists and their noise and litter can stay where they are.
The sad thing in my opinion, is that the council haven’t tried harder to work with the golf club to
help them achieve their goals. You haven’t put the right people in, with the energy and desire and
commitment. This has happened over many years not just recently. Can you put your hand on
your heart and say, yes we did everything possible to help save this fantastic golf course? Because
as an outsider looking in, it looks like you have run the place into the ground, just so you can get
off your hands.
In five years time, the golf course is due to have its 100th birthday. A time to celebrate it history
and legacy. Instead you plan to brutally sever it in half.
( Blackpool Park Golf club member and local resident)
Objection 159
19.03.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Dear growth and prosperity team,
As a citizen of Blackpool I would like to voice my disgust and disappointment towards the proposed
plans to destroy the last green space in our town, the eastern side of Stanley Park Golf Course. This
area does not belong to the council but to the people of Blackpool, who have enjoyed its serenity for
many years, it is our duty to not only save this small oasis in the forever growing concrete jungle of
England but allow it to thrive and flourish for future generations.
I hereby strongly object to the planned proposals And fully reject to all three public notices along with
the other 8000 singnatories of this town. The fact that these signatures have already been over looked
goes against the basic principles of a democracy based government.
Does Blackpool really need another so called adrenaline park (housing estate), we have the entire
promenade for the thrill seekers, the piers and Blackpool pleasure beach is already more than enough.
But what we do NOT have is ample amounts of green space for the peace seekers and nature lovers.
The eastern side to the golf course is the last hideout for many species of Birds, insects, flowers and
trees we have no right what so ever to take this away from them.
Climate change is all around us, it is real and it is happening. The planned proposals will only put
further strain on Blackpool’s ever growing carbon footprint, congestion levels which are already at an
all time high will only increase, and on the doorstep of the emergency services you don’t need me to
tell you that’s not smart.
Please listen to the voice of the people and bring a halt to the proposed destruction you have planned,
we need to protect and preserve our green spaces in times like today’s. Think of our children and our
children’s children, this decision will not only effect the heat and now but future generations to come.
I'd like to make you aware that these records and emails are stored in public domains and will be
accessible at all times by the people/s it regards.
Kind regards

Page 169

Objection 160
19.03.2020
Email
FY3 8NP
Dear Sirs
I object to the leasing of this land to a commercial company for the purposes of re-development
for the following reasons. Please accept this as an objection for all three notices
1 Historical precedent.
In the 1950s /1960s the Walt Disney Corporation from America tried to open Disney Europe on
the land between Lawson's Field and Victoria Hospital site, formerly used annually by the Royal
Lancashire Agricultural Society now the site of the
De-Vere Hotel and golf course. It is my
understanding that planning permission was refused by Blackpool Council. There were also plans
mooted for a horse racing track and also a car racing track, none of which came to fruition.
Blackpool Council have for many years sought to restrict amusements mainly to the promenade
and also a few streets East of the promenade. This development could destroy that policy, and
make it very difficult if not impossible for Blackpool Council to resist other applications of a similar
nature from these or other developers seeking to establish similar complexes on large areas of
open land such as Kingscote Park.
2 Environment Impact on Victoria Hospital, Blackpool residents.
This development if allowed will have a huge environmental impact on the area. The foreseeable
impact on the area could be huge in many ways, most of which cannot be fully elaborated in an
objection notice, so these are briefly noted in the following bullet points. brevity however does
nothing to diminish their importance.
Loss of trees. There are approximately 400+ mature trees in the area of proposed development..
Many of these will be lost to future generations, replanting even if carried out will take many
years before young trees mature.
Loss of wildlife. The golf course and Salisbury Gardens are home to a large variety of plant and
animal life many of which may be lost for ever if this development is allowed.
Pollution from vehicles. East Park Drive is an extremely busy main road, used daily by residents of
the Fylde, and visitors. The development will add possibly hundreds of vehicles daily to this
already saturated artery, causing even more traffic jams, and pollution from internal combustion
engine vehicles, even though the government plan is to phase these out over many years.
Flooding Scientists have predicted that due to "Climate change" sea levels will rise and areas of
land will become flooded. The winter just ending has seen almost continuous torrential rain on
the Fylde Coast for weeks as well as throughout the country. Our own gardens have been
continually flooded with nowhere for the water to drain to. land where this development is
proposed is at a much lower level than Victoria Hospital and the residential area where I
live. Development of this part of the golf course with the loss of open land will have the dual
effect of:- 1 Reducing the area of open land available to absorb rainfall. 2 The addition of

Page 170

millions of tons of buildings will eventually raise the water table. Both these combined with
"Climate Change" could result in severe flooding of
this land and surrounding areas.
3 Financial implications
Given the current worldwide Covid-19 crisis, I do not consider that the council should be entering
into such contracts at a time when members of the public are effectively unable to attend council
meetings, and the financial impact on many large companies worldwide could be extremely
grave. It is fair to say that the company proposing to lease this land cannot be immune from the
financial impact of this virus, neither councillors nor council officials can guarantee that this
company will still be operating in the future given the state of the world economy. Consequently I
urge councillors and council officials not to blindly forge ahead with this "at best very risky"
venture.
Finally I would say to all councillors of whatever political persuasion and to council officers, "The
council, i.e elected politicians and council officers are only guardians of this land and all other
public land. Do you consider it morally right at this time of world health and financial crises to
hand publicly owned land over to developers on a 100+ years lease, a decision that could in years
to come have unforeseen adverse impacts on generations of yet unborn Blackpool residents,
personally I think not".

Objection 161
19.03.2020
Email
Unable to determine post code
Unable to determine FY residency
Objection: Land at Stanley Park

Page 171

Objection 162
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY2 9QN

Page 172

Objection 163
19.03.2020
Email
FY4 5DZ

I object to the three notices regarding the ‘’sale’’ of the grounds currently used by the members of
Stanley Park Golf Club and residents of Blackpool for the great game of golf. This area is the only
municipal golf course in Blackpool .
You struggle to find any town with a population over 100,000 in the U.K without a municipal golf
course .
My objection to all 3 notices of the Council .
I refer to the proposed development by H.I.P (Holmes Investment Properties) on the current area
used for golf by Stanley Park Golf Club .The council have decided to allow H.I.P. to develop the
land to the detriment of the members of the golf club who are all mainly Blackpool residents and
council tax payers . Stanley Park Golf Club has been enjoyed by generations of golfers ; the
majority have been Blackpool residents .
The development of the land will most certainly lead to the total closure of the only 18-hole
municipal golf course in Blackpool .
Many towns throughout the length and breadth of the U.K. have a municipal golf club because they
give people the opportunity play golf when they may not be able to afford a private club. They
certainly have a socialist principle and are open to anyone. The members are mainly made up of
‘’working class’ individuals and in the olden days there was an Artisan section in many Golf Clubs,
and I quote....
Artisans golf was created to give working people the chance to play affordable golf on great
courses.
Gradually, Artisans golf spread throughout the country — usually as a form of associate
membership in existing golf clubs.
Typically, Artisans pay a lower fee in return for helping to maintain the parent club’s course. The
clubs give reserved weekday and weekend playing times, and the Artisans provide monthly work
parties to assist the greens staff. This may include raking bunkers, replacing divots or repairing
pathways.
I always think that Municipal Golf Clubs are similar to the old Artisan Clubs Where will the
budding youngsters who wish to take up the great game of golf in Blackpool and whose parents
perhaps cannot afford the cost of a private club be able to play golf ........nowhere.

Page 173

Objection 164
19.03.2020
Email
FY3 9LQ

To Whom it may concern,
Please accept this email as opposition to all 3 notices regarding the proposed
changes to use of land and the East/West sides Stanley Park Golf Club, the
proposed changes are going to take away from your residents much needed green
space. This green space is mainly used by residents all year round, the proposed
changes are for tourists, and not what the residents of Blackpool want, or need!
How can 250 lodges be for the benefit of residents!
How can a tourist attraction costing in the region of £20pp be for the residents
when Blackpool is THE MOST DEPRIVED AREA IN THE COUNTRY!
The Council are giving away land rather than stand up as a Council as a whole,
instead of trying to dodge their obligations for years by giving operators licenses to
people who have no interest in the community only in taking as much money out of
the place as possible with the smallest investment as possible.
Providing a municipal golf course for your residents to enjoy at affordable prices is
something I think you owe your resident, those who can’t afford to join private
clubs, but still want to play competitive golf.
This golf course not only provides somewhere for people to play the game it is also
a place where people from all over the town come just to walk together or bring a
dog, enjoy the green space and wildlife that is abundant there. Somewhere away
from the traffic and quiet with fresh air!
This will no longer be the case if all, or any of these notices are past and YOU will
be taking away from your resident, council tax payers, voters all something
resident clearly hold dear as evidence in the petition that was signed by over 8000
people 3000 of which were Blackpool residents.
I don’t just blame councillors for this travesty, I also blame the council employees
from the top down for the way they have completely no thought of what this means
to residents but only about the £2m they receive from HIP for the deal and are able
to wash their hands of the golf club once and for all!!
Please stop making decisions because it is easier, the only reason you have failed
to make the golf club pay was because you didn’t have the people to run it
effectively full time. Stand up to your obligations and possibly do the hard thing
admit you were wrong, take the club back and hire someone capable of running it
effectively for the people of Blackpool.
Not only providing essential green space and affordable golf for residents, you will
undoubtedly earn some extra cash to help the residents of Blackpool in other
ways.
Please take note of my appeals to you all, do the right thing for us all, this is our
green space!
Your Sincerely

Page 174

The likely impact of the change of designation on this land will be: –














the loss of one of the few public and peaceful green spaces available to
people
a very significant increase in traffic congestion on an already busy
commuter route
the potentially devastating impact on emergency ambulances; passenger
transport; hospital visitors
increased air pollution and noise pollution around the hospital
loss of another habitat and feeding ground for wildlife in this and the
surrounding areas
the loss of trees that we need to fight climate change
the loss of a beautiful and historic sporting landscape in the town
increased tourism in a residential area
diversion of tourists away from tourist areas with an impact on existing
businesses
the loss of yet another asset being sold off very cheaply; council-owned
land belongs to the town, not the councillors, and there will be very little left.
Loss of an Alister Mckenzie designed golf course
The only municipal golf course in the town.
Again giving the contract to run a golf course to someone with NO
EXPERIENCE in doing so who are bringing someone in as a consultant to
tick a box but won’t even be resident on the Fylde to oversee the running
himself!

Objection 165
19.03.2020
Email
FY3 8QW
To Whom it may concern,
I am sending this email to you today to voice my strong objections to the proposals planned for the
sale of Golf Club land at the back of Victoria Hospital to HIP Developments for them to create an
Adrenaline Adventure Park with log cabin accommodation.
For me, the loss of green space and all the wild life that comes with it is massive. If it was going to be
used to build affordable homes or facilitate an improved Victoria hospital then that would be different
as they are very concerning matters. We need a helicopter pad on the hospital doorstep as it used to
be, not an ambulance drive away on Lawson Road field. There is not enough car parking space for staff
and patients and I’m sure the adjacent land could be very useful.
Another project which would benefit local residents would be the extension of the Davey Slack
Allotments. We have many residents in Blackpool with mental health issues such as addiction,
alcoholism and depression. It has been proven many times that working on the land, growing your own
fruit and vegetables is very therapeutic and good for the soul.

Page 175

I believe that the Tory government has earmarked a great deal of money to help with the regeneration
of Blackpool, so the two million pounds which you will receive from this sale is a drop in the ocean.
Yes Blackpool needs a huge injection of cash to solve all the social problems which go hand in hand
with any area of deprivation, but the answer is not to build more attractions for visitors. We need to
think about our residents, our Council Tax payers and our future generations.
Please reconsider before it is too late, your plans to sell much needed and appreciated by many green
space to a company which is only interested in making money for it’s shareholders.
Respectfully

Objection 166
19.03.2020
Email
FY3 9HR

Growth and Prosperity Team Communications and Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council
PO Box 11
Town Hall Blackpool
FY1 1NB
9th March 2020
Ref: Stanley Park Golf Course
Dear Sir,
I am writing as a Blackpool resident to strongly object to the proposed redevelopment of Stanley Park Golf
Course. I am objecting to all three of the published notices as they are all interlinked and interdependent. I
have five primary concerns, these are:
1. The Loss of Open Green Space Blackpool Golf Course is an important part of Blackpool’s green open
space and under Policy DM35: Open Land meeting Community and Recreational Needs this valuable land
should be protected. The proposed development will not be of benefit to local residents who stand to lose
one of the few public and green spaces available to the people of Blackpool. Being able to access this green
space provides physical health benefits as well as supporting the emotional and mental well being of
residents of Blackpool whether or not they play golf. A quarter of Blackpool’s open space is provided in and
around Stanley Park and is highly valued by the local community. It is important that this open space is
safeguarded from inappropriate development.
2. The Loss of a beautiful and historic sporting landscape within the town The golf course was designed by
Alister McKenzie who also designed the golf course at Augusta, home of the US Masters. It should be
treasured as a historic gem. Every effort should be made to maintain and improve the current course which
is of historic value to Stanley Park and the town of Blackpool. Stanley Park Golf Course Community Benefit
Society strongly believe that the golf course can be financially viable if it is promoted, marketed and
maintained appropriately. Their proposals involving RM Estates should be given strong consideration.

Page 176

3. Concerns over HIP to competently deliver the project I have significant concerns over HIP being able to
deliver the proposed Adrenaline World development. HIP is a very young recently established company and
has no track record of delivering a development on the scale of the proposed Adrenaline World. There is
also the ‘track record’ of senior figures within HIP and their involvement in a number of previously failed
ventures, headlined by the insolvency of Glasgow Rangers Football Club. Public scrutiny of HIP current
accounts show that they do not have the funds to develop the Stanley Park site as proposed.
4. A significant increase in traffic congestion The site of the proposed development is adjacent to Blackpool
Victoria Hospital and will be accessed from East Park Drive which is already a busy commuter route and
often subject to congestion. It seems unwise to bring the extra traffic associated with a 250 lodge leisure
development into a residential area and into the immediate area around the town’s hospital where hospital
staff already struggle to find adequate parking. This is very likely to have adverse effects on emergency
ambulances, hospital passenger transport and hospital visitors.
5. Increase of tourism within a residential area. Stanley Park is at the heart of a residential area and this
development will bring increased tourism within a residential area leading to increased traffic congestion as
referenced above. Surely it would make more sense for the development to take place in an area that
already has the transport and entertainment infrastructure in place to serve the needs of tourists coming in
and out of Blackpool such as the proposed Sports Village at South Shore, Blackpool. It is my view that every
effort should be made to maintain the current golf course which is of historic value to the town and an
important part of the Stanley Park Grounds.
I trust that the above objections will be taken fully into account,
Yours sincerely,

Page 177

Objection 167
19.03.2020
Posted letters
FY3 9RX

Page 178

Objection 168
19.03.2020
Posted letters
FY2 9LX

Page 179

Objection 169 & 170
19.03.2020
Posted letters
FY3 9HR
Growth and Prosperity Team Communications and Regeneration Directorate
Blackpool Council
PO Box 11
Town Hall Blackpool
FY1 1NB

9th March 2020
Ref: Stanley Park Golf Course
Dear Sir,
I am writing as a Blackpool resident to strongly object to the proposed redevelopment of Stanley Park Golf
Course. I am objecting to all three of the published notices as they are all interlinked and interdependent. I
have five primary concerns, these are:
1. The Loss of Open Green Space Blackpool Golf Course is an important part of Blackpool’s green open
space and under Policy DM35: Open Land meeting Community and Recreational Needs this valuable land
should be protected. The proposed development will not be of benefit to local residents who stand to lose
one of the few public and green spaces available to the people of Blackpool. Being able to access this green
space provides physical health benefits as well as supporting the emotional and mental well being of
residents of Blackpool whether or not they play golf. A quarter of Blackpool’s open space is provided in and
around Stanley Park and is highly valued by the local community. It is important that this open space is
safeguarded from inappropriate development.
2. The Loss of a beautiful and historic sporting landscape within the town The golf course was designed by
Alister McKenzie who also designed the golf course at Augusta, home of the US Masters. It should be
treasured as a historic gem. Every effort should be made to maintain and improve the current course which
is of historic value to Stanley Park and the town of Blackpool. Stanley Park Golf Course Community Benefit
Society strongly believe that the golf course can be financially viable if it is promoted, marketed and
maintained appropriately. Their proposals involving RM Estates should be given strong consideration.
3. Concerns over HIP to competently deliver the project I have significant concerns over HIP being able to
deliver the proposed Adrenaline World development. HIP is a very young recently established company and
has no track record of delivering a development on the scale of the proposed Adrenaline World. There is
also the ‘track record’ of senior figures within HIP and their involvement in a number of previously failed
ventures, headlined by the insolvency of Glasgow Rangers Football Club. Public scrutiny of HIP current
accounts show that they do not have the funds to develop the Stanley Park site as proposed.
4. A significant increase in traffic congestion The site of the proposed development is adjacent to Blackpool
Victoria Hospital and will be accessed from East Park Drive which is already a busy commuter route and
often subject to congestion. It seems unwise to bring the extra traffic associated with a 250 lodge leisure
development into a residential area and into the immediate area around the town’s hospital where hospital
staff already struggle to find adequate parking. This is very likely to have adverse effects on emergency
ambulances, hospital passenger transport and hospital visitors.

Page 180

5. Increase of tourism within a residential area. Stanley Park is at the heart of a residential area and this
development will bring increased tourism within a residential area leading to increased traffic congestion as
referenced above. Surely it would make more sense for the development to take place in an area that
already has the transport and entertainment infrastructure in place to serve the needs of tourists coming in
and out of Blackpool such as the proposed Sports Village at South Shore, Blackpool.
It is my view that every effort should be made to maintain the current golf course which is of historic value
to the town and an important part of the Stanley Park Grounds.
I trust that the above objections will be taken fully into account,
Yours sincerely,

Page 181

Objection 171
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 7DY

Page 182

Objection 172
19.03.2020
FY3 7DY
Posted letter

Page 183

Objection 173 & 174
19.03.2020
FY3 9RT
Posted letter

Page 184

Page 185

Objection 175
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 9BD

Page 186

Objection 176
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 8NH

Page 187

Objection 177
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 9PU

Page 188

Objection 178
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY6 8BH

Page 189

Objection 179
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 8PT

Page 190

Objection 180
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY4 1EU

Page 191

Objection 181
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY4 4PT

Page 192

Objection 182
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 8NS

Page 193

Objection 183
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 9HS

Page 194

Objection 184
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY1 4EJ

Page 195

Objection 185
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY1 4EJ

Page 196

Objection 186
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 9HS

Page 197

Objection 187
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY6 7FY

Page 198

Objection 188
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY4 3LW

Page 199

Objection 189
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY4 3LW

Page 200

Objection 190
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY1 5PN

Page 201

Objection 191
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY4 4YD

Page 202

Objection 192
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 9QU

Page 203

Objection 193
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 9RE

Page 204

Objection 194
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter

Page 205

Objection 195
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY1 6NE

Page 206

Objection 196
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY1 4PJ

Page 207

Objection 197
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 9RE

Page 208

Objection 198
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY1 4AQ

Page 209

Objection 199
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY4 3BS

Page 210

Objection 200
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY6 8HB

Page 211

Objection 201
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 8JT

Page 212

Objection 202
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY8 2EX

Page 213

Objection 203
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY1 6QX

Page 214

Page 215

Page 216

Objection 204
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY2 9TG

Page 217

Objection 205
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY2 9TG

Page 218

Objection 206
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 8EP

Page 219

Objection 207
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letter
FY3 9PU

Page 220

Objections 208 (FY4 5NU), 209 & 210 (FY4 1BW), 211 (FY8 1HQ), 212 (FY4 3EW), 213 (FY1 6RJ),
214 (FY4 4JR), 215 (FY4 5QL), 216, 217 & 218 (FY1 6QZ), 219 (FY5 2TP), 220 (FY1 6RS), 221 (FY4
4RH), 222 (FY3 9UX), 223 (FY8 4HE), 224 (FY8 3SR), 225 (FY2 9NL), 226 (FY8 3AP), 227 (FY5 5ND),
228 (FY3 3JD), 229 (FY4 5AN), 230 (FY4 5QL), 231 (FY3 8FL), 232 (FY2 0TU), 233 (FY4 4OU), 234
FY8 1ZS), 235 (FY4 4SD), 236 (FY3 7HP), 237 (FY3 8FE), 238 (FY8 1HQ), 239 (FY1 4DU), 240 (FY2
9QL), 241 (FY2 0RT), 242 (FY2 9UZ), 243 (FY5 4ES), 244 (FY4 5PJ), 245 (FY4 5PJ), 246 (FY1 3JT),
247 (FY1 4AT), 248 (FY1 3JT), 249 (FY2 0GB), 250 (FY4 3BW), 251 (FY7 7HW), 252 (FY4 3BW), 253
(FY3 8PD), 254 (FY3 8PD), 255 (FY3 9EB), 256 (FY4 3BW), 257 (FY1 4AT), 258 (FY6 7JE), 259 (FY1
2ER), 259 (FY1 2ER), 260 (FY1 2PP), 261 (FY5 1EA), 262 (FY5 1EA).
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letters – multiple copies received signed by individual members of Blackpool
community.

Page 221

Objection 263
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY4 2RP (London
SW1A 0AA)

Page 222

Page 223

Objection 264
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY2 9SR

Page 224

Objection 265
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY2 9LX

Page 225

Objection 266 & 267
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY3 9NY

Page 226

Page 227

Objections 268 (FY6 7HJ), 269 & 270 (FY3 9RU), 271 (FY3 9RT), 272 (FY4 4PR), 273 (FY6 7JH), 274
(FY8 1YF), 275 Post code not stated – Blackpool resident, 276 (FY5 3JJ), 277 (FY4 2DB, 278 (FY8
4JE), 279 (FY5 4JN), 280 (FY2 9NT), 281 (FY3 0BU), 282 (FY4 4XN), 283 (FY7 8HL), 284 (LA5 9XT),
285 (FY3 0AQ), 286 (FY3 9UL).
19.03.2020
Hand delivered letters – multiple copies received signed by individual members of Blackpool
community.

Page 228

Objection 287
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY5 5JA

Page 229

Page 230

Support 001
27.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
Hi there,
I am a local resident and just wanted to say I think the proposed development is an excellent idea
and should go ahead, it will bring much needed investment and jobs to blackpool.
Golf is an elitist sport which is already well catered for in the blackpool area.
I fully support these proposals and hope they get the go ahead.
Yours Sincerely

Support 002
27.02.2020
Email
Postcode not stated
Blackpool resident
As a resident, I which to register my support for the current proposals, on the basis that they will
create jobs, enable the improvement of green open space, and allow residents and visitors to enjoy
spaces currently only open to members of the golf club.

Support 003
13.03.2020
Email
FY1 4JD
Dear Sirs,
My wife and I wish to make a positive comment about the proposal to develop the half of
the course between Victoria Hospital and Salisbury woodland, making it an Adrenalin World
attraction and 250 holiday lodges. We feel it is a positive step for the Council to take to
generate investment into Blackpool and create jobs whilst giving another reason for people to
visit Blackpool.
We feel that a 9 hole municipal golf course is sufficient in this day and age, especially as golf
course across the country have declining membership due to the game declining in popularity. In
fact, gold club membership in the UK has declined by an average of 8% a year for the previous
nine years.
We feel therefore that the action the Council has proposed will make better use of the land for
the greater good of the town as a whole.
We hope that the Council can use part of the funds to continue with the scheme of buying empty
properties, doing them up and letting the accommodation as a responsible landlord. It would also
be good to tackle the issues which have created the unfortunate statistic recently published that 8

Page 231

out of the 10 worst deprived neighbourghoods sit in Blackpool - another worthwhile matter on
which to spend the money.
Best regards,

Page 232

Non objection or support 001
17.03.2020
Posted letter
FY2 9QR

Page 233

Page 234

Non objection or support 002
19.03.2020
Posted letter
FY4 4HG

Page 235

Page 236

Agenda Item 3
Report to:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Neil Jack, Chief Executive
Mark Towers, Monitoring Officer
Steve Thompson, Statutory Finance Officer

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor Lynn Williams, Deputy Leader of the Council

Date of Decision:

13 July 2020

DELEGATION OF EXECUTIVE POWERS DUE TO CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

The Chief Executive agreed on the 23 March 2020 that a major incident should be
declared for Blackpool Council under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. The Executive
therefore at its meeting on 23 March 2020 agreed steps for the emergency delegation
of powers to the Chief Executive due to the Coronavirus pandemic. These powers
were approved in decision EX22/2020 and were reviewed at the meeting of the
Executive on 15 June 2020 and are set out in decision EX23/2020. The purpose of this
report is to undertake a final review and consider a delegation for future major
incidents.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To rescind the delegation to the Chief Executive agreed under decision EX22/2020
and amended under EX23/ 2020, as in line with these previous approvals, the
delegation is no longer required to respond to the situation. Normal Executive
decision making would now be utilised, in line with the Executive decision making
criteria updated on 24 February 2017 and the Constitution.

2.2

To help manage future major incidents, the Constitution be amended to allow the
Chief Executive (or in his absence a nominated deputy) to be given delegated
authority to exercise any urgent Executive decision where, in the opinion of the Chief
Executive (or in his absence the nominated deputy), by reason of limitation of time or
urgency, a decision is required on any matter relating to a major incident. Any
decisions taken in this manner shall be reported to the next meeting of the Executive
or Council for information.

2.3

That the delegated authority at 2.2 be activated only after consultation with the
Leader of the Council and the other Group Leaders and the Chair of the Scrutiny
Leadership Board and the delegated authority be temporary, proportionate to the

Page 237

threat, only to be used when strictly necessary and be in place for as long as required
to respond to the situation.
2.4

That for each Executive decision taken under this delegated power, the relevant
Cabinet Member be consulted, where possible.

2.5

That during the exercise of this delegation then periodic briefings be held with the
Group Leaders and local Members of Parliament.

2.6

To note that a similar recommendation will be made to the next Council meeting, in
relation to Council functions and responsibilities.

2.7

To request that the Monitoring Officer update the Constitution accordingly.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

In line with the previous decisions of the Executive, it is now considered that the
delegation is no longer necessary to respond to the situation. A recommendation to
put in a provision in the Constitution to delegate to the Chief Executive an urgency
executive power should there be a need in this current pandemic (e.g. local lockdown
or second wave) or a future major incident is prudent and will allow the Council to
react decisively and speedily to the situation.

3.2a

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy
adopted or approved by the Council?

No.

3.2b

Is the recommendation in accordance with the
Council’s approved budget?

Yes.

3.3

Other alternative options to be considered:
The option to return to normal decision making is now considered appropriate due to the
current situation.

4.0

Council priority:

4.1

The relevant Council priority is both:
 “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool”
 “Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience”

Page 238

5.0

Background information

5.1

By the 23 March 2020, it had become difficult for organisations in all sectors to meet
their regulatory requirements whilst also fulfilling their legal duties to ensure their
staff, service users and wider members of the public remained safe.

5.2

At its meeting on 23 March 2020, the Executive agreed emergency steps which the
Council would take when it became impossible for urgent decisions to be taken in the
normal manner (reference EX22/20200). The developing Coronavirus situation more
than justified that decision as a large number of decisions were required urgently to
deal with the situation during the first few weeks. This allowed all Group Leaders
consulted and briefed via a weekly conference call. This delegation was reviewed and
amended on 15 June2020 (EX23/2020).

5.3

The Council is now in a different situation and one condition in the previous
delegation was that the delegation should only be in force if there was a requirement
to respond to the situation in an urgent manner. That is now not considered
necessary. This is also backed up by the Lancashire Resilience Forum moving from the
acute response phase into the managed response phase.

5.4

However, having the existence of such a delegation in the constitution will allow it to
be utilised again should there be a recognised need (e.g. local lockdown, second wave
or future major incident).

6.5

Does the information submitted include any exempt
information?

6.0

List of Appendices:

6.1

None.

7.0

Legal considerations:

7.1

The provision of a delegation as described in the constitution is seen as good
governance and will allow the Council’s and its residents’ interest to be protected in
the future should there be an urgent decision required arising from a major incident.

8.0

Human resources considerations:

8.1

This delegation will allow the Chief Executive should a major incident occur to deploy
staff resources appropriately and permit the Council to act flexibly and with authority
in the interests of its citizens and public safety.

Page 239

No

9.0

Equalities considerations:

9.1

None.

10.0

Financial considerations:

10.1

It is impossible at this stage to state what financial implications future decisions may
incur but any decision in this category will be consulted on with either the Statutory
Finance Officer or in his absence his Deputy.

11.0

Risk management considerations:

11.1

This existence of such a delegation in the constitution will allow the Chief Executive
(or nominated deputy) to make urgent decisions in the interests of citizens and public
safety and allow the Council to respond, mitigating risk as far as possible.

12.0

Ethical considerations:

12.1

Decisions should still be recorded and have cogent reasons to take decisions on
grounds of urgency and in accordance with the general exceptions and special
urgency provisions.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

The Acting Leader of the Council has been consulted on the review of this delegation.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

15.0

0Key decision information:

15.1

Is this a key decision?

No

15.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

15.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

15.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

16.0

Call-in information:

16.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to be

Page 240

No

exempt from the call-in process?
16.2

No

If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
17.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

18.0

Date approved:

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

18.1
19.0

Executive decision:

19.1
20.0

Date of Decision:

20.1
21.0

Reason(s) for decision:

21.1
22.0

1Date Decision published:

22.1
23.0

Executive Members in attendance:

23.1
24.0

Call-in:

24.1
25.0

Notes:

25.1

Page 241

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Report to:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Diane Booth, Director of Children’s Services

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor Lynn Williams, Deputy Leader (Children) and
statutory Cabinet Member for Children’s Services

Date of Meeting:

13 July 2020

UPDATED CHILDREN’S SERVICES MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL
STRATEGY
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To seek approval for the updated Children’s Services Medium Term Financial
Strategy. The report details the activities already ongoing and previously agreed
measures to address the current overspend in Children’s Social Care. The report
seeks agreement for further investment to more swiftly address particular cost
drivers – spend on residential placements and spend on foster homes provided by
independent fostering agencies.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To approve the updated Children’s Services Medium Term Financial Strategy as
attached at Appendix 4a and the revised modelling attached at Appendix 4b.

2.2

To approve the funding of a £1.2m per year for two years specific project a specific
project to step-down from residential care via a therapeutic children’s home into
specialist foster placements

2.3

To approve the funding of £460,000 including investment of £300,000 necessary to
transform the council’s fostering service as set out in Appendix 4c.

2.4

To approve the changes in payments to foster carers at a cost of £1.1m as set in
Appendix 4c.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

The revised Children’s Services Medium Term Financial Strategy builds on and
develops the transformative work undertaken in children’s services over the past 18
months. Through that time, services have improved and become more robust and

Page 243

work with vulnerable families has become more effective and child and family
focused. The Children’s Services Medium Term Financial Strategy makes clear the link
between better support for children and families and long-term cost reduction. The
strategy also emphasises that to achieve more for children and families, more
quickly, then further investment in critical areas of the service is required. Modelling
suggests that investment will be repaid in improved outcomes for children, young
people and their families; and in reduced cost to the council.
3.2a

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved
budget?

Yes

3.3

Other alternative options to be considered:
The modelling took into account 3 different scenarios: the likely consequences of the
next five years following the same pattern as the previous 5 years; the likely impact
of already agreed and proposed activities over the next 5 years; and the likely impact
of the projects requiring additional investment (in addition to the already agreed and
proposed activities).
The modelling shows that a continuation of past trends will lead to substantially
escalating cost over the next 5 years. It also shows that the impact of initiatives
already in place and ongoing will substantially mitigate cost pressures. The modelling
also demonstrates the value of investing in further activities targeted at critical cost
drivers: the placements of children in public care. Finally, the model shows that
expenditure on children’s services is unlikely to fall in the next two financial years,
but should do so in the following 3 years.

4.0

Council Priority:

4.1

The relevant Council Priority is: “Creating stronger communities and increasing
resilience”.

5.0

Background Information

5.1

The drivers for rising expenditure in children’s services are well understood and have
been for some time: the number of children in care; and the number of those
children in costly residential placements or independent fostering agency foster
homes.

Page 244

5.2

The updated Children’s Services Medium Term Financial Strategy is ambitious, but it
needs to be, given the current level of expenditure on Children’s Social Care. As the
Department for Education advisor’s recent report to the minister makes plain, while
considerable progress has been made in the quality and robustness of services
provided for vulnerable local children and families, it is critical that the financial
pressure arising from children in care and the cost of their placements be addressed.
The Council’s exposure to the external market in placements for children in care
needs to be reduced and limited. The proposals in this paper seek to do so.

5.3

Supported by ongoing investment by the Council and under the oversight of the
Department for Education Commissioner and Advisor, over the past 15 months,
Children’s Social Care has been reviewed and redesigned, beginning with the multiagency safeguarding hub and the assessment and support teams; and then working
backwards through the service. This has led to a much more robust, resilient service
overall. It has also led to legacy issues being addressed, especially around long-term
neglect and children and families with repeated cycles of Children’s Social Care
involvement. This, in turn, has led to an increase in the number of children in care
from the late autumn of 2019 and into 2020.

5.4

The growth in the number of children in care has substantially increased the pressure
on Children’s Services budgets, as the Council’s own foster home capacity was
exhausted. This has led to an increase in the number of children placed in foster
homes purchased from independent fostering agency placements, in addition to
increased fragility in placements and escalation of a steady number of young people
into the most expensive placements of all: children’s homes.

5.5

Working with colleagues from Essex County Council, Blackpool has reviewed critical
parts of its children’s services designed to keep children with families and reduce the
cost of finding homes for those children who have to enter care. Recently, CLT
approved the transformation of the current ‘Edge of Care’ offer and this report and
appendices outlines the critical changes that need to be made to the fostering service
and recruitment of foster carers.

5.6

The Medium-Term forecast – jointly developed by colleagues in the Corporate
Delivery Unit and Finance department - on the basis of already agreed projects and
approaches, foresees a moderation in expenditure over the next five years. The same
modelling points to a clear need to address the fundamental drivers for recent cost
escalation more swiftly and more sustainably; and that these proposals offer a good
prospect of return on the investment required.

5.7

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

Page 245

No

5.8

List of Appendices:
Appendix 4a: Children Services Medium Term Financial Strategy
Appendix 4b: Revised Children Services Medium Term Financial
Strategy Modelling
Appendix 4c : Transforming the Fostering Service and Support for
our Foster Carers: Executive Summary

6.0

Legal considerations:

6.1

In order to urgently address the current overspend in Children’s Social Care and to
fund a specific project to step-down from residential care into specialist foster
placements it is intended to use the powers granted by Cabinet Office in their Public
Procurement Policy Note 01/20 to directly award a contract to Innovate to deliver a
managed service under regulation 32(2)(c) of the Public Contract Regulations 2015
where for reasons of extreme urgency brought about by events unforeseeable by us
the time limits to run an open competition cannot be complied with, should
investment be approved.

7.0

Human Resources considerations:

7.1

Should the proposals be agreed, the Fostering Service will be restructured, which will
require assistance from the Council’s Human Resources teams and use of Human
Resources processes, although as the changes represent service growth, it will not
result in any job losses, or associated additional costs.

8.0

Equalities considerations:

8.1

There are no direct equalities considerations. The long-term impact of the changes
are likely to be more children in Blackpool either living with their own birth family, or
with another family in the Blackpool area.

9.0

Financial considerations:

9.1

Maximum Investment of £1.2m per year for two years in the therapeutic children’s
home and Specialist Foster Carer project.

9.2

Investment of £1.1m in Foster Carer Payment rates.

9.3

Investment of £300,000 to support the reorganisation of the Fostering Service (full
estimated cost £470,000, but a proportion of the additional cost to be met using
existing funds).

Page 246

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

There are clear risks concerning the current levels of expenditure, both to the
Council’s own financial position, but also in the Department for Education appointed
Commissioner’s perception of the council’s ability to deliver children’s services.

10.2

There are also risks created by the scale of change required and sustaining
momentum in improving children’s services – the projects underpinning the medium
term financial strategy will need extensive multi-disciplinary support and on-going
oversight at senior levels within the council.

10.3

Finally, there are risks that the projects will not work as intended/designed – this is a
complicated area of work and there are many factors in play not wholly controlled by
the council or its officers. The modelling informing the plan assumes a 50% success
rate from the projects requesting investment, but it could be less or more than that.

11.0

Ethical considerations:

11.1

The long-term impact of the proposed changes are likely to be more children in
Blackpool either living with their own birth family, or where this is not possible, with
another family in the Blackpool area.

12.0

Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1

These papers have been developed through the collaboration of officers in the
Corporate Delivery Unit, Finance and Children’s Services. In addition there has been
external discussion and consultation with colleagues from neighbouring local
authorities and Essex County Council and input and guidance from the Department
for Education appointed advisor.

13.0

Background papers:

13.1

None.

14.0

Key decision information:

14.1

Is this a key decision?

14.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

14.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

Yes

Page 247

4/2020
No

14.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

15.0

Call-in information:

15.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to
be exempt from the call-in process?

15.2

If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
16.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

17.0

3 July 2020

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1

18.0

Executive decision:

18.1
18.2

Date of Decision:

19.0

Reason(s) for decision:

19.1

Date Decision published:

Page 248

Date approved:

No

20.0

Executive Members in attendance:

20.1

21.0

Call-in:

21.1

22.0

Notes:

22.1

Page 249

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4a MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY FOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES
Aim of the Medium Term Financial Strategy
Over the next 5 years, we will seek to reduce expenditure on Children’s Services by 33% from
current levels, while improving the outcomes of local children and families.
To achieve this, we will support fewer children through statutory services, with more families
supported by universal services and early help services. In particular, we will have fewer children in
care; and more of those children will be supported by foster carers recruited and approved by the
council. Most importantly of all, we will have many fewer children in care living in children’s homes
and other residential provision.
Underpinning Aims
Over 5 years, we will:










Reduce the total number of children placed in residential provision (rate per 10k) to
national average levels - a reduction of 66% required
Reduce the number of children placed in foster care with independent fostering agencies
by 75% - a reduction of 120 children, based on those children currently placed with in foster
homes with IFA carers
Reduce the total number of children in care (rate per 10k) to the average of similar
authorities - a reduction of 47% required.
Reduce the total number of children with child protection plans (rate per 10k) to the average
of similar authorities – a reduction of 44% required.
Reduce the number of section 47 enquiries undertaken (rate per 10k) to the average for
similar authorities - a reduction of 30% required.
Reduce the number of referrals accepted by children’s social care (rate per 10k) to the
average for similar authorities - a reduction of 31% required.
Reduce the total number of children aged 0-17 supported by Children’s Social Care (rate per
10k) to the average for similar authorities - a reduction of 25% required.
Reduce the total size of the workforce in line with the reduced number of children open to
children’s social care.

We will also invest 15% of the savings achieved from the above in preventative services supporting
Children and Families.
The underpinning aims are roughly ranked in their order of importance, financially speaking. The
aims highlighted in bold have specific activities or projects to support their achievement.
Achievement of the other aims will principally be supported through implementation of the new
model of practice, together with training and development of staff and tight management and
analysis of performance.
The following paper details the specific projects being undertaken to address the main cost drivers,
the ones highlighted in bold.
The analysis overleaf explains the logic of the savings achieved by the aims. Figures are indicative,
but based on actual cost and spend.

Page 251

Medium Term Financial Strategy Logic
Blackpool number
Source date

Blackpool rate per capita of c&yp
Blackpool rate per 10k

# in resi.
70

# in care
656

01/04/2020

01/04/2020

0.002
24.2

0.02
227.0

Blackpool # c&yp 0-17 (mid 2018
estimates)

Comparator Rate per 10k

£
# CPP
361
0.01
124.9

47,500,000 Total projected spend on Children's Social Care 2020/21
# Sec 47
1147

# referrals
2789

# CIN
1908

# IFAs
161

1/2/20 to 1/5/20

1/2/20 to 1/5/20

01/04/2020

01/04/2020

0.04
396.8

0.10
964.9

0.07
660.1

0.01
55.7

28,904

9

Source Nat. Ave 2019

119.6

70

278

662

496

SN Ave 2019

SN Ave 2019

SN Ave 2019

SN Ave 2019

SN Ave 2019

Page 252

Expected Reduction under MTFS

63%

47%

44%

30%

31%

25%

75%

Percentage reduction as a number

44

310

159

343

876

474

121

Unit Cost £
Saving £

Staff Cost

130,100 £

17,677

£

5,722,631 £ 4,707,770

Total Annual Saving £ 14,561,373

10%

24,500 £

11,725,975

£ 2,958,375 £

1,172,598

31% of the total current spend

Note 1: Unit Cost Saving for Residential is between an average weekly residential cost (£3,500) and a costly IFA placement (£1,000), annualised
Note 2: Unit Cost saving for the number of children in care is the annual cost of an in-house foster care placement using new payment rates (skills based)
Note 3: Unit Cost Saving for IFAs is the difference between current average IFA cost per year (£42,233), adjusted to remove mother & baby IFA placements, which
distort the average upwards; and the average for in-house foster carers using the new payment model (£17,667).
Note 4: Staffing Cost is the 2020/21 Staffing Expected Spend for CSC
Note 5: No cost saving is attributed to a fall in the number of CP plans, Sec. 47s, Referrals or number of children in need. All savings from these reductions are
bundled into savingsa from staffing costs

Introduction
Firstly, it needs to be recognised that this analysis of Blackpool’s problematic level of expenditure on
Children’s Services is not new – the drivers have been clearly identified, understood, articulated and
modelled before, especially in the work of Finance colleagues.
However, in spite of the clarity of the analysis, the council has struggled to contain cost pressures and
fundamentally address the cost drivers, especially, the number of children in care and the number in
expensive placements. In fact, perversely, as understanding has increased, so has the size of the
problem. Some of the rise is driven by exacerbating external factors, such as increasing demand in the
market for placements for children in care, especially residential placements; and consequent unit cost
rises. However, a substantial part of the rise stems from a long term inability to consistently address
and remedy the drivers of rising cost. In short, while the council has been clear about the reasons for
rising cost it has been unable to satisfactorily address those causes.
Secondly, a lot of the building blocks of an effective MTFP are already in place. This paper (and the
focus of the detailed appendices) mainly covers the additional projects and initiatives that are proposed
to tangibly affect and reduce the key cost drivers (numbers of children in residential placements,
number of children in independent fostering agency (IFA) foster homes and the number of children in
care). But these proposals should not be seen in isolation: they necessarily sit on top of what has
already been put in place.
Building Blocks already in place
1. The most important recent change that should affect the MTFS is the implementation of the new
approach to social work practice, ‘Blackpool Rocks’, which seeks to change the way that local
services operate: building relationships with local families and children and adopting a more
positive strength-based approach. Local professionals are being trained in this approach and the
recording system is being amended to support the new approach to practice. In addition, social
work managers have received training from Partner in Practice colleagues from Stockport, which is
designed to support social workers in working in the new manner.
2. Tighter oversight of care planning in the Care Planning Senior Officer Panel; and greater senior
oversight of children at critical periods in their care planning, especially those on the cusp of
entering care (in Public Law Outline pre-proceedings); and those that have just entered care, either
on a section 20 agreement, or on an Interim Care Order.
3. Closer working relationships with partner agencies, through the overarching Children’s Partnership
Board; but also through joint training, discussion and working with partners at critical parts of the
children’s social care system, such as Child Protection Enquiries, Conferences and Reviews; and in
the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), Awaken and other partnership teams.
4. Creation of a Family Group Conferencing Team, working with extended family groups to develop
robust family plans for caring for children, chiefly as a tool for preventing entry into care, but also
as a means of stepping down children and young people from care.
In the list of projects and activities that follows, it is important to consider the inter-relationship and
dependency of the initiatives. For maximum transformative effect, Blackpool needs to move forward on
all fronts simultaneously.

The Logic for the Proposals
Since the main source of cost pressure is from the placements of children in the council’s care, action in
the short and medium term needs to be focused on this area. It is both the most volatile area of
expenditure and the area where a coherent strategy can have greatest impact in the medium term.

Page 253

The overall demand for placements will be mainly addressed by the long term strategy and processes
outlined above, together with the revised Edge of Care service approved recently by CLT. The supply of
placements, the local market for placements and most importantly our care planning for children in
care, especially those in residential placements are all more likely to be affected by a different
approach.
Broadly speaking, there are five component parts to the medium term strategy – all intended to reduce
the numbers entering care, expedite children leaving care; or step down children and young people in
care from the more expensive/most expensive types of provision:

1. A comprehensive review and transformation of the fostering service and payments to carers
(Fostering Business Case is Appendix B)
2. Development of an therapeutic children’s home with outreach support and Specialist Foster
Carer Recruitment to support step-down from residential placements. This will need to be
procured from a private sector provider, given the urgent need to reduce spend in this area
and the absence of specific skills and experience within the council.
It is these two that aspects require additional investment
3. A revised ‘Edge of Care’ Service, to reduce the number of children entering care.
4. Continued application of the Dartington Service Design Lab methodology, building on the work
already undertaken by Innovate Project Team, Legal Services and Supporting Our Children
teams, seeking to mainstream the work, with support from the Corporate Delivery Unit.
5. Developing a semi-independent offer building on the Positive Transitions model that is
currently working well, but directed at children in care, esp. those in residential placement.
In addition, there are a large number of supporting initiatives currently being undertaken to reshape
the local market for placements and Blackpool’s relationship to that market, most importantly:
 Proactive engagement with the local Independent Fostering Agency market through direct
work with key local providers; and work with Lancashire County Council, Blackburn with
Darwen and Cumbria on how we can more effectively, jointly contract for more complex, hard
to find care through jointly contracting for placements, such as large sibling groups, early
adolescents and children with complex needs. (revised Commissioning Strategy in Appendix C)
 Shaping the local residential children’s home market, trying to ensure more of the local
capacity, of which there is plenty, is available to Blackpool children and young people, rather
than children from further away.
o Blackpool has 70 Ofsted registered ‘children’s home’ beds in the town (24 children’s
homes, owned by 7 providers). All 7 providers are being approached to talk about how
we can have a relationship of “Blackpool first” for their placements. This will include
the possibility of paying to keep beds free when we have a child that is likely to
imminently need a home in such specialist provision.

Page 254

MODELLING IMPACT TO INFORM FINANCIAL PLANNING
It is extremely difficult to model the impact of all of the proposed initiatives listed above, as they all are
closely linked. To a large extent the conclusions of the modelling reflects the assumed effectiveness of
the strategies and/or the ineffectiveness of previous strategies.
However, with these limitations in mind, we have developed three broad scenarios:
1. Modelling through the impact of doing nothing, i.e. assuming that the long term net annual
increase in children in care continues and the local authority is no more effective than in the
past 5 years in either meeting placement needs from in-house provision, exiting children from
care expeditiously, or preventing their entry in the first place.
2. Modelling the likely impact of currently agreed projects/initiatives.
3. Modelling the likely cost-benefit/impact of additional proposed projects/initiatives in addition
to those already in place, namely:
a. Therapeutic children’s home/Specialist Foster Care Step-Down from residential
provision
b. Fostering Service Transformation.
Model 1 – Nothing Changes and the next five years follow the same trajectory as the last 5 years.
This is most simply modelled through looking at the average entry into care for the past 5 years (2015
to 2019), the average rate of exit and the increase in the use of higher cost placements (IFAs and
residential provision).
Using this methodology (more detail is available in Appendix A), suggests an increase in spend over the
next 5 years as below. The analysis also suggests that there would be over 830 children in care by the
end of the period.
Total estimated spend for 2020/21 (000s) £ 47,500
Additional Pressure from (all 000s)
Residential provision
Independent Fostering Agency Placements
Numbers in Care
Total Pressure
Total estimated spend (000s)

Year 1
£ 1,040
£ 1,248
£
87
£ 2,375
£ 49,875

Year 2
£ 2,080
£ 2,496
£
87
£ 4,663
£ 52,163

Year 3
£ 3,120
£ 3,744
£
87
£ 6,951
£ 54,451

Year 4
£ 4,160
£ 4,992
£
87
£ 9,239
£ 56,739

Year 5
£ 5,200
£ 6,240
£
87
£ 11,527
£ 59,027

Alternatively, using the model developed to look at the impact of proposed changes and projects
outlined below, the increase in spend is less, but the rise in the number of care is even higher (870+)
Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Total Pressure
7,987
9,861
9,739
10,272
12,864
Total Projected Spend 48,487
50,361
50,239
50,772
53,364
all figures in '000s

In sum, while the headline figure differs depending on the complexity of the methodology used, both
models show a substantial increase on what is already a significantly overspending budget.
Model 2 – Models the impact of currently agreed initiatives and makes assumption about their
effectiveness and reach (these assumptions are outlined in more detail in the attached Appendix A)
Using a tougher average baseline for net entry into care based on the past 4 and a half years (2016 to
end of May 2020), which gives a net increase of slightly less than 50 children a year, but applying

Page 255

assumptions around the effectiveness of key activities that are either on-going, or are planned and do
not require additional investment.
Key activities include:
 Changed approach to practice (Blackpool Rocks),
 Repeated ‘Dartington Service Lab’ review of cases;
 Revised Targeted Prevention (‘Edge of Care’) service
 Improved management of the Fostering Service, but no change in rates
 Regional Adoption Agency functioning effectively and widening the number of possible
adopters.
This gives a summary trajectory as below, which sees steady projected spend for the first two years, at
£47m before falling to £41m by the end of year 5 – still £0.5m above the budgeted spend for 2020/21.

Total Pressure £
Total Projected Spend £

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
6,893 £
6,189 £
3,165 £
849 £
513
47,393 £ 46,689 £ 43,665 £ 41,349 £ 41,013
all figures in '000s

Of course, one can amend the assumptions to be more or less optimistic, the assumptions used are
based on 50% effectiveness in the key activities. The modelling suggests that the two most important
planned initiatives are the Edge of Care Service and the repeated identification and targeted work to
achieve exit from care (Dartington). This is because of the reach of the two activities and because they
address cost drivers at source (entry into care and exit from care).
The biggest driver for savings is from stemming entry into residential provision through better work
preventing entry into care (the revised ‘edge of care’ offer). If entry into residential provision can be
more effectively limited, then the age profile of those currently within the provision will lead to a
natural decline in the total number (as has been modelled in the past by colleagues in Finance). A
further issue worth considering here is that 10 young people currently in residential provision entered
care in the past 12 months. So there is more of a connection between entry into care and residential
numbers than one might initially assume. This means that it is crucial to both avoid entry and to have
effective alternatives to residential provision for older children who do enter care, which is one of the
reasons why the additional investment in the council’s fostering service and a change in the
relationship with external, private-sector fostering agencies is potentially so important.
The financial modelling only considers the projected spend on children in foster care and residential
provision. It does not consider spend on children in care in other types of provision, which is assumed
to remain steady throughout the period, nor does it consider any wider changes on staffing numbers.
It is likely that success in the key activities above will have other impacts, such as lower numbers of
children in care, a lower number of children in other placements (not fostering or residential); a lower
total number of children open to children’s services; and hence a lower number of workers required.
Looking at recent trends and the pattern of current placement, it is likely that the next five years will
also see more children placed in supported accommodation (often as a step-down from residential
provision at 16 years old); more children in adoptive placements (and more expenditure on those
placements); but fewer older children in care; and children in care for less time and leaving at a younger
age.
The overarching message from the modelling is that, on the basis of the current and planned activity,
the likely case scenario is that spend will be contained over the period of time at about £0.5m above

Page 256

the 2020/21 budget, but with very significant overspends projected particularly in years 1 and 2. The
overall number of children in care would fall markedly (down to 422 at the end of the period).
Model 3 – Models the impact of currently agreed initiatives, as per model 2, and the cost-benefit
impact of additional projects (more detail in Appendix A)
The model builds on model 2, but with the addition of two further projects designed to affect critical
cost drivers at source: numbers in of children in residential care; or foster homes purchased by the local
authority from Independent Fostering Agencies. As noted earlier, the council has seen growth of the
number of children in residential care over the past 5 years (+50%); and rapid growth in the number in
IFA placements over the past year (+60%).
The model:
 Apportions net growth of children in care across ‘foster care’ and ‘other’ placements, based on
where children are likely to be placed (mainly foster care), as per model 2 above; but
 Changes the apportionment of this net growth between internal and external fostering to
reflect the rebalancing over the next 5 years towards internal fostering and away from external
fostering.
 For those currently in external fostering placements, it is assumed that movement out of those
homes is most likely to occur at placement breakdown, or because a child leaves through age.
We will not generally be seeking to move children from settled placements.
 Analysis of IFA placements between March 2019 and March 2020, shows 20% of those in an IFA
placement in March 2019, moved to a different fostering or home environment placement
during the following year. The model uses this figure (20%) to define the group where there is
the possibility of a movement in any one particular year. The age profile of children in IFA
placements is also used as a predictor of likely movement out of these placements.
 The model uses the costs outlined in the Fostering Business Case, regarding the investment
required in the service and the rates paid to foster carers; and the cost of a therapeutic
children’s homes/Specialist Foster Carer two-year project proposal.
 The model assumes 50% effectiveness in the therapeutic children’s home/Specialist Foster
carer proposal; and assumes that the council is able to recruit and retain foster carers.
This model gives a summary trajectory of spend as below:
Year 1
Year 2
Total Pressure
8,173
6,081
Total Projected Spend
48,673
46,581

Year 3
(495)
40,005

Year 4
(4,726)
35,774

Year 5
(6,793)
33,707

all figures in '000s

As might be expected, the model shows that the proposals, by addressing critical cost drivers directly,
cause projected spend to fall sooner; and, by changing the balance of fostering provision, achieve
greater longer-term savings. In short, if successful, they will more than pay for the additional
investment required. Moreover, detailed modelling of the therapeutic children’s home and specialist
foster carer proposal indicates that it only has to be successful with a third of children in the project to
be financially self-sustaining. Finally, the overall number of children in care is projected to fall to just
over 400 (407).

A Final Note
Delivery of the savings described in the paper is critical to the sustainability of the council and can only
be achieved through a cross-council effort. While many aspects of delivery squarely lie with children’s
services and social work professionals and managers, experience shows that the degree of change
required will need extensive support from other officers with complementary skills, especially
colleagues in finance, legal services and the corporate delivery unit. A cross-council project team
working cohesively on the major projects listed in the paper and reporting to a senior officer in

Page 257

Children’s Services, will be essential to maintaining momentum and achieving the scale of change
required. Given its centrality to the council’s budget planning, there also needs to be regular progress
reports to CLT, both overall, but also for the critical individual component projects. This is a very
significant transformational programme and needs to be managed as such.

Page 258

Appendix 4b
MTFP Projection - position at year end
£70,000

£60,000

£50,000

£40,000

Page 259

Do nothing - simple model

£30,000

Do nothing - detailed model
Current Activity & No further investment

£20,000

Current Activity + Further Proposed Investment
£10,000

£2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4c: Transforming the Fostering Service and Support for our
Foster Carers:
Executive Summary

Introduction and Key Principles
Blackpool council strongly believes that it’s every child’s right to grow up in a family home, with their own birth
family. Blackpool Children’s Services will do everything it can to support children to grow up in their own family.
For those very few children where it is not safe to live with their birth parents, all research evidence shows that
their best alternative home is within their extended family (assuming that there are viable, safe alternatives). If this
is not an option, for whatever reason, the next best option is to live in another family’s home (foster care). For the
very small number of children where there needs cannot be met within a family home, residential provision in a
children’s home is the best place for them to live.
Being able to quickly and accurately assess the quality of care that wider family carers are able to provide to children
and having sufficient numbers of non-family foster carers to support children in the council’s care are critical
functions of Children’s Services and they also underpin our ability to meet the needs of children in our care in the
best possible way: the way that is best able to replicate and stand in for growing up in their own, loving birth family.
Foster carers are crucial to Blackpool’s new approach to working with children and families: ‘Blackpool Rocks’.
Foster carers played an important role in co-producing the new approach, but also, for every child they care for,
carers will be one of the most important relationships in that child’s life: providing support and love through a
period of difficult change. They will also support ongoing contact with a child’s birth family and help to keep other
aspects of their children’s lives, such as school or interests or hobbies, as stable and consistent as possible. In sum,
foster carers are absolutely central to any relationship-based approach to working with children and families. This
report seeks to outline a package of proposals to urgently grow the number of local carers and develop their ability
to look after our children in care, keeping as many children as possible in a family home and local to Blackpool.

Local Context
Blackpool has the highest number of children in care per 10,000 head of population in England. Over 650 children
and young people are in the care of the local authority. Most of these children and young people (72%) live within
a family setting in ‘foster homes’ or emergency placements with relatives/friends. In addition, there are a small but
significant number of number of young people, currently 63, who are supported in residential care settings
(‘children’s homes’ or ‘residential care homes’); and a further 30 young people aged 16 and 17 years old who are
supported in “semi –independent” supported housing. Full details are outlined in the table below.
While the proportion of children in our care in residential or in independent fostering agency placements is not out
of line with the national pattern, because the number of children in our care is very high, the actual number of
children in residential provision and IFAs is also very high, when scaled per child living in Blackpool. This places a
substantial financial pressure on the council.

Page 261

1|Page

Appendix 4c: Transforming the Fostering Service and Support for our
Foster Carers:
Executive Summary

In the past six months, the council has commissioned two external reviews of residential and fostering services.
Both reviews recommended block contract arrangements with external providers in order to secure sufficiency
and to stabilise cost. In addition, the fostering review recommended increasing capacity of the service and
increasing the allowances that our in-house foster carers receive. Finally, in March 2020, the DFE commissioner
requested that Essex County Council undertake a diagnostic review of the Fostering service, which concluded that
substantial investment was required to reinforce and reinvigorate the service, both in terms of the rates and
allowances paid to foster carers, but also the capacity of the service to support and review existing foster carers
and to recruit and assess new carers.

Recent Trends & Their Implications
Over the past year, we have seen a rise in the number of children placed in residential care (Children’s Homes); and
a very significant rise in foster homes provided by Independent Fostering Agencies. Both of these patterns reflect
the insufficiency of local fostering options.
Blackpool council does not have enough of our own foster carers and we do not have a sufficient variety of skills or
types of foster care placement across the current group of carers to meet the needs and the number of children in
Blackpool’s care. The situation is being made critical by the continued entry of children into care, together with the
existing high numbers. It is compounded and, substantially created by the council’s difficulties in recruiting new
foster carers in recent years; which is precipitated both by the capacity issues of the service and the fact that
Blackpool Council allowances for foster carers are not competitive compared to neighbouring councils or
independent fostering agencies.
Blackpool is therefore forced into the market to purchase additional foster carers and specialist placements to meet
the needs of children in the council’s care. While it is always going to be the case that, as a small local authority,
there will be some children for whom the council cannot meet their needs within local, council provision, there are
a growing number of children being placed in externally provided homes for whom their needs could be met within
stronger local foster care provision, if it existed.
All the above means that the current situation cannot be sustained indefinitely. The council is faced with a decision
to either withdraw from running its own fostering service, which would remove the need for the upfront investment
described in the proposal below, but would leave the council more exposed to the uncertainty and increasing cost
pressures of external market for foster care placements, or to bite the bullet and invest and transform the current
fostering service and in-house foster carers. Successfully transforming the council’s fostering service/foster care
provision, has the potential to yield huge savings to the council and would be one of the cornerstones of any
medium term financial plan for children’s services: redirecting money paid to external private sector companies for
placements for children in our care to preventative services aimed at keeping children with their families and
improving their lives and outcomes.

Page 262

2|Page

Appendix 4c: Transforming the Fostering Service and Support for our
Foster Carers:
Executive Summary

The Wider Care Market Context:
Due to the continued national increase in the number of children in care, the demand for homes for children in
public care is outstripping supply. All providers are busy and this means there is fierce competition for placements
for children within the market. Providers can pick and choose; and this means children, especially children with a
high level of support needs, are increasingly hard to place.
As noted in several recent reports in the national media, venture capital firms have entered the market providing
placements for children in care – noting both the absolute legal duty of councils to find suitable placements for
children in care, the growing complexity of the needs of children entering care; and the rapidly rising cost of
placements for children in care in recent years. This is leading to a consolidation of providers in the market and a
continued relative weakening in the bargaining power of local authorities. This is most evident in the residential
care (Children’s Home) sector, but is also becoming evident in Independent Fostering Agencies (IFA). For example,
the largest local IFA (Excel) has been taken over in the past year.
This context places a premium on local councils having sufficient local fostering provision to meet local demand
and to have sufficient skills within its group of foster carers so that they can support and meet the needs of the vast
majority of children in care, thereby limiting the council’s need to find placements in an increasingly difficult and
expensive external market. To achieve this aim, the council needs a fostering service that is able to recruit foster
carers for the council and then develop, retain and support those carers so that they can meet the needs of the
children. The service also needs to be able to quickly and appropriately assess the suitability of extended family
members and friends to care for children and then support them to do so when their birth parents are unable to
safely do so, through either ‘connected carer’ or ‘Special Guardianship Order’ assessments.

How are Foster Carers Currently Paid?
Blackpool Council spent a total of £4.1m on Foster Care Payments in 2019/20. The payment of foster carers has
three component parts currently:
 National Minimum Fostering Allowance (age based and set by central government – all local authorities are
expected to pay all foster carers at least this amount):

London
South East
Rest of England


Age 0 to 2 Age 3 to 4 Age 5 to 10 Age 11 to 15 Age 16 to 17
£152
£155
£174
£197
£231
£146
£150
£166
£189
£222
£132
£135
£149
£170
£198

A Skills-based payment
o Level 2 - £40 per week per child (13% of carers paid at this level)
o Level 3 - £85 per week per child (29%)
o Level 4 - £130 per week per child. (55%)
o Level 5 - £200 per week per child. (3%)

Page 263

3|Page

Appendix 4c: Transforming the Fostering Service and Support for our
Foster Carers:
Executive Summary



Additional one-off age-dependent allowances for birthdays, holidays, Christmas (other local authorities
have an equipment allowance as well, which Blackpool currently does not: an issue raised by foster carers
and by colleagues from Essex CC in their recent diagnostic evaluation of the service).

By comparison, Lancashire County Council in addition to the minimum national allowance, currently has a basic skill
payment of £115 for each child in placement; more skilled carers receive £230 a week per child, with some carers
receiving more for individual children depending on the additional need. Local Independent Fostering Agencies are
paying carers over £330 a week for each child, in addition to the national allowance

Proposed New Service Structure, Growth Plan and Payments for Carers
A transformation of the service is required to make it fit for purpose now and in the future. The proposed
transformation has three main component parts:
1. Increased payments and simplification of the fee structure for foster carers
o The allowances for the council’s carers will be competitive with what those offered by other
agencies and neighbouring local authorities
o The proposed fee structure will move to being skills-based to payments which are specific to the
children in the placement. Skills development will form part of the regular review process and
minimum skill sets will be required to support more complex work with children (which will be
reflected in the fee structure).
2. Restructure of the Fostering Team into three distinct areas of work, with appropriate resource for each
to meet anticipated levels of work
o Recruitment and Assessment
o Support for approved fostering households (maximum of 19 households per FTE worker):
Research across the region (and the knowledge brought our commissioners from and Essex by
senior managers within the department from previous local authorities) shows that the normal
number of households supported per worker nationally is 19 households.
o Connected Carers/ SGO Assessment and Support service: a ‘planning for permanence team’.
o Health assessments to be undertaken and reviewed for foster carers every 3 years in line with
good practice and to ensure appropriate matching
3. Additional capacity to be added to the service to enable it to perform its functions well:
 Dedicated resource for the recruitment and assessment of new foster carers (4 social workers, 1
Business Manager, dedicated business support to chase down leads and checks on prospective
carers, including support to the fostering panel))
 A maximum of 19 households supported by each social worker, slightly above the regional
average of 18 households, which equates to 10 Social Workers.

Page 264

4|Page

Appendix 4c: Transforming the Fostering Service and Support for our
Foster Carers:
Executive Summary





Sufficient capacity in the connected carer and SGO assessment and support team to support
150+ completed assessments a year (estimated 6 social workers)
Additionally capacity to increase the quality assurance function in terms of:
 IRO capacity to undertake fostering reviews (1 additional IRO, on top of existing 0.5 FTE)
Increasing our Clinical Psychology capacity to include a part time Clinical psychologist to develop
and support foster carers, to better enable our carers to support our children in our care and
meet a wider range of needs in our children.

The new service will be expected to:
 Recruit 25 additional fostering households per year for the next 5 years (net of existing households
ceasing to provide homes for children in our care)
 Develop (within the support function) a peer support network for foster carers including the
development of a support and advice telephone line to foster and SGO carers.
 Develop short break support for foster carers as a specific home type for both mainstream children and
complex / additional needs.
 Develop in house foster care service for PACE and emergency placements linked to the YOT service and
new edge of care service.
 Develop or recruit in-house foster carers capable of supporting mother and baby/family placements. The
development of in house placements for mother and baby would be a priority – not least because of the
additional benefits of supporting mothers and babies within their home community
 Develop or recruit in-house foster carers who want to support care leavers stepping down from
residential not yet ready for semi independence
Additional Initiatives for consideration in order to reduce numbers of children in care, increase placement
stability, and lower costs to the authority:
 Given the lead-in time for recruitment and the urgent capacity issues, consider contracting with a private
sector provider to recruit foster carers on a payment by results basis, while the council seeks to employ
its own recruitment capacity.
 Providing therapeutic training to our foster carers that supports the care of complex young people that is
trauma informed and strength-based ensuring that all foster carers offer a therapeutic based parenting
offer.
 Develop foster carers to provide community based support for children and young people returning home
from care.
 Considering how specialist services to wrap around children in care are best sourced with certainty of
service access, including those at risk of sexual offending, victims of sexual abuse / exploitation and play
therapy, which we can use to inform work undertaken during public law outline pre-proceedings and care
proceedings, for example, block contracts with providers reducing cost and ensuring consistency in
delivery.

Page 265

5|Page

Appendix 4c: Transforming the Fostering Service and Support for our
Foster Carers:
Executive Summary

5

Benefits Expected
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Better outcomes for our children
Increased local placement provision, both in terms of number, quality and skills-base
Reduced number of placement breakdowns, and disruptions
Reduced need for high cost local and out of area placements - lower placement costs per child
Increase in the number of children and young people subject to Special Guardianship Orders with family
members thus reducing the number of children in care
6. Increased staff retention and capacity
7. Lower additional spend on therapy , sexual abuse/offender interventions attached to placement costs
meaning reduced cost on some IFA and residential placements

7

Cost

The overall investment in the new fostering service and support for foster carers is £1.59m – allowing for the
increase in staffing in the revised service structure (£490k); the increase in payment rates to foster carers (£1.1m)

9

Investment Appraisal

Additional annualised cost of the new external placements with Independent Foster Carers during 2019/20 to
date is £2.3m, £1.5m more than if the children were placed with Blackpool’s own foster carers. Growth in Mother
and Baby foster placements across the year gives a cost pressure of £600,000. Recruitment of more in-house
capacity able to meet the needs of a wider type of placement will prevent this ongoing additional cost. It will also
enable a shift in the balance of placements between in-house and independent foster carers. It will also enable a
shift in the general placement in pattern in Blackpool.
Modelling of the required investment and expected return suggests that returns should begin to be seen in
2020/21, with annual return equalling annual investment by 2022/23; and cumulative return exceeding
cumulative investment in 2024/25. However, the single most important point to take from the analysis is that the
value of the investment is mainly to be found in its impact on Blackpool’s dependence on and use of the wider
market for placements of children in care – not least because that is where the extreme cost lies. The analysis
makes no assumption on improved placement stability, although greater sufficiency and more time for workers to
support carers (& psychological support for carers) are all likely to improve stability and avoid emergency
placement and the additional cost of breakdown and new placement.

Page 266

6|Page

Agenda Item 5
Report to:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Steve Thompson, Director of Resources

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor Lynn Williams, Deputy Leader of the Council

Date of Meeting:

13 July 2020

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE MONITORING AS AT MONTH 2 2020/21
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To report the level of spending and exposure against the Council’s Revenue budgets
and reserves and balances for the first 2 months to 31 May 2020.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To note the report.

2.2

To require the respective Directors and Director of Resources to continue to closely
monitor and manage the financial and operational performances across all services,
but in particular Children’s Services, Strategic Leisure Assets, Communications and
Regeneration, and Car Parking Services.

2.3

To continue to lobby all relevant central government departments for additional
funding to offset the shortfall resulting from the consequences of Covid-19.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

To ensure financial performance against the Council’s Revenue Budget and its
reserves and balances is kept under timely review by members.

3.2a

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved
budget?

Yes

3.3

Other alternative options to be considered:
None.

Page 267

4.0

Council Priority:

4.1

The relevant Council Priority is: “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity
across Blackpool”.

5.0

Background Information

5.1

See reports and appendices circulated to members under separate cover.

5.2

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

5.4

List of Appendices:
This is the first public financial performance monitoring report for
2020/21 and contains fewer appendices than normal. All are contained
within the one document.
Report
Appendix 1 - Summary Financial Statement
Appendix 2 - Directorates’ Budget Performance
Appendix 3 - Budget Savings Target 2020/21
Appendix 4 - Wholly Owned Companies – Impact of Covid-19
All circulated to Members under separate cover.

6.0

Legal considerations:

6.1

None.

7.0

Human Resources considerations:

7.1

See reports and appendices circulated to Members under separate cover.

8.0

Equalities considerations:

8.1

An Equalities Impact Assessment was produced as a part of the budget-setting
process and remains relevant.

9.0

Financial considerations:

9.1

See reports and appendices circulated to Members under separate cover.

Page 268

No

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

Impact of financial performance against approved Revenue budgets and upon
Council reserves and balances.

11.0

Ethical considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1

None.

13.0

Background papers:

13.1

None.

14.0

Key decision information:

14.1

Is this a key decision?

14.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

14.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

14.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

15.0

Call-in information:

15.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to
be exempt from the call-in process?

15.2

No

N/A

If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
16.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

N/A

Date approved:

Page 269

N/A

No

17.0

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1
18.0

Executive decision:

18.1
18.2

Date of Decision:

19.0

Reason(s) for decision:

19.1

Date Decision published:

20.0

Executive Members present:

20.1
21.0

Call-in:

21.1
22.0

Notes:

22.1

Page 270

Agenda Item 6
Notice of:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise
and Job Creation

Date of Meeting:

13 July 2020

BLACKPOOL CENTRAL – Preparatory site assembly works
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To consider the next stage of Blackpool Central project in accordance with the Land
Sale Agreement 13 January 2020, with particular reference to site assembly. The
agreement between Council, Nikal Ltd and Media Invest Entertainment (‘the
Developer’) will bring about the development of circa £300m of private investment
with the development of Chariots of the Gods leisure attractions together with
associated leisure facilities.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To agree, in principle, that if other options are exhausted then the Council would
consider the use of Compulsory Purchase Order powers to assemble the site outlined
in Appendices 6a and 6b.

2.2

To authorise the Chief Executive to pursue detailed negotiations with the developer
and other interested parties as necessary.

2.3

To delegate authority to the Chief Executive to authorise expenditure and contracts
pursuant to 2.1 and 2.2

2.4

To instruct relevant officers to commence all necessary preparatory works for the
making of a Compulsory Purchase Order, to support the site assembly of the land
outlined in Appendices 6a and 6b, which is required for the development and
associated road improvements and road closures.

2.5

That officers be requested to bring a further report to the Executive to seek authority
prior to the making of a Compulsory Purchase Order.

Page 271

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

To enable the development of the Blackpool Central scheme to progress, which will
bring new world class leisure facilities and attractions to the site, strengthening
Blackpool’s tourism offer.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by
the Council?

No

3.2b

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

3.3

Other alternative options to be considered:
None.

4.0

Council priority:

4.1

The relevant Council priority is “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity
across Blackpool”

5.0

Background information

5.1

Property Matters
Members will be aware that the Masterplan proposals for the Blackpool Central
development were previously approved by the Executive on 10th December 2018
(EX57/2018). This was followed by a further Executive Decision 25th Feb 2019
(EX22/2019) delegating authority to the Chief Executive authorise the terms of the
land disposal arrangements and subsequently by the signing of the Agreement with
the Developer on 13 January 2020.
In this respect the Council has continued in discussions with the Developer to progress
the proposals, in preparation for a planning submission later this year.
The Council has considered the land edged red on the plan attached Appendix 6a (Site
Plan A) to be required in order to facilitate the development proposed by the
Developer. The land edged red illustrates the extent of land required to deliver the
proposed masterplan for ‘Blackpool Central’ and is incorporated into the land sale
agreement, which was signed by both parties earlier this year.
The parties within the area edged red are aware that the Council are considering the

Page 272

future planning of the area and the Council have acquired a number of these
properties over recent years to facilitate the regeneration of this area of the town.
There is an additional area of land which is hatched red, this is illustrated in Appendix
6b, site plan b (this document is exempt from publication by virtue by virtue of
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. It is
considered on balance that the public interest would be not served by publishing
information at this stage until the landowners have been identified and consulted.
This area is also being considered within these preliminary investigations, as some of
this land may be required for modifications to the highway network to support the
development, following recent discussions with the Developer. Details relating to this
plan will remain confidential until the middle of August, when consultation has taken
place with the owners of the properties that may be affected. If it becomes essential
for some or all of it to be incorporated into the scheme the minimum amount of land
will be taken.
The area required for any Compulsory Purchase Order (‘CPO’) will be within these
boundaries and will be determined at a later date.
Whilst the Council is pursuing discussions with the interested leaseholders and
landowners, following meetings with owners/occupiers it is clear that the acquisition
by agreement of all of the subject land may not be possible within a realistic
timeframe or at all. Consequently, the Council has to consider whether it would
support securing the whole of the area required for the regeneration by utilising
compulsory purchase powers in effecting site assembly and [pursuing any necessary
road closures]. This is a normal process in large regeneration projects.
The Council has the controlling interest in the majority of property on the site, with a
few remaining leases within the King Edward’s apartments yet to acquire and a
number of units on Central Drive that lie within the boundary of the site. In order to
progress the proposals for Blackpool Central it is vital that the remaining interests are
acquired to complete the assembly of the whole site as soon as practicable.
5.2

Compulsory Purchase Powers
There are a range of powers which the Council can use to facilitate land assembly. In
the circumstances it is considered that the powers under Section 226 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 would be the most appropriate. This allows the Council to
acquire land which is ‘suitable for and required in order to secure the carrying out of
development, re-development or improvement’, or is required for the ‘proper
planning of an area’.
The Council recognises that it would be premature at this stage to make a Compulsory
Purchase Order whilst negotiations are continuing. Consequently, it is proposed that a

Page 273

further report be submitted to the Executive to authorise a Compulsory Purchase
Order should the negotiations for the remaining interests not be concluded in a timely
manner and upon the Council being satisfied that there is a compelling case in the
public interest to do so and that the relevant statutory tests are met.
The Director of Communications and Regeneration accepts that the Executive will
need to be satisfied that all reasonable attempts have been made to assemble the site
through negotiation as compulsory purchase should be used as a ‘last resort’. The
Council has been progressing voluntary acquisitions for some time and will continue
to do so.

5.3

Conclusions
Should the Executive be prepared to agree, in principle, to making a Compulsory
Purchase Order, a further detailed report would be submitted if reasonable attempts
to assemble the site through negotiation in a timely manner are unsuccessful.
An ‘in-principle’ decision to make a Compulsory Purchase Order would create greater
certainty amongst stakeholders that the site will be assembled in a timely manner to
enable the scheme to be implemented. This will enable such stakeholders to plan
their business accordingly. It will similarly reaffirm the Council’s support for the
scheme.

5.4

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

5.5

List of Appendices:
Appendix 6a (Site Plan A)
Appendix 6b (Site Plan B) exempt

6.0

Legal considerations:

6.1

None at this time.

7.0

Human resources considerations:

7.1

None.

8.0

Equalities considerations:

8.1

None.

Page 274

No

9.0

Financial considerations:

9.1

The final terms of each acquisition will be subject to valuation and negotiation.

9.2

The previous Executive decision EX22/2019 gave an indication of potential
Compulsory Purchase Order costs and sought approval on the wider budget for
Blackpool Central which included property acquisitions and site assembly. Although at
that point in time this did not include the properties illustrated on the eastern side of
Central Drive between Palatine Road and Reads Avenue, which will be considered
during the next stages of the preliminary Compulsory Purchase Order works.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

None at this time

11.0

Ethical considerations:

11.1

The Council will endeavour to acquire the necessary properties by negotiation and will
only seek to use Compulsory Purchase Order process as last resort

12.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

12.1

Growth and Prosperity Programme Director, Growth and Prosperity Board, Head of
Legal Services, Finance and Nikal Limited.

13.0

Background papers:

13.1

None.

14.0

0Key decision information:

14.1

Is this a key decision?

Yes

14.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

14.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

14.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

15.0

Call-in information:

15.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to be
exempt from the call-in process?

Page 275

5/2020
No

No

15.2

If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
16.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

17.0

3 July 2020

Date approved:

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1
18.0

Executive decision:

18.1
19.0

Date of Decision:

19.1
20.0

Reason(s) for decision:

20.1
21.0

1Date Decision published:

21.1
22.0

Executive Members in attendance:

22.1
23.0

Call-in:

23.1
24.0

Notes:

24.1

Page 276

Page 277

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 6a

Page 279
A

D

Proposed CPO (Central Site)

RO

Legend:

Title removed
Description

STA
T HE
BE

Blackpool Central

A
Rev

Drawn By: LDC
Scale 1:2,000
Paper Size: A4

©

Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey Licence No.100019178. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions.

2 July 20
Date

V.Date: 23-Jun-20

LDC
Initials

V.1.0

Date:23-Jun-20
Growth &
Prosperity

N

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Notice of:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise
and Job Creation

Date of Meeting:

13 July 2020

BLACKPOOL AIRPORT ENTERPRISE ZONE:
COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT AND LEASE WITH MULTI-PLY
COMPONENTS LTD.
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

On 18 June 2018 the Executive considered a report in respect of Blackpool Airport
Enterprise Zone and approved recommendations including agreement to the
Enterprise Zone delivery.
This report seeks approval for the Council to develop a commercial unit of 40,000sq
ft on the Enterprise Zone and subsequently enter into a 25 year lease with Multi-Ply
Components Limited for the occupation of the premises, at a market rent without a
premium.
The development could see over 100 new jobs brought into Blackpool in the key
medical technology sector by a Lancashire based company looking to expand their
business and bring valuable skilled employment into the area.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To approve the proposed development and subsequent grant of a lease in
accordance with the Heads of Terms.

2.2

To agree to the conditions set out in the Heads of Terms. These have been agreed
between the parties and are contained within Appendix 7a (Confidential).

2.3

To agree that the Council enter into a building contract for the construction of the
proposed development, with agreement for the Council to negotiate construction
costs up to the agreed budget costs, outlined in Appendix 7c (Financial
Information).

Page 283

2.4

To agree to the Council entering into a ‘pre-emption agreement’ for an additional
lease with Multi-Ply Components Limited to be coterminous with the original lease
for an area of land directly adjacent to the site for further expansion, in the future,
if required.

2.4

In addition to the above, agreement to delegate authority to the Head of Legal to
enter into any proposed legal agreements relating to the scheme.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

The agreement to construct a commercial unit on the Enterprise Zone falls within the
requirements set out in the Enterprise Zone Masterplan.
The agreement between the Council and Multi-Ply Components Limited (tenant),
supports in delivering on the priorities and objectives of the Council, bringing additional
revenue income into the authority, whilst supporting business growth and additional
skilled employment opportunities in the private sector.
This initial development starts to deliver on the ambitions of the Enterprise Zone
Business Plan, bringing in new business to Blackpool and providing economic growth.
This investment will help to stimulate and support the opportunities that the Enterprise
Zone has to offer to new and existing businesses. The building will be a substantial unit
on the Enterprise Zone and will a set precedent for the type of development Blackpool is
seeking on the business park helping to promote further investment.
To provide good quality employment opportunities for people ensuring resilience
and sustainability within the local area and beyond.

3.2a

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the
Council?

No

3.2b

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

3.3

Other alternative options to be considered:
i)

The Council not to take forward this proposal, this was dismissed as there was
a credible business with forecasted growth, which also offered commercial
opportunity for the council.

ii)

For the Council to dispose of the land as either freehold or leasehold for MultiPly to develop independently of the Council. These options was explored
throughout initial discussions, but not seen to be the preferred route by
either party.

Page 284

4.0

Council priority:

4.1

The relevant Council priority is: “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity
across Blackpool”.

5.0

Background Information

5.1

Since June 2018, significant progress has been made with the delivery of the Enterprise
Zone Delivery Plan.
Multi-Ply Components Limited.

5.2

Multi-Ply Components Limited contacted the Council back in 2019 expressing an
interest in opportunities to expand and deliver their business from the Enterprise
Zone.

5.3

The company is currently located in Inskip, near Preston and is one of the world’s
leading specialists in the design and manufacture of carbon fibre composite
components for the medical X-Ray equipment industry manufacture. The company
has been operational for over 20 years and has a strong business with proposals for
growth and expansion significantly over the next 10 years.

5.4

The company currently employs circa 69 staff and they are seeking to increase this
by approximately 15-20 staff in line with expansion of the business onto the
Enterprise Zone, with potential further employment (in excess of 100) over the next
five years and beyond. Their current premises have constrained and restricted plans
for growth, as they are simply not large enough to accommodate the forecasted
growth.

5.5

With credible business proposals for the future, the Head of Enterprise Zones
continued to engage in discussions with a view to supporting and encouraging the
relocation to the Enterprise Zone site.

5.6

The proposal to support the project has led to an opportunity for the Council to
develop and construct the commercial unit and to enter into a lease arrangement
with Multi-Ply Components Limited over a term of 25 years. Heads of Terms for the
proposed development were negotiated and agreed between the parties earlier
this year.

5.7

The terms of the proposal are contained with the Appendices, with the Council
proposing to enter into an Agreement for Lease, during which the construction of
the development will take place. Thereafter and upon practical completion of the
construction Multi-Ply would then be obliged to take the lease of the premises on a

Page 285

full repair and insure (FRI) basis. Due to the commercial nature of these
negotiations these documents are not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered on
balance that the public interest would be not served by publishing information at
this stage.
5.8

Development Feasibility / Viability
Early scheme feasibility and viability exercises were worked up by the Council’s
Growth and Prosperity team to assess the initial financial viability of the project.

5.9

Given the specific nature of the business and following this early feasibility work,
further discussions with Multi-Ply were held. It was agreed that the Council would
look to construct the main shell of the structure, Multi-Ply would provide capital
funding for specific elements of the initial fit out, which would be included under
the Council’s main building contract and they would independently procure and
undertake the main quantity of the internal fit out themselves. This arrangement
reduces the capital risk to the Council and reinforces the commitment by Multi-Ply
to invest in the Enterprise Zone. It is a significant investment by the company,
representative of their ambitions for the future.

5.10

In order to develop the proposals the Council commissioned Architects Cassidy and
Ashton Architects via the framework agreement already procured for the Enterprise
Zone.

5.11

In addition to this and due to the required timescales for delivery of the project,
early engagement and discussion had also been held with a building contractor to
obtain contractor input both in relation to the design and construction costs. The
contractor was selected from the Procure Northwest Framework.

5.12

A planning submission for the development was also made in July 2019, with
approval being granted in October 2019.

Design Development
5.13

Over the recent months the Council’s architects have been developing the
proposals through to detailed design. It is anticipated that by the end of July the
Contractor will be in a position to have obtained the full costs for the project.
Subsequently and subject to agreeing the Contractors prices, the Council will be in a
position to commission the project to construction delivery.

Page 286

5.14

Pre-emption agreement for future expansion
Multi-Ply Components Limited have also sought to negotiate with the Council the
ability to acquire an additional area of land to the east of the proposed site, for
further expansion in future years. This area is illustrated on the location plan shown
in Appendix 7b.

5.15

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

5.16

List of Appendices:

Noe

Appendix 7a - Heads of Terms (Exempt)
Appendix 7b – Location Plan
Appendix 7c – Financial Information (Exempt)
6.0

Legal considerations:

6.1

The Council will be entering into a formal building contract for the construction of
the commercial premises. It is anticipated that the Standard JCT Design and Build
Contract will be the form of contract entered into between the appointed
Contractor and the Council.

6.2

An Agreement for Lease will also be entered into between the parties setting out
the terms for the lease and each parties obligations under the agreement.

6.3

The term for the lease will be for a period of 25 years from practical completion of
the building works. There will be no break provision within the term of the lease.

6.4

The tenant will have the ability to acquire the additional land from the Council
during a 10 year period from the lease commencement date under the terms of a
separate ‘Pre-emption Agreement’.

6.5

The Council under Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 is to obtain best
value, and in this respect the terms offered for the 25 year lease are in line with
market values

7.0

Human resources considerations:

7.1

There are no additional Human Resources considerations.

8.0

Equalities considerations:

8.1

There are no additional Equalities considerations.

Page 287

9.0

Financial considerations:

9.1

The financial details for the scheme are contained with Appendix 7c. Given the
commercial sensitivity of the negotiations these are to remain confidential.

9.2

Funding for the project will be a combination of Prudential Borrowing and Growth
Deal Funding. The Growth Deal fund, has been approved by the Lancashire
Enterprise Partnership (LEP), the funding administrators, although it is subject to
formal documentation being completed in accordance with Growth Deal terms and
conditions.

9.3

On completion and occupation of the new premises Multi-Ply Components Limited
will be subject to business rates, which is anticipated to be in the region of £75,000
per year. This will be confirmed by the District Valuer in due course.

9.4

Negotiations with Multi-Ply have led the Council to agree that the building will be
insured under the Council’s insurance cover, with costs being recovered from the
tenant.

9.5

There will be annual service charge levied to recover the general costs and
expenses for common areas on the Business Park, such as grounds maintenance,
security, unadopted highways maintenance and street cleaning.

9.6

At the end of the initial 25 year term the asset will either recovered by the Council
or the tenants could look to enter into another lease at market rental. In the
situation where the asset is recovered by the Council then a full dilapidations survey
will be undertaken to assess works required in accordance with the terms of the
lease. However it should be noted that some refurbishment works may be required
by the Council in order to prepare the property to be marketed and leased to an
alternative commercial occupier.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

The scheme presents a number of potential risks to the Council.

10.2

The initial agreement involves the Council acting as developer, with the Council
providing the core shell of the building. The tenant would be responsible for
funding and fitting out the building as per their specific requirements. There are
risks associated with the type of agreement, however throughout the course of
negotiations the Council will seek to mitigate these risks via appropriate drafting in
the legal contracts.

Page 288

10.3

In the event that tenant does not take the property, then the Council may have to
look to make modifications to the building prior to marketing the property for an
alternative commercial tenant.
Budget and Cost Forecast

10.4

There is a risk that the Contractors prices are higher than those forecasted. Under
this particular circumstance the Council and the Contractor will seek to undertake a
value engineering exercise, in effort to bring the cost of the development / building
within the budget parameters. In the event that these costs cannot be managed
within the budget then the project is at risk of not being undertaken.

10.5

Under the terms of the Agreement for Lease, the Council will be contracted to
deliver the building for occupation within a defined set of parameters. Should the
Council fail to deliver in accordance with the terms of the lease, then the Council
will be liable to reimburse all costs that the tenant has previously paid to the
Council.

10.6

There may be an option for the tenant to agree to deliver the Part C fit-out works
via the council’s building contractor. This may reduce timescales for the overall
delivery and therefore the commencement of business operations. In the event of
the Council agreeing to this, the tenant would have to agree to make a series of
advanced milestone payments for the fit out works and this would be reflected in
the Agreement for Lease, along with other associated terms under this situation.

11.0

Ethical considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

12.1

Internal consultation has taken place with the Council’s Legal Services team and
Finance team.

12.2

Approval for the scheme to be progressed has also been obtained via the Council’s
Growth and Prosperity Board

12.3

Planning approval was granted for the development in October 2019. Therefore the
necessary statutory consultations were undertaken as required through the
planning process.

13.0

Background papers:

13.1

EX30 – Enterprise Zone Masterplan Update (July 2019)

Page 289

Planning Decision Ref 19/0391
14.0

Key decision information:

14.1

Is this a key decision?

Yes

14.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

19/2019

14.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

No

14.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

15.0

Call-in information:

15.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to be
exempt from the call-in process?
No

16.2

If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
16.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

17.0

3 July 2020

Date approved:

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1
18.0

Executive decision:

18.1
19.0

Date of Decision:

19.1
20.0

Reason(s) for decision:

20.1

Page 290

N/A

21.0

Date Decision published:

21.1
22.0

Executive Members in attendance:

22.1
23.0

Call-in:

23.1
24.0

Notes:

24.1

Page 291

This page is intentionally left blank

BLACKPOOL AIRPORT ENTERPRISE ZONE:
Commercial Development & Lease with Multi-Ply Components Ltd
Appendix 7(b):
Site Location Plan

Page 297

This page is intentionally left blank

